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DEFINITIONS
Key Terms/Abbreviations Explanation
"Allatment Data” Date on which the Bonds are allotted to investors

“Applicable Pricing

: The Pricing Supplement/Supplementary Prospectus applicable
Supplement” or

_ to a particular Series of Bonds issued under the Programme
“Supplementary Prospectus

‘Board” or “Directors” Board of Directors of the Company
"Bondholder” Any registered owner or beneficial owner of Bonds

The registered bonds or any other type of debt securities
‘Bonds” issued by the Issuer from time to time under the Programme

with aggregate value not exceeding N20,000,000,000

The Issuing House(s) duly appointed by the Issuer to maintain
‘Book Runner(s)” the book in respect of the Bonds being sold by way of Book

Building

Any day (other than a Saturday, Sunday or a Federal
"Business Day” Government of Nigeria declared public holiday) on which

commercial banks are open for general business

“CAMAS Companies and Allied Matters Act Cap C20, LFN 2004
“CBN" Central Bank of Nigeria

Companies Income Tax Act Cap. C21 LFN, 2004 (as amended

"CITA" by the Companies Income Tax (Amendment Act No. 11 of
2007)
Terms and conditions in accordance with which the Bonds will
“Conditions” or “Terms and be issued, set out in the section headed “Terms and
Conditions” Conditions of the Programme” and in the Programme Trust
Deed
“Coupon’ The interest rate payable to Bondholders as specified in the
applicable Pricing Supplement
“Coupon Commencement The first date from which interest on a Senes of the Bonds will
Date” accrue, as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement

- S —— .
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Key Terms/Abbreviations Explanation

The date falling no later than two Business Days prior to the

S Coupon Payment Date on which the Trustee determines the
“Coupon Determination Date” : _ _
interest rate applicable on a Bond (other than a Fixed Rate

Bond) for that Interest Period

) The date on which coupon is to be paid to Bondholders as
“Coupon Payment Date

specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement
The period from (and including) @ Coupon Payment Date (or
“Coupon Period” the Coupon Commencement Date) to (but excluding) the next
Coupon Payment Date
"CRR" Cash Reserve Ratio
"CSCS” Central Securities Clearing System Plc

The daily official list of the NSE which provides information on
“Daily Official List"
4 a daily basis on transactions that take place on the floor of the

NSE and FMDQ

The Debt Issuance Programme described in this Shelf
“Debt lssuance Programme” Prospectus pursuant to which LAPO MFB SPV Plc may issue
of the “Programme” Debt Securities from time to time, the aggregate value of which

shall not exceed W20, 000,000,000 (Twenty Billion Naira)

Any securities, which include registered bonds, promissory
“Debt Securities” notes, cerificates, debentures and other securities authorized
to be issued under the Programme by LAPO MFB SPV Plc

“Directors’ Certificate” A certificate delivered to the Trustee by the Issuer and
executed by two Directors of the Issuer

“Dme” Deposit Money Banks

“EIU° The Economist Intelligence Unit

“"EMC” Executive Management Committee

“Event of Default” As provided in Clause 9 of the Programme Trust Deed
“Face Value” The nominal value of the Bonds

“FCMB Capital Markets” FCMB Capital Markets Limited
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Key TermsiAbbreviations Explanation

‘FDI” Foreign Direct Investment
‘FGN" Federal Government of Nigeria
‘Fixed Rate” The rate of interest payable in respect of Fixed Rate Bonds

Bonds in respect of which interest is to be calculated. from the
“Fixed Rate Bonds” date of issuance, paid on a fixed rate basis, and will not
change during the life of such Bonds

"FMDQ" FMDQ OTC Plc

"Floating Rate” The rate of interest payable in respect of a Floating Rate Bond
Bonds in respect of which interest is to be calculated in

‘Floating Rate Bonds” reference to a variable benchmark rate as described in the
relevant Pricing Supplement

"GCR" Global Credit Rating Co.

“GDP" Gross Domestic Product

An individual investor with a net worth of at least N300 million,
excluding automabiles, homes and fumniture as defined by Rule
321 of the SEC Consolidated Rules and Regulations, 2013 as
amended from time to time

"High Net Worth Individual”

‘IASB" International Accounting Standards Board
“IFRS” International Financial Reporting Standards
“IMF" The International Monetary Fund
“lssuer” LAPO MFB SPV Pic
The date on which the relevant Series of the Bonds is issued.
“Issue Date” ) ) ;
as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement
. The price at which the Bonds are issued as specified in the
“Issue Price”

applicable Pricing Supplement

‘Issuer”, the "Company” or

LAPO MFB SPV Pic
"‘LAPO MFB SPY"

‘Issuer's Auditors” Akintola Williams Deloitte
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Key Terms/Abbreviations Explanation

“Issuing Houses” FCMEB Capital Markets and United Capital Plc

FCMB Capital Markets Limited and United Capital Plc or any

“Joint Issuing House/Joint o _ _ ] o
other issuing houses as disclosed in the applicable pricing

Book-runner”
supplemeant.

‘LAPQ", “Sponsor” or “LAPO o
LAPO Microfinance Bank Limited

mig"
The registered debt secunties issued by LAPO and purchased
“‘LAPO Bond" by the Issuer with the proceeds of the Bonds. The aggregate
£ » value of such debt securities not exceeding N20,000,000,000
“LFN" Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004

Any company or entity directly or indirectly controlled by the

Sponsor, for which purpose control means either ownership of

: e more than fifty percent of the voting share capital (or equivalent

“Matenal Subsidiaries )
right of ownership) of such company or entity, or power to
direct its policies and management, whether by contract or

othenvise

The date as specified in each applicable Pricing Supplement
“Maturity Date” ) ) _
on which the Principal Amount is due

The Master Bonds Purchase Agreement dated 16™ day of
"MBPA" August 2017 between LAPO, the Trustee and the Issuer under
which LAPO issues the LAPO Bonds to the Issuer

‘MFC” Monetary Policy Committes

“MPR" Monetary Policy Rate

“Naira” or "W’ The Migerian Naira

“NDIC” Nigeria Deposit Insurance Corporation
“NBS" Mational Bureau of Statistics

“Nigeria" The Federal Republic of Nigeria, and the term “Migerian” shall
Igena
° be construed accordingly
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Key Terms/Abbreviations Explanation
|

“NIPC" Nigerian Investment Promotion Commission
“NSE" or the “Exchange” The Nigerian Stock Exchange
"Pension Reform Act 20147 Pension Reform Act, Cap P4, LFN No.4 of 2014

Pension Fund Administrator and its plural form shall be

‘PFA” _
construed accordingly
“PIB" Petroleum Industry Bill
TR Personal Income Tax Act, CapP8, LFN 2004 as amended by
the Personal Income Tax (Amendment) Act 2011
“Pricing Supplement”, The document(s) to be issued pursuant to the Shelf
“Supplementary Shelf Prospectus which shall provide final terms and conditions of a
Prospectus” or “SSP" specific issue of Debt Securities under the Programme

o ) The nominal amount of each Bond, as specified in the
‘Principal Amount P
applicable Pricing Supplement

Professionals engaged by the Issuer and Sponsor to advise on

"Professional Parties” the establishment of the Debt Issuance Programme and the
issuance of Bonds thereunder

The Trust Deed between LAPO MFE SPV Plc, LAPO

“Programme Trust Deed” or
Microfinance Bank and the Trustee dated 16" day of August

“Deed”
2017 as may be amended, supplemented or restated from time
to time
An agreement for the issue and subscription of the LAPO
"Purchase Confirmation” Bonds substantially in the form set out in Schedule 2 of the
MBPA,;
A purchaser of securities that is financially sophisticated.
"Qualified Institutional These include Banks, Fund Managers, Pension Fund
Investor” Administrators, Insurance Companies, Investment/Unit Trusts,

Multilateral and Bilateral Institutions, Registered andfor
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Key Terms/Abbreviations Explanation

Verifiable Private Equity Funds, Registered and/or verifiable
Hedae Funds, Market Makers, Staff Schemes,
Trustees/Custodians, Stock Broking Firms and any other
category as the Commission may determine as stipulated by

Rule 321 of the Rules and Regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission

The applicable rate of interest on any Bond (other than a Fixed
“Rate of Interest” Rate Bond) to be determined on an Coupon Determination
Diate for each Interest Period by the Trustee

The date on which the list of Bondholders eligible to receive
“Record Date”
Coupon payment is determined by reference to the Register

The aggregate Principal Amount outstanding in respect of a
“Redemption Amount” seres of Bonds on the Maturity Date as specified in the
applicable Pricing Supplement

The record kept at the specified office of the Registrar into
“Register” which shall be entered the names and addresses of each
Bondholder and the particulars, transfers and redemption of

the Bonds held by each Bondholder

CardinalStone Registrars Limited or such other registrars duly
Registrar* licensed by the SEC, as may be appointed from time to time by
the Issuer with prior written approval of the Trustee to maintain

the Register

g : . Bonds in respect of which interest is calculated to have an
Reverse Floating Rate
inverse relationship to the referenced benchmark rate

“S&PT Standard and Poors

"SEC" or “the Commission” Securities & Exchange Commission

A Tranche of Bonds together with any further Tranche or
“Series” Tranches of Bonds which are (i) expressed to be consolidated
and form a single series and (ii) are identical in all respects
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Key Terms/Abbreviations Explanation

(including as to listing) except for their respective Issue Dates,
Coupon Commencement Dates and/or Issue Prices

Means a deed supplementing or modifying the provisions of

the Programme Trust Deed entered into by the Issuer and the
Trustee with regards to a specific Series and empowering the
Trustee to hold, administer and manage the applicable assels

"Series Trust Deed”

This document issued in accordance with the Rules and
“Shelf Prospectus” Regulations of the SEC, which details the aggregate size and
broad terms and conditions of the Programme

Means a resolution passed by at least three fourths (3/4)
“Special Resolution” majority of the total number of Bondholders in accordance with
the provisions contained in the Second Schedule on page 88

“S5AT Sub-Saharan Africa

The Debt Issuance Programme described in this Shelf
Prospectus pursuant to which LAPO MFB SPV Plc may issue
Debt Securities from time to time. the aggregate value of which
shall not exceed ®20,000,000,000 (Twenty Billion Naira)

“The Programme”

Bonds which are identical in all respects (including as to listing

“Tranche” o . )
and admission to trading)

The Shelf Prospectus, Pricing Supplement, the Trust Deeds,
“Transaction Documents” vending agreements, underwriting agreement, Master Bonds
Purchase Agreement and all related documents

“Trust Deeds” The Programme Trust Deed and the Series Trust Deed(s)
FBN Trustees Nigeria Limited or any other Trustee appainted
“Trustee”
by the Issuer
“Trustee Act” Trustee Investments Act Cap T22, LFN 2004
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Key Terms/Abbreviations Explanation

“Undertaking” An undertaking on the Bonds to be provided by LAPO
“United Capital United Capital Pic
“uspD” United States Dollar

o _ A period not exceeding three (3) years after the date of the
“Walidity Period” _
issue of this Shelf Prospectus

. “WAT" Value Added Tax

WHT" Withholding Tax as provided for in section 78(2) of CITA

A non-interest bearing Bond or a2 Bond issued at a discount to
"Zero Coupon Bond”
its face value
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DECLARATION BY THE ISSUER

HEAD OFFICE
T8, [havison Road
Henin Cify, Nigena

LAPO MIBE SPV PLC Tel 23452292174

Hi ) 36358 LAGOSE OFFICE

65, Kudirat Abwola Way,

orpa, Logos, Ngena

Teil: «234.81- 10772850
= 2T4-B)-AO38QTIO

26" September, 2016

Beclaration by LAPO MFB SPV Plg

We hereby affirm that this Shelf Prospectuis and Pricing Supplement thereto have been
prepared by the lssuing Houses, on behalf of LAPO MFB SPY Pic (“the lssuer”) with a view to
pfrnndmz_ & dewrnptinn of the relevanr awpects of the bisuer and LAPD Microfinance Bank
Limited [“the Sponsor”) in connection with the M20 billion Programme and the investment in
the securities issued therain

On behaif of the Sponsor, we hereby make the following declarations:

1. We confirm that we have taken all reasonable care to ensure that the information
contaned i this Shelf Prospectus and any Pricing Supplement, is to the best of our
knowledge and belief, in accordance with the material facts and contains no omission likely
to affect the accuracy of the information contained thersin

2. We confirm that there has been no significant change in the financial condition or material
adverse change in the prospects of the Sponsor since the date of the Shel Prospectus

3. we confirm that the Sponsor has not during the 12 (twelve) calendar months immediately
preceding the date of the applicaton to the Securities & Exchange Commission for the
FERISTFATION of rha Shslf Provipactiod, hreached any terms and condithang in respct of
borrowed monies which has resulted in the occurrence of an immediate recall of such
borrowed monies.

Yours fathfully,
For: LAPDO MFB 5PV Pic

Josephine NMwachuku Cynithia tkponmwosa Faith Osaruwa-0
Director Company Secretary

1 k.
n { ||
= = -
——— E—— =
Mireriers: Gaondaio Phiglamuses, dosepliine N wackobwe, Foeioh o wwe-{ o
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INFORMATION RELATED TO THE SHELF PROSPECTUS

1.  Presentation of Information

The information set forth herein has been obtained from official sources that are believed to be reliable,
but the fairess, accuracy, completeness or correctness of the information or opinions contained herein
has not been verified. The information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without
notice and neither the delivery of this Shelf Prospectus nor any issue made hereunder or any future
use of this Shelf Prospectus shall, under any circumstance, create any impression that there has been
no change in the affairs of the Sponsor since the date hereof.

All financial and other information presented or incorporated by reference in this Shelf Prospectus has
been provided by the Sponsor from its records, except for information expressly attributed to other
sources. The presentation of certain information, including tables of receipts and other revenues, is
intended to show recent historical information and is not intended to indicate future or continuing trends
in the financial position or other affairs of the Sponsor/Company. No representation is made that past
experience, as it might be shown by such financial and other information, will necessarily continue or
be repeated in the future.

A wide variety of other information concerning the Sponsor, including financial information, is available
in authorised publicly available publications. Any such information that is inconsistent with the
information set forth in this Shelf Prospectus should be disregarded. No such information is a part of,
or incorporated into this Shelf Prospectus.

2.  Financial Information

The Sponsor maintains its books of account and prepares its statutory financial statements in Naira in
accordance with IFRS as promulgated by the IASB.

Unless otherwise indicated, the financial information regarding the Sponsor indicated in this Shelf
Prospectus has been derived from the Reporting Accountants' Report on the Sponsor's audited
financial statements for the five years ended 31 December, 2015 and the management accounts for
the year ended 31 December 2016. The Sponsor's financial statements for the period ended 31
December 2011 and year ended 31 December 2012 were prepared under the historical cost convention
in accordance with the Statement of accounting standards as issued by the Migerian Accounting
Standards Board, while the financial statements for the years ended 31 December 2013, 2014 and
2015 were prepared in accordance with IFRS as issued by the |IASB and are presented in Naira,

3. Rounding

Certain figures included in this Shelf Prospectus have been subject to rounding adjustments.
Accordingly, figures shown for the same category presented in different tables may vary slightly and
figures shown as totals in certain tables may not be an arithmetic aggregation of the figures which
precede them.

4. Forward Looking Statements

Certain statements included herein and in any Pricing Supplement may constitute forward looking
statements that involve a number of risks and uncertainties because they relate to events and depend
on circumstances that may or may not occur in the future. Such forward looking statements can be
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identified by the use of forward looking terminology such as “believes”, “expects”, “may", “are expected
to”, “intends”, “will", “will continue”, “should”, “would be’, “seeks’, “approximately” or “anticipates” or
similar expressions or the negative thereof or other variations thereof or comparable terminclogy.
These forward looking statements include all matters that are not historical facts and include statements
regarding the Issuer’s intentions, beliefs or current expectations concerning, amongst other things, the
Issuer’s operating results, financial condition, liquidity, prospects, growth, strategies and the industry in
which it operates

Prospective investors should be aware that forward looking statements are not guarantees of future
development of the industry in which the Sponsor operates, as this may differ materially from those
made in or suggested by the forward locking statements contained in this Shelf Prospectus. In addition,
even if the Sponsor's results of operations, financial condition and liquidity and the development of the
industry in which it operates are consistent with the forward looking statements contained in this Shelf
Prospectus, those results or developments may not be indicative of results or developments in
subsequent periods.

Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from the Sponsor's expectations are
contained in the cautionary statements in this Shelf Prospectus and include, among other things, the
following:

* Overall political, economic and business conditions in Nigeria:
= Economic and political conditions in international markets, including governmental changes,

* Changes in tax requirements, including tax rate changes, new tax laws and revised tax law
interpretations,

* Interest rate fluctuations and other capital market conditions;

* Changes in government regulations, especially those pertaining to the Sponsor's industry;
competitive factors in the industries in which the Sponsor and its customers operate:

* The demand for the Sponsor's products and services;

= Continued hostilities and disruptions in the north eastern part of Nigeria;
* Exchange rate fluctuations; and

= The timing, impact and other uncertainties of future actions.

The sections of this Shelf Prospectus titied “Risk Factors”, “Description of LAPO Microfinance Bank
Limited” and "Statutory and General Information” contain a more detailed discussion of the factors
that could affect the Sponsor’s future performance and the industry in which it operates. In light of these
nsks, uncertainties and assumptions, the forward looking events described in this Shelf Prospectus
may not occur.

The Issuer does not undertake any obligation to update or revise any forward looking statement,
whether as a result of new Information, future events or otherwise. All subsequent written and oral
forward looking statements attributable to the Issuer or to persons acting on its behalf are expressly
qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements referred to above and contained elsewhere in
this Shelf Prospectus.

Shelf Prospectus Page | 12




LAPO MFB SPV PLC — N20 Billion Debt Issuance Programme

5. Third Party Information

The Issuer and the Sponsor obtained certain statistical and market information that is presented in this
Shelf Prospectus in respect of the Nigerian microfinance banking sector, the Nigerian economy and the
Nigerian political landscape in general from third party sources as identified where it appears herein.

This third party information is presented in the following sections of the Shelf Prospectus: "Exchange
Rates and Exchange Controls”, “Risk Factors”, “Business Description”, "Management's Discussion
and Analysis of Result of Operations and Financial Condition”, “Directors and Senior Management',
"Migeria” and “The Nigerian Microfinance Banking Sector”. The Issuer and the Sponsor have
accurately reproduced such information and, so far as they are aware and are able to ascertain from
information published by such third parties, no facts have been omitted that would render the
reproduced information inaccurate or misleading.

There is not necessarily any uniformity of views among such sources as to such information provided.
The Issuer has not independently verified the information included in these sections. Some of the
information in this Shelf Prospectus have been derived substantially from publicly available information,
such as annual reports, official data published by government agencies or other third party sources as
indicated in the text. The Issuer has accurately reproduced such information and, so far as the Sponsor
is aware and is able to ascertain, no facts have been omitted that would render the reproduced
information inaccurate or misleading. The Issuer has relied on the accuracy of this information without
independent verification.

Market studies are often based on information or assumptions that may not be accurate or appropriate,
and their methodology is inherently predictive and speculative. Neither the Issuer, the Sponsar, nor the
Issuing Houses have independently verified the figures, market data or other information on which third
parties have based their studies.

Certain statistical information reported herein has been reproduced from official publications of, and
information supplied by, a number of government agencies and ministries, and other governmental and
intergovernmental organisations, including:

= The Central Bank of Nigeria;
* The International Monetary Fund,
* The Debt Management Office; and

* The National Bureau of Statistics.
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ISSUE OF PRICING SUPPLEMENT

Foliowing the publication of this Shelf Prospectus, a Pricing Supplement shall be prepared by the Issuer
and the Issuing Houses for each series of Bonds issued under the Programme for the approval of the
SEC in accordance with Rule 279(3)(6)(b) of the SEC Rules and Regulations.

Statements contained in any such Pricing Supplement shall, to the extent applicable (whether
expressly, by implication or otherwise), be deemed to modify or supersede statements contained in this
Shelf Prospectus. Any statement so medified or superseded shall not, except as so modified or
superseded, constitute a part of this Shelf Prospectus

In the event of any significant new factor, material mistake or inaccuracy relating to the information
included in this Shelf Prospectus which is capable of affecting the assessment of the Bonds, LAPO
MFB SPV Plc. will prepare an addendum to this Shelf Prospectus or publish a new Shelf Prospectus

for use in connection with any subsequent issue of Bonds. {
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THE PROGRAMME

A copy of this Shelf Prospectus, together with the documents specified herein, has been delivered to
the SEC for clearance and registration. The registration of this Shelf Prospectus and any subsequent
Pricing Supplement shall not be taken to indicate that the SEC endorses or recommends the Bonds to
be issued under the Programme or assumes responsibility for the correctness of statements made or
opinions or reports expressed herein.

This Shelf Prospectus is issued pursuant to the Rules and Regulations of the Commission and contains
particulars in compliance with the requirements of the SEC Rule 279(3) for the purpose of giving
information to the public with regards to the M20,000,000,000 Debt Issuance Programme established
by the Issuer. The specific terms of each Series of the Bonds in respect of which this Shelf Prospectus
is being delivered will be set forth in the applicable Pricing Supplement and shall include the specific
designation, aggregate principal amount, the currency or currency unit for which the Bonds may be
purchased, maturity, interest provisions, authorised denominations, lssue Price. any terms of
redemption and any other specific terms. If a specific issue under the Programme requires a listing, an
application will be made to the Governing Council of the Nigerian Stock Exchange or the Financial
Market Dealers Quotation (FMDQ) Over-The-Counter (OTC) market platform for the admission of such
Bonds to its Daily Official List.

The directors of the Issuer and/or Sponsor collectively and individually accept full responsibility for the
accuracy of the information stated herein and confirm, having made all reasonable enguiries that to the
best of their knowledge and belief, there are no facts, the omission of which would make any statement
herein misleading or untrue

4 United Capital

RG: #4495

P, Ty =T

R 446561

On behalf of

LAPO MFB SPV PLC

RC 1353555 are authorised to issue this Shelf Prospectus in respect of

The N20 Billion Debt Issuance Programme
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This Shelf Prospectus contains:

1.

on page 10, the declaration to the effect that the Sponsor did not breach any terms and conditions
in respect of borrowed monies which resulted in the oceurrence of an event of default and an
immediate recall of such borrowed monies during the twelve calendar months immediately
preceding the date of filing an application with the SEC for the registration of this Shelf
Prospectus;

on pages 80 - 118, the Reporting Accountants’ Report prepared by Ernst & Young for the period
ended 31 December 2011 to 31 December 2015 on the audited account and the management
accounts for the year ended 31 December 2016 of the Sponsor;

on pages 119 - 120, an extract of the Rating Report on the Sponsor by Global Credit Rating Co
for incorporation in this Shelf Prospectus; and

on page 123, the legal opinion issued by the Solicitors to the Issue on the probable effect of
claims and litigation against the Sponsor on the Programme

Validity Period of the Shelf Prospectus and Delivery of Documents:

This Shelf Prospectus is valid until 16 August 2020. No Bonds shall be issued on the basis of this Shelf
Prospectus read together with the applicable Pricing Supplement later than three (3) years after the
Issue Date indicated on the cover of this Shelf Prospectus. This Shelf Prospectus can be obtained at
the office of the Issuer, Sponsor and the Issuing Houses throughout its validity period.
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PARTIES TO THE PROGRAMME

Directors and Company Secretary of the Sponsor

Chairman Mr. Osarenren Emokpae
LAPC Place _D—%“

18, Dawson Road,
Benin, Edo State

Managing Director Dr. Godwin Ehigiamusoe
LAPC Place

18, Dawson Road, g \,k\x_\s

’ Benin, Edo State

Director (Executive) Mrs. Faith Osazuwa-Ojo
LAPO Place

18, Dawson Road,

Benin, Edo State @
Director (Executive) Mrs. Josephine Nwachukwu

LAPQO Place —

18, Dawson Road, C&E}”—Xﬂm

Benin, Edo State

Director (Non-Executive) Mr. Andrew Ejoh
LAPO Place f
18, Dawson Road, %_\/_\]
. Benin, Edo State
Director (Non-Executive) Mr. Osayande Ede

LAPO Place Ci: (Ao WAL’
18, Dawson Road,
Benin, Edo State

Director (Non-Executive) Mrs. Osaretin Demuren
LAPO Place
18, Dawson Road, - _Tjrj
Benin, Edo State
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Directors and Company Secretary of the Sponsor
Director (Non-Exec utive) Mr. Rene Azokly |
Z ~ |

Director ( Non-Executive)

Company Secretary

LAPO Place
18, Dawson Road,
Benin, Edo State

Mrs. Hannatu Yaro
LAPO Place

18, Dawson Road,
Benin, Edo State

f(ﬂayf«ﬁg

Ms. Cynthia Ikponmwosa

LAPO Place
18, Dawson Road,
Benin, Edo State

4(

r-'r

Directors and Company Secretary of the Issuer
Director

Mr. Godwin Ehigiamusoe

Director

Director

Company Secretary

LAPO Place ~——
18, Dawson Road,

Benin, Edo State

Mrs. Faith Osazuwa-Ojo

LAPO Place

18, Dawson Road,
Benin, Edo State

Ms. Josephine Nwachukwu

LAPO Place
18, Dawson Road,
Benin, Edo State

{idoper

Ms. Cynthia Ikponmwosa

LAPO Place
18, Dawson Road,
Benin, Edo State
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Professional Parties to the Programme

Lead Issuing House FCMB Capital Markets Limited “
6" Floor, First City Plaza i
44, Marina o T
Lagos ﬂfa by fq %_L-
Joint Issuing House United Capital Plc. %{
12" Floor, UBA House
57, Marina %—rﬁ Rt
Lagos
Solicitor to the Issue Banwo & Ighodalo  {fy<

98 Awolowo Road o 2 &7l M. vSe #Q.actwv
South West, Ikoyi
Lagos

Solicitor to the Issusr Tokunbo Orimobi LP M"“—M
Plot 19638 Buraimoh Kenku Street

Off Oyin Jolayemi Street [V LCH A€ [ URAMOH
Victoria Island

Lagos
Solicitor to the Trustees Aluko & Oyebode W‘ﬂmﬁd/ﬁ‘%

1, Murtala Muhammed Drive
Ikoyi Lot a fi\)w}‘j@i)

Lagos

Trustee FEN Trustees Limited

16-18 Keffi Street, Off Awolowo Road
b SW Ikoyi

Lagos
Issuer's Auditor Akintola Williams Deloitte

Civic Towers & Towmed
Plot GA 1,0zumba Mbadiwe Avenue

Victoria Island

Adekunle Awojobi

Lagos
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Sponsor's Auditor

Rating Agency

Lo
tpd £ &

Reporting Accountant
Registrars

Receiving Banks

Professional Parties to the Programme

 Lagos

Akintola Williams Deloitte

Civic Towers ﬁM‘a’" J
Plot GA 1,0zumba Mbadiwe Avenue &f‘j"‘ .

Victoria Island

Lagos

Global Credit Ratings Co. Seum
17" Floor, New Africa House _

31 Marina ‘

AR CAUNRIY

Lagos ) i
Ernst & Young I{,.o/

10" Floor, UBA House ‘- J

57, Marina

Lagos “x“ A'}g_"lpﬁ*f ﬂ(f\{,, [ QDVL‘

CardinalStone Registrars Limited
358 Herbert Macaulay Way m Fae Pleds |
Yaba .
Lagos |
First Bank of Nigeria Limite |
Samuel Asabia House
35, Marina

Lagos W:
First City Monument Bank Limlted/% ;::K‘ ) L_‘

Primose Towers
17A, Tinubu Street
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TRANSACTION OVERVIEW

This section contains summarnsed information of aspects of the Programme and characlenistics of the Bonds. Neither is this
summary exhaustive nor does of purport fo be a complete or professional rewew of the nvestment sifualion regarding the
possible acquisition of the Bonds. which you may currently be considenng. This summary shouwld be read as an infroduction
fo s Shelf Prospectus. as such, it should be read in conjunction with the remainder of this Shelf Prospectus and the
Supplemantary Shell Prospectus andfor Pricing Supplement. Invesiors should read the entire Shelfl Prospectus carefully,
especially the risks imvolved i nvesting in the Bonds which are discussed under "Risk Factors” commencing on page 62

Description of Transaction Structure

The Issuer, LAPO MFB SPV Pic, is a special purpose vehicle set up specifically to finance the
Sponsor's funding requirements, by issuing Bonds to the public. Accordingly, the net proceeds of all
issuances under the Programme will be on-lent to the Sponsor via the purchase of debt securities
issued by the Sponsor (“the LAPO Bonds”) to the Issuer in accordance with the terms of the Master
Bonds Purchase Agreement (the "MBPA") between the Issuer, the Trustee and the Sponsor dated 16
August 2017

Utilisation of the Issue Proceeds

Pursuant to the MBPA entered into between the Sponsor, the Issuer and the Trustee, the Issuer shall
utilize the net proceeds of the Bonds to purchase the LAPO Bonds from the Sponsor

Servicing of the Bonds

The semi-annual payment of Coupons and the scheduled repayment of principal, in accordance with
the amortization schedule in the Supplementary Shelf Prospectus, will be serviced with payments
received from the Sponsor on the LAPO Bonds issued in accordance with the terms of the MBPA.

Undertaking

The Bonds are backed by an Undertaking issued by LAPO Microfinance Bank Limited in favour of the
Trustee on behalf of Bondholders supporting all the obligations of the Issuer under the Programme

lustration of Issuance Programme

Bond issuer rating

Bond issue
rating
B 1 2 1 ] Naira Naira
¥ ¥ ¥ vV ¥ I— -
b E 1 | LAPO MFB SPV LAPO Microfinance
PLC Bank Limited
Bondholders LAPO SPV Bond LAPO Bond

& e
Agministers

payrnent
obhigalions

interest & Principal payment
Trustees to LAPO MFB SPV

Interest &
Frincipal paymrent
to Bondholders
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SUMMARY OF THE PROGRAMME

other documents, if any, incorporated by reference inlo this Shelf Prospectus

Issuer: LAPO MFB SPV PLC

Sponsor: LAPO Microfinance Bank Limited

Programme A Debt Issuance Programme being undertaken by LAPO MFB SPV Plc
Description: through which a Bond or a series of Bonds will be issued,

The Programme covers convertible and non-convertible bonds, senior or
subordinated andlor unsecured bonds, fixed rate bonds, floating rate
bonds, reverse floating bonds, zero coupon bonds and any combinations
thereof, with a minimum tenor of 1 year, all of which shall be denominated
in Naira or in such other currency, may be repaid by amortising or bullet
répayment, as may be agreed between the Issuing Houses and the Issuer
and specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement.

No Bonds shall be offered on the basis of this Shelf Prospectus or a Pricing
Supplement after the expiration of the three (3) year validity period of the
Shelf Prospectus.

The Bonds shall be constituted by the Programme Trust Deed and the
relevant Series Trust Deed(s). The provisions of the Programme Trust
Deed shall apply separately and independently to the Bonds, provided that
any terms and conditions relevant to additional Bonds, if any, under the
Programme shall be governed by the relevant Series Trust Deed(s).

Programme Size: N20,000,000,000 (Twenty Billion Naira only) aggregate principal amount
of Bonds issued and outstanding at any one time

Lead and Joint Issuing o ; _ )
FCMB Capital Markets Limited and United Capital Plc respectively
House/Book Runner:

Programme Trustee:  FBN Trustees Limited

Shelf Prospectus Page | 22
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Use of Proceeds:

Maturity Date:
Payment Date:

Method of Issue:

Issuance in Series:

Interest Rates:

Currency of Debt
Securities:

Fixed Rate Bonds:

Floating Rate Bonds:

Shelf Prospectus

Proceeds from all issuances under the Programme will go towards
purchasing LAPO Bonds issued by the Sponsor.

As specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement
As specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement

Bonds under this Programme may be issued and sold by way of a public
offer, private placement, book build process, or any other methods
permitted by the SEC as specified in each relevant Pricing Supplement

The Bonds will be issued in series and each Series may comprise one or
more tranches issued on different dates. The Bonds in each Series will be
subject to identical terms, whether as to currency or maturity or otherwise,
except that the Issue Date, the Issue Price, Coupon Commencement
Dates may be different. Details applicable to each Series will be specified
in the relevant Pricing Supplement.

Bonds may be interest-bearing or non-interest bearing. Interest (if
applicable) may be fixed or floating rate as indicated in relevant Pricing
Supplement(s).

The Bonds shall be denominated in Naira (N) or any other currency as may
be agreed between the Issuer, Sponsor and the Issuing House(s) and
specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, subject to compliance with
all applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

Fixed Rate Bonds will bear Coupons which will be payable in arrears on
each Coupon Payment Date as may be specified in the relevant Pricing
Supplement(s).

Finating Rate Bonds will bear interest at a rate on such basis as may be
agreed between the Issuer, the Sponsor and Issuing Houses as Is
specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement. The basis of calculating the
amounts of interest payable may be by reference to a variety of financial
instruments, currency exchange rate or any other index or formula or as
otherwise provided in the relevant Pricing Supplement.
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Index-Linked Bonds:

Zero Coupon Bonds:

Other Bonds:

Issue Price:

Denominations:

Event of Default:

Form of Bonds:

Tenor:

Shelf Prospectus

The Issuer may offer Bonds which provide for payments of principal or
interest which are linked to a currency, securities exchange or
commodities exchange index or other index as stated in the relevant
Pricing Supplement. Specific provisions regarding the manner in which
such payments are to be calculated and made will be set forth in the
relevant Pricing Supplement.

Zero coupon bonds may be issued at a discount to par and will not bear
interest.

Terms applicable to High Interest Bonds, low interest bonds, step-up
Bonds, Deep discount bond, Step-Down Bonds, dual currency bonds, and
any other type of Bonds which the Issuer, the Sponsor and the Issuing
Houses may agree to issue under the Programme, subject to compliance
with all applicable relevant laws, regulations and directives, as set out in
the relevant Pricing Supplement.

The Bonds may be issued at their principal amount or at a premium or
discount to their principal amount, as specified in the relevant Pricing

Supplement.

The Bonds will be issued in such denominations as may be agreed
between the Issuer, the Sponsor and the Issuing Houses and as specified
in the relevant Pricing Supplement, subject to compliance with all
applicable legal and regulatory requirements

The events of default under this Programme are as specified in the
Programme Trust Deed and relevant Series Trust Deed(s).

The Bonds shall be issued in registered form and shall be transferable
The issue and ownership of the Bonds will be effected and evidenced by
the Particulars of the Bond being entered in the Register by the Registrar
and the Bonds being electronically registered in the CSCS account of the
Bondhalder,

The Bonds will have such maturities as may be agreed between the Issuer,
LAPO and the Issuing Houses, subject to such minimum or maximum
maturities as may be allowed or required from time to time by the relevant
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Other Terms and
Conditions:

Interest and Principal
Payment:
Principal Redemption:

Early Redemption:

Redemption
Amounts:

Taxation:

Sponsor's Rating:

Bond Ratings:

central bank (or equivalent body) or any laws or regulations applicable to
the Issuer or LAPO. The tenor of a particular series of Bonds shall be
specified accordingly in the relevant Pricing Supplement

Terms applicable to each Series as specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement other than those specifically contemplated under this Shelf
Prospectus which the Issuer and the Issuing Houses may agree 1o issue
under the Programme subject to compliance with all relevant applicable
laws and regulations.

The Issuer will pay interest and principal (if applicable) on each Series to
unit holders on the dates stated in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

Each Series will be redeemed on the date(s) specified in the relevant
Pricing Supplement.

Early redemption will be permitted only to the extent specified in the
relevant Pricing Supplement and then only subject to any applicable legal
or regulatory limitations.

The relevant Pricing Supplement will specify the redemption amount or, if
applicable the basis for calculating the redemption amounts payable

The Bonds issued under the Programme are tax exempt in line with the
tax exemptions contained in the Companies Income Tax (Exemption of
Bonds and Short Term Government Securities) Order 2011, the VAT
(Exemption of Proceeds of the Disposal of Government and Corporate
Securities) Order 2011 and the PIT (Amendment) Act 2011. The CIT and
VAT exemptions orders became effective on January 2,2012 and are valid
for a period of ten (10) years, while the exemption under the PIT
(Amendment) Act 2011 is for an indefinite duration. Please refer to the
section on Tax Considerations on page 37 for a detailed description of the

tax considerations.
Rating Agency Year Credit Rating
GCR 2017 BBB+

Rating for each Series under the Programme will be stated in the relevant
Pricing Supplement.

Shelf Prospectus
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Ranking:

Status of the Bonds:

Listing:

Pricing Supplement/
Supplementary Shelf
Prospectus:

The Bonds may be senior or subordinated Bonds as indicated in the
relevant Pricing Supplement.

Senior ranking Bonds shall constitute direct, unsubordinated (subject to
the provisions of the Programme Trust Deed) obligations of the lssuer and
shall at all times rank pan passu, and without any preference, among
themselves. The payment obligations of the Issuer in respect of principal
and any interest thereon shall at all times rank at least equally with all other
unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness and monetary obligations of
the Issuer, present and future, but in the event of insolvency, only to the
extent permitted by applicable laws relating to creditors' rights.

Subordinated Bonds are direct, subordinated obligations of the Issuer and
rank pari passu, and without any preference, among themselves and at
least pari passu with the claims of all holders of Subordinated
Indebtedness as provided for in the Programme Trust Deed. In the event
of the winding-up of the Issuer, the claims of the Trustee and the Holders
of Subordinated Bonds against the Issuer to payment of principal and
interest in respect of the Subordinated Bonds will be subordinated to the
Senior Indebtedness in the manner provided in the Programme Trust
Deed.

The Bonds qualify as securities in which Trustees may invest under the
Trustees Act. In addition, the Bonds are securities in which PFA may invest
under the Pension Act and the Regulations on Investment of pension fund
assets issued by National Pension Commission.

Each Series of the Bonds may be listed on the NSE, and/or admitted to
listing, trading and/for quotation by any other listing authority (i.e. FMDQ
OTC). stock exchange andior quotation system as may be agreed
between the Issuer and Issuing Houses, as specified in the relevant Pricing
Supplement.

The Final terms of each Series will be set forth in a Pricing
Supplement/SSP

Shelf Prospectus
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Negative Pledge:

Credit Enhancement:

Governing Law:

Transaction
Documents include
(but not limited to):

The lssuer hereby covenants that for so long as any portion of the Senior
Bonds issued under this Programme remains outstanding, it shall not
create or permit to subsist any charge, mortgage, lien, pledge or other
security interest or encumbrance upon any of its assets or any other party
or any other indebtedness guaranteed by it without the prior written
consent of the Trustee. Where the Trustee so consents, the Issuer shall at
the same time as the creation of such indebtedness grant to the Trustee
(for the benefit of the Bondholders) the same or equivalent security as is
granted in relation to the indebtedness.

As stated in the applicable Pricing Supplement/SSP and/or Supplemental
Trust Deed. Bonds to be issued may include additional comforts in the form
of debenture, security, collateral, insurance, third party guarantee,
subordination or credit tranching or any other arrangement to reduce the
credit risks of the Bonds.

The Bond lIssued under the Programme and all related contractual
documentation will be governed by, and construed in accordance with the
laws of the Federal Republic of Nigeria

. Shelf Prospectus,

. Supplementary Shelf Prospectus or Pricing Supplement,
. Programme & Supplementary Trust Deed.

. Master Bonds Purchase Agreement,

. Deed of Covenant

. Reporting Accountants’ report,

= Salicitors’ report on claims and litigation;

. Vending Agreement; and

. Underwriting Agreement (where applicable)

Shelf Prospectus
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE PROGRAMME

The following is the text of the lerms and conditions which (subjfect fo amendment and as complated, modified, supplemented,
vanied or replaced, in whole or in Part, by the condilions which form part of the relevant Series Trust Deed, Supplemaniary
Shelf Prospectus andfor Pricing Supplement, save for the italicized text) will be deemed incorporated into the Bonds,

The provisions of these Terms and Conditions of the Bonds which are apphcable to the Bonds issued under the Programme
shall be deemed to be completed by the information supplied in the relevant Series Trust Deed Any provisions of the Senes
Trust Deed, Supplemeantary Shelf Frospectus modifying, supplementing or replacing in whols or in part, the prowvisions of these
Conditions, shall be so construed and all provisions of these Terms and Condifions which are mapphicable to the Bonds of any
Senes shall be deemed deleled from these Conditions as required lo give effect fo the retevant Series Trust Deed,
Supplementary Shelf Prospocius or Pricing Supplement

The Bonds

The Bonds are hereby constituted under this Programme Trust Deed.

Any Series of Bonds which is to be created and issued pursuant to this Programme Trust Deed shall
be constituted by, be subject to, and have the benefit of a Series Trust Deed between the Issuer, the
Sponsor and the Trustee. The Issuer and the Sponsor shall execute and deliver such Series Trust Deed
to the Trustee containing such provisions (whether or not corresponding to any of the provisions
contained in the Programme Trust Deed) as the Trustee may require. Each Series Trust Deed shall set
out the form of the Tranche of Bonds to be 0 constituted thereby and shall be accompanied by such
supporting authorisations and/or approvals as may be required by the Trustee.

The Bondholders are entitled to the benefit of and are bound Dy, and are deemed to have notice of all
the provisions of the Programme Trust Deed and the relevant Series Trust Deed applicable to them.

1.

1.1

1.2

CURRENCY, FORM, DENOMINATION AND TITLE
Currency, Form and Denomination

The Bonds shall be in registered form or as may be specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement. The Bonds issued under the Programme may be fixed rate bonds, floating rate

notes, zero-coupon bonds and any combinations thereof all of which shall be denominated in ©

Naira,

The Bonds will be delivered to the Bondholders in dematerialised {(uncertificated, book-entry)
form which shall be registered with a separate securities identification code with the CSCS. The
Bondholders may deal in the Bonds in accordance with the CSCS procedures and guidelines.

Title
Title to the Bonds will pass only by registration in the Register

Except as may subseguently be agreed between the parties in a Series Trust Deed the
Bondholder (or his legal representative) shall be deemed and regarded as the legal and
beneficial owner of the Bonds registered in his name for all purposes including but not limited
to the payment of the Principal Amount, premium (if any) and Coupon,
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2.1

22

31

3.2

4.1

Statements issued by the CSCS as to the aggregate number of such Bonds standing to the
credit of the CSCS account of any person shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes save
in the case of manifest error and such person shall be treated by the Issuer, the Trustee and
the Registrar as the legal and beneficial owner of such aggregate number of Bonds for all
purposes.

STATUS OF THE BONDS

The Bends shall constitute direct, unconditional obligations of the Issuer and shall rank pari
passu and without any preference among themselves (subject to modifications in any Series
Trust Deed). The payment obligations of the Issuer in respect of principal and interest thereon
shall save for such obligations as may be preferred by applicable legislation relating to creditor's
rights, at all times rank at least equally with all other unsecured indebtedness and monetary
obligations of the Issuer, present and future.

Amounts payable in respect of the Bonds shall constitute an obligation by the Issuer to pay to
the Bondholders to the extent of the amounts actually received and retained (after deduction of
statutory fees and all other SEC approved expenses) by or for the account of the Issuer pursuant
to the LAPO Bonds.

REDEMPTION

The aggregate Principal Amount of the Bonds and any Coupon (accrued up to but unpaid as of
the Maturity Date) shall be paid by the Issuer on the Maturity Date or on such earlier date as
the Bonds may become due and repayable in accordance with this Deed.

In relation to any Tranche of the Bonds, in the event of a Capital Disqualification Event of the
Sponsor, the Issuer may, at its option, having given not less than 30 nor more than 45 days’
notice (or such other period as may be specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement) to the
Bondholders in accordance with Condition 11 (Notices) (which notice shall be irrevocable and
shall specify the date fixed for redemption), at any time redeem all, or if so provided, some of
the Bonds with interest accrued to but excluding the date of redemption. Prior to the publication
of any notice of redemption pursuant to this Condition 4.2 , the Issuer shall deliver to the Trustee
(i) a copy of the circular, notification, directive or other official policy communique evidencing
such Capital Disqualification Event of the Sponsor (a “CBN Communication”) and (i) a
certificate signed by two directors of the Sponsor stating that (A) the Sponsor has consulted
with the CBN following the release of the relevant CBN Communication, (B} (if required by the
Applicable Banking Regulations) the CEN has given its approval or the approval of the CBN is
not required and (C) a Capital Disqualification Event of the Sponsor has occurred, and the
Trustee shall be entitled to accept the certificate as sufficient evidence of the satisfaction of the
conditions in this Condition 4.2, in which case it shall be conclusive and binding on the
Bondholders,

PAYMENTS

Payments of the Principal Amount and Coupon (where applicable) will be made in the relevant
currency and by credit to the specified bank account of the Bondholder ar by cheques/warrants
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4.2

4.3

2.1

5.2

drawn on a bank duly licensed by the CBN and mailed by registered post to the address of
record of any Bondholder that does not specify a bank account. Coupon on Bonds due on
Coupon Payment Dates will be paid to the Bondholder shown on the Register of Bonds of a
Tranche at the close of business on the relevant date. The Bondholder shall be the only person
entitied to receive payments in respect of Bonds and the Issuer will be discharged by payment
to, or to the order of, the Bondholder in respect of each amount so paid.

If the due date for payment of any amount in respect of the Bonds is not a Business Day, then
the Bondhalder thereof shall not be entitied to payment of the amount due until the next
succeeding Business Day unless the next succeeding Business Day falls on the next calendar
manth, in which case the due date will be the first preceding day that is a Business Day, and
the Bondholder shall not be entitled to any further Coupon or other payment in respect of any
such delay. For the purpose of this paragraph, “Business Day" means any day on which banks —
are open for business in the Federal Republic of Nigeria and in the case of transfer to or from
an account held by a non-resident investor, in the place where such bank account is maintained.

Any reference in these Conditions to Coupon in respect of the Bonds shall be deemed to
include, as applicable, any additional amounts which may be payable with respect to interest
under Clause 7 or under any undertaking or covenant given in addition.

RESTRICTIVE COVENANT

For so long as any Bond remains outstanding, the Issuer shall not create or permit to subsist
any charge, mortgage, lien, pledge or other security interest or encumbrance upon any of its
assels or any other party or any other indebtedness guaranteed by it without the prior written
consent of the Trustee. Where the Trustee so consents, the Issuer shall at the same time as
the creation of such indebtedness grant to the Trustee (for the benefit of the Bondholders) the
same or equivalent security as is granted in relation to the indebtedness,

Save as provided above, so long as any Bond remains outstanding, the Issuer, without the prior
written consent of the Trustee, shall not, inter alia, incur any other indebtedness for borrowed
maneys, other than the issue of bonds for the zole purpose of purchasing debt securities issuec”™
by, or the making of any loan to, the Sponsor, engage in any other business other than acquiring
and holding the LAPO Bond and any security in respect of the Bonds, or purchasing debt
securities issued by, or any future loans to the Sponsor or any other issue of notes as aforesaid
and performing any act incidental to or necessary in connection with the foregoing, and in
particular, the Issuer shall not declare any dividends, have any subsidiaries or employees,
purchase, own, lease or otherwise acquire any real property (including office premises or like
facilities), consolidate or merge with any other person or convey or transfer its properties or
assets substantially as an entity to any person (otherwise than as contemplated in this Deed
and the relevant LAPO Bond), issue any shares, give any guarantee or assume any other
liability, or, subject to Nigerian law, petition for any winding-up or bankruptcy.
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7.1

7.2

TAXATION

All payments in respect of the Bonds and Coupons by or on behalf of the Issuer shall be made
without withholding or deduction for, or on account of, any present or future taxes, duties,
assessments or governmental charges of whatever nature (*Taxes”) imposed or levied by oron
behalf of or within Nigeria, unless the withholding or deduction of the Taxes is required by law.

PRESCRIPTION

Claims against the Issuer for payment in respect of the Bonds shall be prescribed and become
void unless made within & (six) years from the appropriate Relevant Date in respect of the
Principal and Coupon,

As used in these Conditions, “Relevant Date" in respect of any payment means the date on
which such payment first becomes due or (if any amount of the money payable is improperly
withheld or refused) the date on which payment in full of the amount outstanding is made or (if
earlier) the date 7 days after that on which notice is duly given to the Bondholders that such
payment will be made,

EVENTS OF DEFAULT
Events of Default Relating to the Bonds

If any of the following events (“Events of Default”) occur, the Trustee at its discretion may,
and if so requested in writing by holders of at least one-fifth in nominal amount of the Bonds
then outstanding or if so directed by a Special Resolution shall give notice to the Issuer at its
specified office that the Bonds are immediately repayable at their Principal Amount, whereupon
the Bonds together with accrued Coupon (if any) to the date of payment shall become
immediately due and payable;

(i) Non-Payment: default is made for more than 10 Business Days (in the case of Coupon
payments) or 10 Business Days (in the case of the Principal Amount) in the payment on
the due date of Coupon or the Principal Amount in respect of any Tranche of Bonds,; or

(ii) Breach of Other Obligations: the Issuer or Sponsor does not perform or comply with
any one or more of its other obligations in respect of the Bonds or this Programme Trust
Deed which default is incapable of remedy or is not in the opinion of the Trustee
remedied within 10 Business Days after notice of such default shall have been given to
the Issuer by the Trustee at its specified office; or

(i) Withdrawal of Licence: the banking license of the Sponsor is terminated, revoked or
suspended and is not replaced or any license from any governmental authority which
the Sponsor holds and which is necessary for it to carry on its business, is terminated,
revoked or suspended and in any such case is not replaced within 90 days thereafter,
or

(iv) Release of Sponsor: If there shall be any release of the Sponsor from its obligations
under the undertaking provided in this Deed, other than with .tphe app[qv_al ﬂf_th_g Trus_tg_e_
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(1x)

and a Special Resolution of the Bondholders, including any release by operation of law,
or any failure by the Sponsor to make payment when demanded by the Trustee in
accordance with the undertaking aforesaid.

Cross-Default: Where the aggregate amount of the relevant indebtedness, guarantees
and indemnities, in respect of any of the following events listed below in this paragraph
(v) have occurred, and the amount due is equal to or exceeds N2,000,000,000 (Two
Billion Maira):

(a) any other present or future indebtedness of the Issuer or the Sponsor (or any of
its Material Subsidiaries) for or in respect of moneys borrowed or raised becomes
due and payable prior to its stated maturity by reason of any default on the part
of the lssuer or Sponsor, or

-

(b} any such indebtedness is not paid when due or, as the case may be, within any
applicable grace period as may be provided in the relevant finance document, or

(c) the Issuer or Sponsor (or any of its Material Subsidiaries) fails to pay when due
any amount payable by it under any present or future guarantee for, or indemnity
in respect of, any moneys borrowed or raised; or

Enforcement Proceedings: a distress, attachment, execution or other legal process is
levied, enforced or sued out on or against a material part of the property, assets or
revenues of the Issuer or Sponsor (or any of its Material Subsidiaries) and is not
discharged or stayed within 90 days; or

Security Enforced: any mortgage, charge, pledge, lien or other encumbrance, present
or future, created or assumed by the Issuer or the Sponsor (or any of its Material
Subsidiaries) over a material part of the Issuer or Sponsor's property, assets or
revenues, becomes enforceable and any step is taken to enforce it (including the taking

of possession or the appointment of a receiver, manager or other similar person); ar
F s

Insolvency: the Issuer or the Sponsor (or any of its Material Subsidiaries) is (or is
deemed by law or a court to be) insolvent or bankrupt or unable to pay its debts, stops,
suspends or threatens to stop or suspend payment of all or a material part of (or of a
particular type of) its debts, proposes or makes a general assignment or an arrangement
or composition with or for the benefit of the relevant creditors in respect of any of such
debts or a moratorium is agreed or declared in respect of or affecting all or any part of
(or of a particular type of) the debts of the Sponsor (or any of its Material Subsidiaries);
ar

Winding-up: an order is made or an effective resolution passed for the Winding-up or
dissolution of the Issuer or the Sponsor (or any of its Material Subsidiaries), or the Issuer
or the Sponsor (or any of its Material Subsidiaries) shall apply or petition for a Winding-
up or administration order in respect of itself or ceases or through an official action of its
board of directors threaten to cease to carry on all or a substantial part of its business

or operations, in each case except for the purpose of and followed by a reconstruction,
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9.1

8.2

amalgamation, reorganisation, merger or consolidation (i) on terms approved by the
Trustee or by a Special Resolution of the Bondholders or (i) in the case of a Material
Subsidiary, whereby the undertaking and assets of the Material Subsidiary are
transferred to or otherwise vested in the Issuer or the Sponsor (or any of its subsidiaries),
or

(x) Nationalisation: any step is taken by any person with a view to the seizure, compulsory
acquisition, expropriation or nationalisation of all or a material part of the assets of the
Issuer or the Sponsor (or any of its Material Subsidiaries); or

(xi)  Analogous Events: any event occurs that under the laws of any relevant jurisdiction
has an analogous effect to any of the events referred to in any of the foregoing
paragraphs.

Provided that on the happening of any of the event specified in (7.1(i)) and (7.1(ii})
above, the Bonds shall not be declared immediately payable unless and until the Trustee
shall have first served on the Issuer a preliminary notice requiring the Issuer to make the
relevant payment in arrears, with interest or to remove, discharge or pay out to the
satisfaction of the Trustee or to perform and observe the covenant or provisions the
breach whereof has been committed, or threatened and the |ssuer shall have failed or
neglected for a period of ten (10) Business Days to comply with such notice.

PROCEEDINGS TO ENFORCE PAYMENT

At any time after the Bonds shall have become payable, the Trustee may at its discretion, (and
shall upon the request in writing of the registered holders of at least 10% (ten percent) in
Principal Amount of the Bonds or upon being so directed by a Special Resolution), without
further notice institute such proceedings as it may think fit to enforce payment of the Bonds, the
Coupon Amount and any other amounts due in respect of the Bonds (subject in each case to
being indemnified, andfor provided with security to its satisfaction),.

No Bondholder shall have any right to institute any proceeding, judicial or otherwise, with
respect to the Bonds, this Trust Deed, any Series Trust Deed or any other Programme
Document, ar for the appointment of a receiver or trustee, or for any other remedy hereunder,
or any other Programme Document to which the Trustee is a party, unless:

(i} such Bondholder previously shall have given to the Trustee written notice of a continuing
Event of Default with respect to the Bonds and of the continuance thereof, as
hereinbefore provided,

(i) the holders of not less than 10% (ten per cent) in aggregate Principal Amount of the
Bonds then outstanding shall have made written request upon the Trustee to institute
such action or proceedings in its own name as Trustee;

(iii) such Bondholder or Bondholders have offered to the Trustee indemnity and/or security
satisfactory to the Trustee against the costs, expenses and liabilities to be incurred in
compliance with such request;
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{iv)  the Trustee for 45 days after its receipt of such notice, request and offer of indemnity
and/or security has failed to institute any such proceeding or take such action hereunder
or under such other Programme Document: and

iv) no written direction inconsistent with such written request has been given to the Trustee
during such 45 day period by the Bondholders of not less than a majority in Principal
Amount of the Bonds.

9.3  The Trustee shall also file a notice of any default and remedies being pursued with the SEC
within 30 days of the occurrence of an Event of Default.

10. NOTICES

101 Notices to the Bondholders f \|

All notices to the Bondholders will be valid if mailed to them at their respective addresses of
record in the relevant register of Bonds of a Tranche maintained by the Registrar. The Issuer
shall also ensure that notices are duly given or published in a manner which complies with the
SEC Rules and the rules and regulations of the FMDQ or any securities exchange or other
relevant authority on which the Bonds are for the time being listed. Any notice shall be deemed
to have been given on the second day after being so mailed or on the date of publication in
national newspapers, or if published more than ance or on different dates, on the date of the
first publication.

10.2  Notices from the Bondholders

(i} Notices to be given by any Bondholder shall be in writing and given by lodging the same
with the Registrar.

(i) Any change of name or address on the part of the Bondholder shall forthwith be notified
to the Issuer and subsequently, the Register shall be aitered accordingly.

11.  MEETINGS OF BONDHOLDERS

The Deed contains provisions for convening meetings of Bondholders to consider any matter
affecting their interests, including the sanctioning by Special Resolution (as defined in the
Programme Trust Deed) of a modification of any of these Conditions.

Such a meeting may be convened by Bondholders holding not less than 25% (Twenty Five per
cent) in nominal amount of the Bonds for the time being outstanding. The quorum for any
meeting convened to consider a Special Resolution shall be two or more persons holding or
representing by proxy at least 50%, (Fifty per cent) of the nominal value of the Bonds for the
time being outstanding unless the business of such meeting includes consideration of
proposals, inter alia;

{i) to amend the dates of maturity or redemption of the Bonds or any date for payment of
Coupon or Coupon Amounts on the Bonds; or
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13.

(i) to reduce or cancel the nominal amount of, or any premium payable on redemption of,
the Bonds; or

{iii) to reduce the Coupon rates in respect of the Bonds or to vary the method or basis of
calculating the rate or rates or Coupon Amounts or the basis for calculating any Coupon
Amount in respect of the Bonds; or

(iv) if a minimum and/or a maximum Coupon rate or redemption amount is specified in
respect of the Bonds, to reduce any such minimum and/or maximum; or

(v) to vary the currency or currencies of payment or denomination of the Bonds of a
Tranche; or

{vi)  to modify the provisions conceming the quorum required at any meeting of Bondholders
or the majority required to pass the Special Resolution,

in which case the necessary guorum shall be two or more persons holding or
representing not less than 75% (seventy five per cent), or at any adjourned meeting not
less than 25% (twenty five per cent), in nominal amount of the Bonds for the time being
outstanding.

Any Special Resolution duly passed shall be binding on the Bondholders (whether or not they
were present at the meeting at which such resolution was passed).

MODIFICATION OF THE TRUST DEED

The Trustee may agree with the Issuer and the Sponsor, but subject to the prior review and
approval of the SEC, to (i) any modification of any of the provisions of the Deed which in the
opinion of the Trustee is of a formal, minor or technical nature or is made to correct a manifest
error, and (ii) any other modification (except as mentioned in the Deed), and any waiver or
authorisation of any breach or proposed breach, of any of the provisions of the Deed which in
the opinion of the Trustee is not materially prejudicial to the interests of the Bondholders. Any
such modification, authorisation or waiver shall be binding on the Bondholders and, if the
Trustee so require, such modification shall be notified to the Bondholders, as soon as
practicable.

ENTITLEMENT AND INDEMNIFICATION OF THE TRUSTEE

In connection with the exercise of its functions (including but not limited to those referred to in
this paragraph), the Trustee shall have regard to the interests of the Bondholders as a class
and shall not have regard to the conseguences of such exercise for individual Bondholders and
the Trustee shall not be entitled to require, nor shall any Bondholder be entitled to claim, from
the Issuer, any indemnification or payment in respect of any tax consequence of any such
exercise upon individual Bondholders.

The Programme Trust Deed contains provisions for the indemnification of the Trustee and for
its relief from responsibilities. The Programme Trust Deed also contains provisions pursuant to
which the Trustee is entitled, inter alia, (i) to enter into business transactions with the Issuer
andfor any subsidiary of the Issuer and to act as trustee for the Bondholders of any other
securities issued or guaranteed by, or relating to, the Issuer and/or any subsidiary of the Issuer,
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14,

14.1

14.2

14.3

15.

(ii) to exercise and enforce its rights, comply with its obligations and perform its duties under or
in relation to any such transactions or, as the case may be, any such trusteeship without regard
to the interest of, or consequence for, the Bondholders and {iii) to retain and not be liable to
account for any profit made or any other amount or benefit received thereby or in connection
therewith,

TRUST PROVISIONS
Declaration of Trust

All moneys received by the Trustee in respect of the Bonds or amounts payable under the
Programme Trust Deed shall, despite any appropriation of all or part of them by the Issuer, be
held by the Trustee in trust to apply them in accordance with the provisions of the Programme
Trust Deed.

Representative of Bondholders

The Trustee is the representative of the Bondholders and is authorised to act on behalf of the
Bondholders in accordance with the Conditions and the Programme Trust Deed and is hereby
further authorised to contact the Registrar and/or the CSCS for the purposes of obtaining
information (i) as to the aggregate nominal amount outstanding of any Tranche of Bonds, (i)
relating to the identity of Bondholders, and (iii) for the purposes of giving notices to Bondholders
under Condition 11.

Binding Effect of the Conditions and the Trust Deed

Bondholders are deemed to have accepted and will be bound by the Conditions and the terms
of the Trust Deed.

GOVERNING LAW

The Trust Deed, the Bonds and the Coupons shall be governed by and construed in all respects
in accordance with the laws of the Federal Republic of Nigeria,
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TAX CONSIDERATION

Please note that this information about the tax exempt status of bonds and income accruing there from is meant fo serve oy
as a guide and should not be considered as or deemed 1o be fax advice which can be acled upon by an investor. Investors
are advised lo seek specific tax advice regarding investment in the Bonds from their professional lax advisers.

Under current legislation in Nigeria, the tax consequences of an investment in the Bonds to be issued
under the Programme are quite broad and extensive. These include exemption from Companies
Income Tax, Value Added Tax and Personal Income Tax, by virtue of the Companies Income Tax
(Exemption of Bonds and Short Term Government Securities) Order 2011, the Value Added Tax
(Exemption of Proceeds of the Disposal of Government and Corporate Securities) Order 2011 and the
Personal Income Tax Act (Amendment) Act 2011 respectively. The Companies Income Tax (Exemption
of Bonds and Short Term Government Securities) Order 2011 and the Value Added Tax {Exemption of
Proceeds of the Disposal of Government and Corporate Securities) Order 2011 became effective on
January 2, 2012 and the exemptions thereunder are valid for a period of ten (10) years while the
exemption under the PIT (Amendment) Act 2011 is for an indefinite duration.

Where the maturity of the Bonds exceed 2 January, 2022, withholding tax implications in respect of
such Bonds for the period after 2 January, 2022 will be stated in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

In addition, Bondholders will benefit from the waiver with respect to Capital Gains Tax in the event that
the ten (10) year Capital Gains Tax waiver approved by the Federal Government in March 2010
becomes effective during the life of the Bonds. The value Added Tax (Exemption of Commissions on
Stock Exchange transactions) Order 2014 exempts the imposition of value added tax on:

Commissions earned on traded value of shares;

a
b. Commissions payable to the SEC;

¢. Commissions payable to the NSE: and
d

Commissions payable to the CSCS.

The Value Added Tax (Exemption of Commissions on Stock Exchange transactions) Order 2014 is
valid for a period of five (5) years from July 25, 2014, Accordingly, any commission payable to the SEC,
the NSE and the CSCS in connection with the Programme will be exempt from the imposition of value
added tax till July 26, 2019.
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OVERVIEW OF THE NIGERIAN ECONOMY

have refied on the accuracy of this information without independant verification and make no represanialion as 1o ils accuracy.
1.  Introduction

Nigeria is Africa’s most Populous nation with a population of approximately 178 million as at 2014, and
according to the United Nations. is expected to surpass the population of the United States of America
by 2050. Earlier in August 2016, the Nigerian economy fell to become the second largest economy in
Africa as measured in United States dollars. This is believed to be a consequence of about 429
depreciation in the Naira. The nation's population accounts for 47% of the West African populace with
a year-on-year growth rate of about 2 8% and an ever increasing urbanisation rate. The country's
young, increasingly urban, educated and burgeoning working-age population, which is estimated at
53% of its demography, will drive increasing consumption, and contribute to Nigeria's overall economic
growth. The table below provides a summary of Nigeria's key economic indicators.

Table 1.1: Nigeria's Key Economic Indicators

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Nominal GDP, USD (bn) 457 1 508.0 545.7 486.1 34486 293.9 3125

Economic Indicators

Real GDP Growth (%) 43 54 59 27 -15 1.7 38
Population {mn) 168.2 1728 177.5 1822 187.0 191.8 196.8
Inflation (% y-o-y average) 122 85 8.1 9.0 156 15.8 115

Qil Production, (*000 bid) 2,520 2,367 2,423 2,170 1,802 2,144 2278

Exchange Rate

(NGN/USD) 158.8 159.2 165.2 197.8 25828 35766 38750

Source: BMI, National Bureau of Statistics, Central Bank of Nigeria

2. Gross Domestic Product (GDP)

The Nigerian ecanomy faced numerous challenges which impacted overall economic activity in the past
two years. Sharp declines in the gil price during the course of the year, continued insurgence in the
northern part of Nigeria and renewed unrest in the Niger Delta region throughout the second and third
quarters of 2016 affected economic activities within the country and challenged the ability of
government to address social and economic disparities in the country.

According to the NBS, Nigeria's Gross Domestic Product (GDP) contracted by -1.51% (year-on-year)
in 20186, indicating a real GDP of N67 984 billion.

Shelf Prospectus Page | 38

1],!

)



LAPO MFB SPV PLGC - N20 Billion Debt Issuance Programme

Nigeria's economy emerged the 26th largest economy in the world and the largest in Africa in April
2014. Since then, the country GDP has shrunk by 1.5 percent year on year in the fourth quarter of
2016, compared to a 0.36 percent drop in the previous period and more than market consensus of 1.5
percent decline. It is the first contraction in 20 years due to decline in oil prices. GDP annual growth
rate in Nigeria averaged 4.07 percent from 1982 until 2016 with ranges from 19.17 percent to -7.81
percent in the same period.

3. Foreign Reserves

According to the CBN, Nigeria's gross external reserves stood at 1US$25 8 billion as at, 31 December
2016 representing a 11% year-on-year decline when compared with US$29.1 billion as at 31 December
2016. The decline has been on the back of weak oil prices, the consequent decline in the country's
dollar income as well as the CBN's defensive stance with respect to the Naira. The CBN has introduced
a number of policies over the past months aimed at removing what it terms “unnecessary” demand for
foreign exchange in order to stem the drag on the country's foreign reserves and ensure exchange rate
stability.

Nigeria's external reserve increased by 17% to US330.3 billion in the first quarter of 2017 largely as a
result of the relative peace in the Niger Delta, increasing oil production and increasing global oil prices.
This improvement has helped the CBN to support the Naira. (Source: CBN)

4. Inflation

Nigeria's inflation rate has risen sharply over the past several months from an average of 8.0% in 2015
to an average of 15.6% in 2016. It peaked at 18.72% in January 2017 and dropped to 17.26% in March
2017. The acceleration which has been structural rather than demand-driven could largely be attributed
to the significant increase in consumer prices on the back of tighter fuel supplies, the impact of the
tension in North Eastern Nigeria on food prices and the currency pass-through of the NGM devaluation
onto consumer prices, amongst others. The impact of these factors on the Consumer Price Index {CPI}
have been buffered by a mix of tight monetary and prudent fiscal policy, recent moderation in
commodity prices particularly agro-commeodities and softening aggregate demand which has contained
private consumption and import demand. (Source: NBS)

5. Monetary Policy

The MPR, the benchmark interest rate in the market, is subject to periodical reviews by the MPC in
response to prevailing liquidity conditions- solely in achieving financial stability. At the last meeting held
in March 2017, the MPC decided to continue its tight monetary policy stance amidst stagfiation by
maintaining the MPR at 14.00% with asymmetric window adjusted at +200 and -500 basis points around
the MPR. The Cash Reserve Requirements (CRR) of banks and liquidity ratio were retained at 22.50%
and 30.00% respectively.

The current MPR rate continues to reflect the CBN's implementation of a tight monetary policy aimed
at containing the growth of monetary aggregates in order to achieve monetary and price stability. It has
been the MPC's stance to combat inflation and bring it down to single digit following a sharp increase
in inflation, exchange rate pass through, electricity tariff hike and fuel shortages in 2016.

Shelf Prospectus Page | 39



LAPO MFB SPV PLC — N20 Billion Debt Issuance Programme

6. Fiscal Policy

The improvement in the overall budgetary position prior to 2015 due to the oil-windfall quickly reversed
as a result of weaker crude prices. The drop in crude oil prices has battered the currency of this oil-
dependent country and caused a ballooning of the fiscal deficit, further exacerbated by inadequate
government policies,

In a quest to actualize the Federal Government developmental objective, the expansionary 2017 budget
which is focused on fiscal consolidation, including economic growth and employment generation which
should result in a fiscal deficit of 2.2% of GDP from an estimated 3.2% of GDP in 2016

Histerically, Nigeria has traditionally run only a small budget deficit, and its debt levels are low in
comparison to other Sub-Saharan African (SSA) markets. However. the 2017 NGNBtm expenditure
budget (approximately NGN1.5trn increase on the previous year) is expected to be financed through
borrowing on the domestic and international markets, and also through loans from multilateral financial
institutions such as the World Bank.

7. Debt Profile

External Debt: The Nigerian Debt Management Office (DMO) disclosed that the country's external
debt as at the end of 31 December 2016 was c. USD11.4 billion representing an increase of ¢. 10
percent when compared with its foreign borrowings of USD3.7 billion at the end of 2014, This accounts
for approximately 20% of the nation’s total debt stock, with over 70% of the sum owed to multilateral
agencies including the World Bank Group and African Development Bank Group.

Domestic Debt: The DMO puts Nigeria's domestic debt stock at N11 trillion, as at 31 December 2016,
representing an increase of 25% from M8 836 frillion, as at 31 December, 2015. The breakdown of the
total debt stock by instrument type revealed that the FGN Bonds accounted for WN7.5 trillion.
representing 68%; Nigerian Treasury Bills (NTBs) accounted for N3.3 trillion, representing 30% and
Treasury Bonds (TBs) accounted for N215.99billion, representing 2%.

8. Credit Rating

Standard & Poor's (S&P) in its revised credit rating on Migeria in September 2016 lowered its long-term
foreign and local currency sovereign credit ratings to ‘B’ from 'B+' citing a significant decline in oil
production, restrictive forex policies, and delayed fiscal incentives. However, S&P affirmed Nigeria's ‘B’
short-term foreign and local currency sovereign credit ratings with a stable outlook on lang term ratings

The rationale behind this, is the significant weakening of the country's economy which witnessed a
contraction in both the cil and non-oil sectors in the first two quarters of 2016, The oil sector narrowed
the most in the second quarter, falling by close to 20% year-on-year following intensified pipeline
vandalism in the Niger delta. The non-oil sector, which has traditionally been a driver of economic
growth, also dropped in both quarters as industry and financial sectors continued to experience foreign
currency shortages under the restrictive foreign exchange regime in H1 2016.

Similarly, Fitch Ratings Inc. (“Fitch”) downgraded Nigeria's long-term foreign exchange issue default
rating from B+ with a stable outlook as at June 2016 to B+ with a negative outiook as at January 2017
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9., Exchange Rate

Wigeria's exchange rate relative to the US dollar has historically been very sensitive to fluctuations in
the price of crude oil. Decreasing crude oil prices in the recent times has resulted in current account
deficit and the depreciation of the naira. Exchange rates have fluctuated extensively through 2015 and
2016 with no signs of stability. Nigeria at the beginning of 2016 operated a fixed exchange rate regime
with the naira fixed at 196.5 per US dollar. However, due to the large disparity between the current
official rate (N197 — N199 to a dollar) and that of the parallel market N320- N330 to a dollar), the
Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) during its May 2016 meeting unanimously voted to adopt greater
flexibility in exchange rate policy.

In June 2016, the CBN commenced operation of a liberalised single market structure with the
introduction of an autonomous inter-bank market, thereby terminating the pegging of the Naira to the
U.S. dollar. This directive became effective in June 20, 2016 when the official rate moved to N279.5/81
and closed 2016 at W304.50/51. The CBM has succeeded in reducing the disparity between the official
and parallel markets with the official rate at M306.65/% and the parallel market rate at M380.00/3 as at
249 March 2017.
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THE NIGERIAN MICROFINANCE BANKING SECTOR

The Information in this section has been extracted from publicly available data oblained from organizations such as the CBN,
FCMB Capital Markets research, the IMF and/or other third-pary sources as indicated in the tex! believed o be reliable. The
Issuer and its adwisers have relied on the accuracy of this information withoul independent verification and make no
representation as o its accuracy,

Background

The Financial Services sector in Nigeria is @ major contributor to the country's macro-economic
development and is the second largest in SSA after South Africa in terms of market capitalization,
number of companies listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange (NSE), and total assets. The industry was
formerly synonymous with the banking sector but can now be clearly segmented into deposit money
banks (DMBs) and non-bank financial institutions — which comprises of asset management firms,
stockbroking firms, insurance companies, mortgage institutions, discount houses, merchant banks,
microfinance banks and other finance companies.

The supply of financial services within Nigeria is clearly dominated by the DMBs which make up more
than 70% of the industry size, by total assets and market capitalization of the NSE. Nonetheless the
non-banking financial institutions with emphasis on microfinance banks have contributed significantly
to the growth and development of the financial services sectors. The importance of microfinance
banking (MFBs) sector to the development of any country cannot be overemphasised. The sector's
importance in developing economies is seen in its contributions to Micro, Small and Medium Scale
Enterprises (MSMEs). Since it was introduced in Bangladesh in the mid-1970s, several countries have
copied the model of financing, Nigeria inclusive,

MFBs have proven to be a successful practice and plays a major role in the development of many
African nations. In recognition of its importance, the United Nations (UN) declared year 2005 to be “The
international year of microfinance,” in order to remind everyone that millions of people worldwide benefit
from microfinance activities. Its introduction into Nigeria, in 2005, recognises existing informal financial
institutions and brings them within the supervisory purview of the CBN to enhance monetary stability
and to expand the financial institutions in the country to meet the financial requirements of MSMEs as
well as the unbanked rural population.

MFBs were inaugurated in line with Banks and Other Financial Institutions Act (BOFIA) 25, 1991. The
Central Bank of Nigeria designed the Microfinance Policy, Regulatory and Supervisory Framework for
Nigeria 2005 and Revised in April, 2011. Under the framework, microfinance banking is of three
categories: MFBs licensed to operate as a unit bank, and with a minimum of ®20 million paid-up capital
for each branch. MFBs licensed to operate in a state are to operate with a minimum paid-up capital of
K1 billion, later adjusted to 8100 million. National Microfinance Bank are to operate with a minimum
paid-up capital of 82 billion. Other regulatory provisions include even spread agenda, single ownership,
corporate governance and full disclosure in line with Money Laundering Act.

Though MFBs have great potential and hold the key to economic development and poverty eradication
especially at the grassroots level, the sector is challenged by myriad factors. These challenges are
driven by under-performance as the sector has not recorded as much success as its counterparts in
countries like Kenya, Sierra Leone and Bangladesh. Societal distrust arising from people's experiences
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with its precursor, community banks, legal framework and weak capacity are some of the challenges
that caused the sector to underperform.

The country's financial inclusion rate is roughly about 40% with a CBN target of 80% by 2020. Despite
the sector's challenges, MFBs are best positioned to be major facilitators of the financial inclusion drive,
particularly in the rural areas. Below is an illustration of the financial service sector in Nigeria.

Summary of Nigeria's Banking Institutions and Other Financial Services Providers

_Whﬂmﬁm Functions

Commercial Banks  ~ *\ceeptance of deposits
- Granting of loans 21
- Operation of the payment and settliement mechanism.

- Advancement of small loans and/or savings collected to SMEs , even

in the absence of asset-based collateral 1023

Microfinance Banks
- Acceptance of deposit and granting of medium- o long-term loans to
corporate and institutional entities
Merchant Banks - Financing and engaging in activities such as equipment leasing, loan 5
syndication, debt factoring
- Adviser to clients sourcing funds in financial markets

- Contribute to the development of specific sectors of the Economy

Development ; :
P - Provision of soft loans to industrialists and those engaged in agro- 6
Finance Institutions !
allied ventures
- Consumer loans
- Funds Management
- Asset Finance, including Finance Lease and Hire Purchase
Finance Companies o et Finance, Debt Factoring; and Leasing e
- Local & International Trade Finance, including LPO Financing and
Import & Export Finance
Bureaux De Change - Facilitation of foreign currency trading. 2477
Primary Mortgage - ; - .
Institutions - Mobilization of savings for the development of the housing sector 36

Source: Central Bank of Nigeria

Recent Developments

. Housing Microfinance Project: The CBN received Expressions of Interest (EOIs) from 14 MFBs
in the pilot Housing Microfinance (HMF) Scheme. The Nigeria Housing Finance Programme
(NHFP) is expected to select a maximum of eight (8) MFBs to pilot the scheme and engage a
firm as the Task Manager to implement the Report on the selected MFBs, as well as prepare a
draft technical agreement for execution of the pilot scheme by the selected MFBs.
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. Unified Core Banking System for MFBs: The Central bank collaborated with development
partners and other stakeholders to establish a Unified Core Banking System for the MFB sector.
The CBN collaborated with development partners and other stakeholders to establish a Unified
Core Banking System for the MFB sector. The unified platform would enable the CBN to have
adequate oversight of the assets and liabilities of the sector, provide an early-warning system,
foster pro-active regulatory intervention, and ultimately lead to improved soundness and stability
of the micrafinance sector,

The expected benefits of the unified IT platform for the MFBs are as follows:

* Reduction in the cost of acquisition of IT software arising from economies of scale and savings
in annual maintenance cost derivable from shared services; r'
=  Harmonization of disaster recovery and business continuity processes;
*  Promotion of effective back-end processes;
* Centralization of the web-based platform for MFEs;
» Facilitation of access to MFE data from both on-site and off-site locations,
* Integration of payment systems for ease of interface with commercial banks’ platforms;

* Enhancement of data quality and integrity.
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DESCRIPTION OF LAPO MFB SPV PLC

The Information in this seclion has been extracted from documents and publications availalle and released by the Issuer.
Neither the issuer nor its adwisers are able fo ascertain if facts have been omitted that would render the reproduced informalion
inaccurale or misteading.

Introduction

LAPO MFB SPV PLC (The “Issuer”) was incorporated in Nigeria on 26 September, 2016 (registered
number RC 1363556) as a public limited liability company and carries on business at 18, Dawson Road,
Benin, Edo State. The Issuer has no subsidiaries or affiliates and has been established as a special
purpose vehicle for the sole purpose of issuing Bonds to fund working capital of the Sponseor - LAPO
Microfinance Bank Limited's funding requirements.

LAPO MFB SPV is a subsidiary of LAPO Microfinance Bank Ltd, with an authorised share capital of
M1,000,000 divided into 1,000,000 ordinary shares of N1 each. The issued share capital of the Issuer
is 81,000,000 divided into 1,000,000 ordinary shares of W1 each. 990,000 shares of the Issuer are
held by the Bank and the remaining 10,000 shares are held by Godwin Esewi Ehigiamusoe

As set out in the Company's Memorandum and Articles of Association, the principal objectives of the
|ssuer, amongst other things, is to raise or borrow money and to grant security over its assets for such
purposes and to enter into arrangements for such purposes.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Issuer are to issue Bonds to the public, especially qualified institutional
investors, and use the proceeds to purchase Bonds from LAPO under the Master Bonds Purchase
Agreement and in accordance with the terms of the Transaction Documents.

Copies of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer may be inspected at the specified
registered office of the Issuer.

As at the date of this Shelf Prospectus, the Issuer has not engaged, since its incorporation, in any
activities other than those incidental to its incorporation and registration as a public limited company,
the authorization and issue of the Bonds and of the other documents and matters referred to or
contemplated in this document to which it is or will be a party and matters which are incidental or
ancillary to the foregoing.

The Issuer's activities are restricted by its Memorandum and Articles of Association and the terms of
the Trust Deed, and other related documents.
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Other Information
Directors and Company Secretary
Below are details of the naminee directors of the lssuer:

Director - Mr. Godwin Ehigiamusoe
Director - Ms. Jozephine Nwachulkwu
Director - Mrs. Faith Osazuwa-Ojo

Company Secretary

Ms. Cynthia lkponmwosa

Director's Interests

No director has any interest in the promotion of the Sponsor andfor the Bonds to be purchased or
proposed to be purchased by, the Issuer.

Profile of Board of Directors

Mr. Godwin Ehigiamusoe - Director

Dr. Godwin Ehigiamusoe is an acknowledged microfinance practitioner and a social entrepreneur with
vast business interests. He has a Doctorate degree in Policy and Development Studies with emphasis
on micrefinance policy and regulatery frameworks. He founded Lift Above Poverty Organization, a pro-
poor development organization as an NGO and has since grown the organisation into a leading
microfinance institution with operations in Nigeria and Sierra Leone. Mr. Ehigiamusoe has attended
capacity enhancing courses at Lagos Business School, INSEAD Business School, IESE Business
School and Kennedy School of Government. He holds a Master's degree in Development Studies from
the University of Benin (1988). He has authored Understanding NGOs (1998), Poverty and
Microfinance (2000) and Issues in Microfinance: Enhancing Financial Inclusion (2011). In the year
2015, he earned a Doctor of Philosophy degree from Ambrose Alli University, Ekpoma, Edo State. He
is the recipient of the Grameen Foundation's award for Excellence in Microfinance in 2006, awards for
outstanding Entrepreneur from Schwab Foundation and Fate Foundation.

Mrs. Josephine Nwachukwu - Director

Mrs. Josephine Nwachukwu is an astute microfinance practitioner with vast experience spanning
Internal Control, Treasury and Strategic Management. She holds a Master's Degree (MBA) from
University of Benin (2008) and she is also a Microfinance Certified Banker (MCIB). With 18 years’
experience, she is presently an Executive Director and heads corporate planning and Strategy
department in LAPO Microfinance Bank.

Mrs. Faith Osazuwa-0jo - Director

Mrs. Faith Osazuwa-Ojo has over 18 years of experience in the microfinance sector, she has rich
pedigree in risk management (evaluation and monitoring). She studied Law at the university of Benin
(2005) and has attended various capacity enhancing courses at notable institutes in and outside Nigeria
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including: Programme for Leadership Development-Harvard Business School in United States of
America, The Boulder Microfinance Training Program in Turin, Italy; Training for the Project Feasibility
of Remittances product for 10 African MFls , in Ethiopia etc. Currently, she is an Executive Director and
heads the Risk Management and Monitoring Department of LAPO Microfinance Bank.

Ms. Cynthia Ikponmwosa - Head, Corporate Secretariat, Legal and Compliance

Ms. Ikponmwosa Cynthia Joined LAPO as a Principal Programme Officer in 2001. Prior to that, she
had worked with Akintola Williams Deloitte. An associate member of the Nigerian Institute of Marketing,
Ms. Ikponmwosa Cynthia holds a Bachelor of Arts (B.A) English degree from Edo State University,
Ekpoma, in 1996 and Master Degree in Corporate Governance. She played a pivotal role in the
transformation of LAPO Microfinance Bank operations into a regulated microfinance bank in 2010. She
is a member of the Chartered Institute of Secretaries and Administrators of United Kingdom, the
Chartered Institute of Marketers and Chartered Institute of Bankers of Nigeria (CIBN). Currently, she is
the Head, Corporate Secretariat, Legal and Compliance department of LAPO Microfinance Bank.

Employees
The Issuer has no employees.
Indebtedness

The Issuer has no indebtedness as at the date of this Shelf Prospectus other than that which the Issuer
has incurred or shall incur in relation to the Transaction contemplated herein.

Material Contracts

Apart from the Transaction Documents to which it is a party, the Issuer has not entered into any material
contracts other than in the ordinary course of its business.

No Material Adverse Change

Since the date of the Issuer's incorporation, there has been no material adverse change or any
development reasonably likely to involve any material adverse change, in the condition (financial or
otherwise) of the Issuer.

Litigation

The Issuer is not and has not been since its incorporation engaged in any litigation or arbitration
proceedings which may have or have had during such period a significant effect on its respective
financial position and, as far as the Issuer is aware, no such litigation or arbitration proceedings are
pending or threatened,
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DESCRIPTION OF LAPO MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

Introduction

LAPO Microfinance Bank Limited was incorporated as a private limited liability company on 25th April,
2007 under the provisions of the Companies and Allied Matters Act CAP C20 LFN 2004 with registration
number 688867. LAPO is a foremost national microfinance bank committed to the social and economic
empowerment of low-income households through provision of access to responsive financial services
on a sustainable basis. In 2010, LAPO MfB obtained the approval of the CBN to operate as a state
microfinance bank and in 2012, it got an approval as a national microfinance bank. Over the years,
LAPO MfB has emerged as a leading institution delivering a range of financial services to over a million
people in Nigeria,

Nature of Business

LAPO Microfinance Bank has embraced the challenge of serving the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises (MSMEs) with our responsive, pacesetting and innovative financial products. Our services
enable low-income households enhance their productive capacity, build and consolidate their economic
base and manage risk,

LAPO MfB constantly aims at improving the lives of the underprivileged through its pioneering services.
It sccially empowers its clients through its services as the bank helps them gain self-respect and self-
confidence by successfully utilizing the loans for the benefit of their businesses and family life and
ensuring the prompt repayment of such loans.

Products and Service Offerings
A brief description of LAPO's key products and services is given below:

SME Loan

“Big businesses require big loans". The LAPO Microfinance Bank “SME Loan” is a credit product _

designed specifically to support Small and Medium Scale Enterprises ("SME") operators in Nigeria.
Irrespective of the sector the enterprise is operating, LAPO MIB is willing to support businesses with a
credit facility of up to M3,000,000 to expand their enterprise. At an affordable interest rate, Nigerian
SMEs can now maximize their potentials with the SME Loan for the expansion of their businesses,

Small Business Loan

Small Business Loan is designed to meet the capital needs of small and medium scale entrepreneurs
who require more funds for expansion.

Regular Loan

This loan product is designed for individuals that belong to a group (union). A union is a self-selected
group of people who access loans individually, but have group guarantees. Regular Loan is created to
help meet the working capital needs of clients that run small businesses.
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Agriculture Loan

Agriculture is the mainstay of the Nigerian economy and is fundamental to the socio-economic
development of any nation. This is why LAPO MfB designed Agricultural Loan to finance the farming
activities of individuals, group or corporate organisations. The repayment schedule is designed to suit
the seasonal nature of such activities. In 2016, LAPO MfB won the Best Microfinance Bank in
Agricultural Financing under the Agricultural Credit Guarantee Scheme for the year 2015 by CBN.

Asset Loan

Asset loan as the name implies is targeted to help existing clients of LAPO MfB purchase assets such
as generator, refrigerator, grinding machines ete. that will further enhance the productivity of their
enterprise.

Social Impact Deposit

The Social Impact Deposit (SID) Account is a deposit product designed to empower the vulnerable and
the economically active poor in the society. The SID Account is an innovative deposit and investment
platform that pravides individuals the opportunity to make deposit with LAPO Microfinance Bank that
can be used to improve on the social needs of low-income individuals. The SID Account will be targeted
specifically at economically active poor individuals in Nigeria. With a minimum deposit of N200,000 and
a minimum tenor of 6 months, savers in return are rewarded with attractive interest that comes with the
account. In addition to the attractive interest on deposits, depositor is also entitled to nominate a child
from a low-income household for LAPO Scholarship award.

Term Deposit Savings Account

This is a savings product available to individuals, unions, clubs and registered business organizations.
It gives clients the opportunity to save funds that they do not immediately have need for and in addition,
generate interest on it.

Affordable Housing

The Affordable Housing scheme initiative evolved out of the partnership between LAPO Microfinance
Bank and Lafarge in Octaber 2013. The scheme tagged "Easy Home" was initiated in response to the
challenges of urbanisation in Nigeria, the most populous country in Africa, with a housing gap estimated
atabout 18 million units, Prospective beneficiaries under the scheme are identified through the network
of LAPO MfB branches or distributors of Lafarge. This loan product is designed to aid low-income
earners to become home owners through provision of funds for the construction or reconstruction of
homes. Construction is facilitated by the free technical assistance from Lafarge.
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LAPO Microfinance Bank - At a Glance

Financial Highlights (as at 31 December 2016)

Revenue (N'000) M 26,966,132
Profit Before Tax (N'000) H 7245085
Total Assets (N'000) M 62521272
Total Equity (N'000) N 13,923,839
J
Lagos West 47
Lagus_Malnland _ 44
Mid-West 68
South-West 81
South-South 38
South East 45
Middle Belt Zone 26
FCT Zone 49 _
Business Offices 398 ‘

Source: LAPO Management Accounts as at 31 December, 2016
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Company Organogram

LAPO is structured into seven business units — Legal & Compliance, Risk Management, Corporate
Planning & Strategy, Finance & Accounts, Corporate Services, Operations & IT and Internal
Audit/Control.
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The Board and Management of LAPO Microfinance Bank Limited have put in place structures,
procedures and systems to ensure substantial compliance with CAMA, its Memorandum and Articles
of Association, and the requirements of all Regulators. The Corporate Governance structures,
procedures and systems are premised on dynamism. Compliance is the joint responsibility of the Board,
Management and the entire staff of the Bank, and there is an established system of controls to ensure
strict adherence with these principles.

Corporate Governance Structure

The Board of Directors of LAPO Microfinance Bank Limited has the overall responsibility for ensuring
that the highest standards of corporate governance are maintained and adhered to by the Bank. The
Board of Directors carries out its responsibility through its standing Committees. These are the Board
Audit Committee, the Board Risk Management Committee, the Finance and General Purpose
Committee, Environment, Social & Governance Committee. Through the workings of these committees,
the Board sets broad policy guidelines and ensures the proper management and direction of the Bank.
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In addition to the Board Committees, there are a number of Management Committees which ensure
effective and good corporate governance at the managerial level. LAPO Microfinance Bank's
governance philosophy is hinged on its internal governance framework, which is executed through the
following primary organs:

A, The Board of Directors,
B. Board Committees, and

C. Management Committees.

A. The Board of Directors

¢

Structure

The Board of Directors of LAPO MfB consists of nine (9) members headed by a Chairman. The Board
is made up of three (3) Executives and five (6) Non-Executive Directors (including the Chairman of the
Board). The responsibility of the Board and roles of Directors are articulated in the Board Manual, in
accordance with the Bank's Articles and Memorandum of Association. The Board is committed to apply
best practices and corporate governance standards and the applicable laws in Nigeria. The profile of
the board is regularly reviewed, to ensure the board's composition remains both operationally and
strategically appropriate,

The Board has five standing committees comprising of the Credit and Risk Management Committee;
Audit Committee, the Finance and General Purpose Committee; Environment, Social and
Governance Committee; and the Nomination/Remuneration Committee. Through the workings of these
committees, the Board sets broad policy guidelines and ensures the proper management and direction
of the Bank.

Roles and Responsibilities
= Determines the strategic objectives and policies of the Microfinance Bank to deliver long-tern
value,
* Ensures that the Microfinance Bank's operations are conducted in a lawful and efficient manner,

* Ensures timely rendition of statutory reports and returns to regulatory authorities namely,
Central Bank of Nigeria and Nigeria Deposit Insurance Corparation;

* Reviews and approves Audited Financial Statements of the Microfinance Bank for presentation
to shareholders at the Annual General Meeting subject to approval by the Central Bank of
Nigeria;

= Reviews and approves corporate strategy, annual budgets and business plans,
= Approves major capital expenditures,
= Set performance standards and moenitors implementation and corporate performance;

= Ensures that ethical standards are established and maintained and that the Microfinance Bank
complies at all times with the laws of the Federal Republic of Nigeria,
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Recommends to the shareholders the appointment, remuneration and removal of Auditors;
Reviews and approves remuneration policy and packages:

Reviews and approves corporate governance framework and board performance appraisal
process,

Reviews the performance of the Managing Director: and

Reviews and approves policy documents on vital corporate issues for implementation.

B. Board Committees

In discharging its oversight responsibilities, the Board makes use of various committees. Each
committee has an in-depth focus on a particular area of the Board's responsibility and provides infarmed
feedback and advice to the Board. The activities of each of the board committees relate to the affairs
of the bank and are guided by the various objectives and stated terms of references of the committees.
The Board Committees in operation during the period under review are as follows:

1. Risk Management Committee

The Board Risk Management Committee has the responsibility to set and review the Microfinance
Bank's Risk policies. It oversees the risk profile, approve and monitor the risk management
framework of the Bank within the context of the risk reward strategy determined by the Board of
Directors. The Committee comprises of five members including a Chairman

The Risk Management Committee has the following roles:

Review for Board approval, the Bank's Risk Management Policy and subsequent reviews and
updates:

Review for Board approval, the Bank's Credit Policy and subseguent reviews and updates;

Articulate and define the risk management philosophy and risk appetite framework for the Bank
on behalf of Board of Directors;

Oversee and monitor the Bank's approved policies and procedures in relation to lending and
control of credit risk:

Review, approve or recommend facilities/exposures per the Bank's credit approval grid as
approved by the Board:

Consider, approve or recommend to the Board all insider and director-related credit
applications;

Undertake regular review of portfolio, remedial and stress test reports in order to ascertain the
quality of the Bank's risk assets;

Oversee and monitor the Bank's compliance with regulatory requirements and to review
management responses to examination report:

Report to the Board of Directors on all matters arising from its review and monitoring functions:
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* Perform any other activities consistent with this charter, the company's bylaws, and governing
laws that the Board Risk Management Committee determines are necessary or appropriate;
and

= Carry out any other responsibilities or functions which the Board of Directors may assign to it
from time to time.

2. Audit Committee

The Board Audit Committee is responsible for oversight of audit functions. The Committee
comprises 4 non-Executive members including the Chairman and meets quarterly or as the need
arises.

The committee has the underlisted functions:

» Evaluating, approving and monitoring the adequacy of the Company’s internal and external
audit processes, functions and related programs;

= Making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, remuneration and monitoring the
effectiveness and independence of internal and external auditors;

* QOverseeing and making recommendations to the Board on financial reporting;

* Reviewing reporting structures, policies and procedures to ensure compliance with financial,
regulatory and legal requirements;

* Reviewing the financial and risk management policies and processes in operating its business
activities;

* Reviewing and monitoring the reporting of any compliance breaches of laws or regulations or
internal controls and reporting standards;

* Reviewing the effectiveness of the independent audit efforts;

* Following completion of the annual audit, review with the independent accountants, the internal -
control department, and management, any significant difficulties encountered during the course
of the audit, and

= Review the Company's annual audited financial statements and related disclosures, discuss
with the independent accountants the matters, which relates to the quality as well as
acceptability of the accounting principles applied in the financial statements.

3. Finance and General Purpose Committee

The Finance and General Purpose Committee oversees and advises on strategic direction related
to corporate finance, risk, cash, expanditure and capital management. It also oversees executive
and management development, succession planning/mentoring programmes, staff welfare,
motivation and performance management. The Committee comprises of two (2) Non-Executive
Directors, the Managing Director and one (1) Executive Director. The Finance and General
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Purpose Committee during the period under review was entrusted with the following
responsibilities:

To review financial related matters as well as issues regarding the management and operation
of the Company. Such reviews include, but are not limited to the followings:

- Establishment of and changes to major financial, accounting and treasury policies:
- Major contracts and variations;

- The financial operations of the Company as recorded in the interim and annual financial
accounts and reports;

- Financing guarantees and indemnities and mortgaging of the Company's assets: and

- Any actual, or potential, major exception or occurrence which has, or may have, a major
financial impact on the Company.

Regularly review and report on the progress of all capital projects within the purview of its
authority,

Recommend proposals to lend, borrow or raise money, guarantees, pledges or charges to be
given by the Bank;

Monitor financial management of the Bank's activities including performance indicators and
other reporting requirements;

Have oversight of cash, borrowing and investment management; and

Oversee staff matters as it relates to people management policies, manpower requirements,
training and development, grievances as well as disciplinary related cases etc

4. Environment, Social and Governance (ESG) Committee

The purpose of the Environment, Social and Governance Committee is to review the Microfinance
Bank's ESG practices, monitor performance against agreed targets and make recommendations
to the Board on Environment, Social, and Governance Strategies. The committee is made up of
three (3) Non-Executive Directors and two (2) Executive Directors and has the following terms of
reference:

Periodically review the vision, mission and institutional values, keep under review the
Microfinance Bank's polices and practice as it relates to environment, social and governance
objectives and review compliance against agreed target by the Microfinance Bank;

Keep under review, the individual elements of the overall Environment, Social, and Governance
Management (ESGM) strategy with respect to Community, Environment and Workplace,
including and not limited to, reviewing at least once a year the following policies:

- Social Performance Policies (Client Protection, Microfinance Universal Social Performance
Standards);

- Environmental Protection and Conservation Policies;
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- Health and Safety Policies;
- Gender and Diversity Policy,
- Corporate Social Responsibility;

Advice the Board on Environment, Social, and Governance Management (ESGM) strategies
and policies and ensure that the recommendations in compliance with these policies are
implemented;

Review its own performance, constitution and terms of reference to ensure it is operating at
maximum effectiveness and recommend any change it considers necessary to the Board for
approval,

Keep under review internal and external ESG communication;

Engage local and international liaison on Environmental and Social activities.

5. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Committee has the responsibility to define the skills and attributes required for prospective
Non-Executive Directors’ appointments to ensure that the Board comprises of individuals with the
requisite skills, knowledge and experience to ensure that it is effective in discharging its duties.
The Committee consist of three (3) Non-Executive Directors and is expected to meet at least once
a year.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is vested with the following responsibilities:

Identification of suitable candidates for appointment to the Board:
The assessment of the performance of individual directors;
Approval of the promotion of Senior Management Staff,
Determination of the remuneration of the Managing Director; and

Approval of policies relating to remuneration schemes and long term incentives.

6. Executive Management Committee

This Committee is comprised of the Managing Director and Senior Management Staff of the Bank.
The Committee meets monthly or as required to consider the following key objectives:

Ensure effective implementation of policies and decisions of the Board of Directors;

Implement financial and operational plans of the Bank towards the realization of institutional
goals and objectives,

Ensure safety and proper utilization of the assets of the Bank,
Receive and review operational and financial reperts of the Bank;
Review the business plan and ensure that same is in line with the objectives; and

Review decisions that affect the Management of the Bank and its staff
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Board of Directors and Key Management Team:
Profile of Board of Directors

Osarenren Emokpae - Chairman

Dr. Osarenren Emokpae has over thirty five (35) years professional experience spanning Marketing,
Finance, Corporate consulting and the Academia. He holds a Bachelor of Science in Economics from
University of Calabar, Cross Rivers State, Migeria (1980), a Diploma in Marketing from Institute of
Marketing, Pall Mall- London (1984), Masters’ degree in Economics from University of Lagos, Lagos
State (1990), PhD in Business Administration from Century University, USA (1994) and a Post-
graduate Diploma in Strategic Leadership from Oxford University, United Kingdom (2010). He is an
alumnus of Cranfield School of Management. He is currently a DBA Scholar at Hertfordshire Business
School, Chairman Institute of Leadership, Director McPherson University, a Fellow Institute of
Marketing and a Fellow Advertising Practitioners Council of Nigeria (APCON).

Godwin Ehigiamusoe - Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Godwin Ehigiamusoe is an acknowledged microfinance practitioner and a social entrepreneur with
vast business interests. He has a Doctorate degree in Policy and Development Studies with emphasis
on microfinance policy and regulatory frameworks. He founded Lift Above Poverty Organization, a pro-
poor development organization as an NGO and has since grown the organisation into a leading
microfinance institution with operations in Nigeria and Sierra Leone. Mr. Ehigiamusoe has attended
capacity enhancing courses at Lagos Business School, INSEAD Business School, IESE Business
School and Kennedy School of Government. He holds a Master's degree in Development Studies from
the University of Benin (1998). He has authored Understanding MGOs (1998), Poverty and
Microfinance (2000) and Issues in Microfinance: Enhancing Financial Inclusion (2011). In the year
2015, he earned a Doctor of Philosophy degree from Ambrose Alli University, Ekpoma, Edo State. He
is the recipient of the Grameen Foundation's award for Excellence in Microfinance in 2006, awards for
outstanding Entrepreneur from Schwab Foundation and Fate Foundation.

Osayande Ede

Mr. Osayande Ede has over thirty years cognate experience in Banking and Finance and was at various
times the CEO of Equatorial Trust Bank and Co-operative Development Bank. He is a Financial
Advisory service delivery expert. He holds a Master's degree (MBA) in Finance from the University of
Lagos (1989). He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria. He chairs LAPO
Microfinance Bank's Finance and General Purpose Committee.

Osaretin Demuren

Mrs. Osaretin Demuren has a successful career spanning over thirty years at the Central Bank of
Nigeria (CBN) and retired as Director of Human Resource. She holds Master's Degree in Economics
and Statistics from the Moscow Institute of Economics and Statistics (1975). She is a member of the
Chartered Institute of Personnel Management of Nigeria and the Chartered Institute of Bankers of
Nigeria. She is currently the Chairman of Board of Directors of Guaranty Trust Bank Ple. (GTBank) and
she has also served on the boards of several public institutions including the National Social Insurance
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Trust Fund (NSITF) and Nigerian Investment Promotion Commission (NIPC). She chairs the
Environment, Social and Governance Committee in LAPO Microfinance Bank.

Rene Azokly

Mr. Rene Azokly is a renowned Microfinance Practitioner and was for many years the CEO of PADME,
a very successful microfinance institution in the Republic of Benin. He holds a Master's Degree (MBA)
in Finance and Project Management from Universite SENGOR; Alexandria, Egypt (1992). He was the
first Chair, Board of Directors, African Microfinance Network (AFMIN) and member of Women's World
Banking, New York. He chairs LAPO Microfinance Bank's Credit and Risk Management Committee.

Andrew Ejoh

Mr. Andrew Ejoh is a Managing Partner of an audit firm with solid experience in Audit and Financiat™
Advisory Services. He holds a Diploma in Accounting from Faulks Lynch College of Accountancy,
London (1976). He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria. He chairs LAPO
Microfinance Bank's Audit Committee.

Josephine Nwachukwu

Mrs. Josephine Nwachukwu is an astute microfinance practitioner with vast experience spanning
Internal control, Treasury and Strategic Management. She holds a Master's Degree (MBA) from
University of Benin (2008) and she is also a Microfinance Certified Banker (MCIB). With 18 years'
experience, she is presently an Executive Director and heads Corporate Planning and Strategy
department in LAPO Microfinance Bank.

Hannatu Yaro

Mrs. Hannatu Ahmed Yaro is a freelance consultant in gender and rural development. She has over
twenty years' experience in community development programming and management with organisations
such as the European Union (EU) and the Department of International Development (DFID). Mrs Yaro
holds a Bachelor's degree in English language from the Ahmadu Bello University of Zaria (1986), a
Master's degree in gender and development from the University of East Anglia UK (1997) as well as a'r
post graduate cerificate in information technology for development. She is an Independent Director fo
the Board of LAPO MIB.

Faith Osazuwa-0Ojo

Mrs. Faith Osazuwa-Ojo has over 18 years of experience in the microfinance sector, she has rich
pedigree in risk management (evaluation and monitoring). She studied Law at the University of Benin
{2005) and has attended various capacity enhancing courses at notable institutes in and oulside Nigeria
including: Programme for Leadership Development-Harvard Business School in United States of
America, The Boulder Microfinance Training Program in Turin, Italy; Training for the Project Feasibility
of Remittances product for 10 African MFIs | in Ethiopia etc. Currently, she is an Executive Director and
heads the Risk Management and Monitoring Department of LAPO Microfinance Bank.
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Profile of Management Team
Godwin Ehigiamusoe - Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Ehigiamusoe is an experienced microfinance practitioner who began his career as a rural
cooperative officer before he founded LAPQ, a leading development and microfinance institution with
operations in Nigeria and Sierra Leone. He holds Bachelor of Science degree in Sociology (1981),
Master's degree in Development Studies (1998) from the University of Benin and diploma in
Cooperative Management. He has attended several capacity enhancing courses at Harvard Kennedy
School, Lagos Business School, IESE Business School, Barcelona and INSEAD Business School,
Singapore campus. Dr. Ehigiamusoe won the Model Entrepreneur Award — Nigeria in 2008 and the
Schwab Foundation's OQutstanding Social Entrepreneur for Africa Award in 2010. He authored
Understanding NGOs (1998); Poverty and Microfinance in Nigeria (2000) and Issues in Microfinance:
enhancing financial inclusion (2011).

Moses Ehigiamusoe - Head, Corporate Services

Mr. Moses Ehigiamusoe has rich experience in Microfinance Operations and Risk Management and
joined LAPO as a Branch Manager in 1994. He holds a certificate in Co-operative Studies, National
Certificate in Business Education, Bachelor and Master's degree in Business Education. He is an
Associate Member of the Nigerian Chartered Institute of Marketers and has attended several local and
international training programs in Microcredit Practice (1996), Product Pricing, Market Research, SMEs
Management and Advanced Management, the Harvard Kennedy School Executive Education,
Cambridge, United States of America (2012) and Executive Development Program in Wharton School
University of Pennsylvania in the United States of America (2013).

Elijah Osadebamwen - Head, Operations

Mr. Elijah Osadebamwen Joined LAPO in year 2000 and is currently Head of LAPO Operations. He
has served as Local Technical Service Provider for the Microstart Project of the UNDP. He holds Higher
National Diploma (HND) and MBA. He is an Associate Member of the Nigeria Institute of Management
(AMNIM) and the National Institute of Marketing. Mr. Osadebamwen has attended a number of local
and international training programs including Microfinance Training Programme, (MFI1) Naropa
University, Colorado, USA (2003) and Advance Management Programme in INSEAD Business School
(2014).

Stanley Oriakhi - Head, Accounts and Reporting

Mr. Oriakhi is a professional accountant and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Nigeria. Since he joined LAPO in 2001, he has functioned in various capacities in Finance and
Operations departments. He holds first degree in Accounting and an MBA with bias for Finance. Mr.
Oriakhi has attended various training programs in Credit Operations, Financial Management and
Planning.
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Amen Akenbor- Head, People Management

Mrs. Amen Akenbor is a professional business administrator with over 17 years of experience. Since
she joined LAPO in 1999, she has functioned in various capacities such as Assistant Branch Manager,
Benin Branch (1889-2000), Monitoring Officer, Benin Area Manager, Divisional Manager, Head, Clients
Relations & Marketing and is currently in charge of People Management in Finance and Operations
departments.

She holds a Master's degree in Business Management from Imo State University, Owerri (2013), a
Post-Graduate Diploma in Business Administration & Management from Ambrose Ali University,
Ekpoma, Edo State (2006), a higher National Diploma in Business Administration & Management from
the Federal Polytechnic, Auchi, Edo State (1998) as well as a National Diploma in Business
Administration &Management from the Auchi Polytechnic, Auchi, Edo State (1994). Mrs. Amen has.—
also attended various training programs in Administration, Business and Financial Management. She
is a member of the National Institute of Marketing Of Nigeria (Chartered) as well as the Chartered
Institute of bankers of Nigeria, (MCIB)

Cynthia lkponmwosa - Head, Corporate Secretarial, Legal and Compliance

Ms. lkponmwosa Cynthia Joined LAPO as a Principal Programme Officer in 2001. Prior to that, she
had worked with Akintola Williams Deloitte. An associate member of the Nigerian Institute of Marketing,
Ms. Ikponmwosa Cynthia holds first degree in English Language and Master's Degree in Corporate
Governance. She played a pivotal role in the transformation of LAPO Microfinance Bank operations
into a regulated microfinance bank in 2010. She is a member of the Chartered Institute of Secretaries
and Administrators of United Kingdom, the Chartered Institute of Marketers and Chartered Institute of
Bankers of Nigeria (CIBN). Currently, she is the Head, Corporate Secretariat, Legal and Compliance
department of LAPO Microfinance Bank.
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RISK AND MITIGATING FACTORS

An investiment in Bonds invalves cerfain risks Accordingly, prospective investors should carefully consider, amongst other
things, the risk factors described below, together with all of the detailed information sef out elsewhere in this Shelf Frospecius,
and reach their own views before making an investment decision. The following section does not describe ail the risks of an
mvestment in the Bond. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to the Issuer, or that if cumently believes are
imimaterial, could also impair the lssuer's business operations and as a result, ils ability o service its payment obligations
under any Bonds. Investors should reach their own views or obtain such professional advice as they deem appropriate, before
making an investment decision in respect of the Bonds,

1. General Bond Related Risks

There is a limited two way quote trading market for Corporate Bonds

There may not be an active two way quote trading market for the Bonds when issued, and thus the
liquidity of the Bonds may be limited. Therefore, Investors may not be able to sell their Bonds within a
transparent and efficient system. There may not be an active two way quote trading market for the
Bonds when issued, and thus the liquidity of the Bonds may be limited Although the listing of the bonds
on an Over-The-Counter (OTC) market may increase the possibility of trading, investors may not be
able to sell their Bonds within a transparent and efficient system. Also the impact of the continuous
development and deepening of the bonds market on the trading of the Bonds cannot be assessed
immediately.

Credit ratings may not reflect the potential impact of the Bond's risks

The Bonds will be assigned a rating by GCR and or any independent rating agencies. The ratings may
not reflect all the risks related to structure, market, additional factors discussed above, and other factors
that may affect the value of the Bonds. A credit rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold
securities and may be revised or withdrawn by the rating agency at any time.

Bond Features

The Issuer may issue convertible or equity linked notes, fixed or floating rate bonds, senior or
subordinated instruments. These present risks of changes in interest rates or in the form of the
instrument due to forces not directly within the control of the Bandholders.

Early Redemption

The Bonds may be subject to early redemption therefore Bondholders may face the risk that the Bonds
will be redeemed before maturity in a falling rate environment, forcing the Bondholders to reinvest the
proceeds at a lower rate of return,

Exchange Rate risks and exchange controls

Payments of principal and interest on the Bonds will be made in Naira. This presents certain risks
relating to currency conversions if an investor's financial activities are denominated principally in a
currency other than the Naira. These include the risk that exchange rates may significantly change
(including changes due to devaluation of Naira or revaluation of the investors currency). An
appreciation in the value of the Investor's Currency relative to Maira would decrease (1) the Investor's
Currency-equivalent yield on the Bonds, (2) the Investor's Currency equivalent value of the principal
payable on the Bonds and (3) the Investor's Currency equivalent market value of the Bonds. The
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government may impose (as some have done in the past) exchange controls that could adversely affect
an applicable exchange rate. As a result, investors may receive less interest or principal than expected,
of no interest or principal.

2. Risk Factors Relating to Nigeria

The negative impact of Nigeria's exposure to political and regional instability.

Migeria's economy is largely dependent on revenue generated from crude production which has, in the
past, been affected by incessant security crisis and political disturbances in the Miger Delta region,
where the Bank's head-office is situated. Up until recently, activities in this region have been volatile
affecting the entire spectrum of the oil and gas industry. O

On the other hand, sectarian conflicts in the Middle Belt and Northern Nigeria continue to pose a threat
to Nigeria's political stability. The intermittent crisis and insurgence of the Boko Haram group, have
been identified as major contributors to the regions’ policy stasis. The activities of this group may have
a material adverse effect on public safety and productivity.

Threat to Nigeria's economic stability

The domestic economic decline in Q2" 20168 was attributable to the oil price slump, recent spate of
attacks by militants on critical oil and gas infrastructure in the Niger Delta which has resulted in crude
oil production remaining under capacity, thereby threatening Nigeria's export and fiscal revenues.

The outlock for Nigeria signals growth prospects as the expansionary budget is implemented and an
expected pick-up in global oil prices improves Nigeria's fiscal and current account position encouraging
further investment and promoting small scale enterprises. However, these prospects could be hindered
by threats in the form of short and medium term downside risks. Alongside threats described above,
other threats include disruptions in gas and crude oil supply; and the disproportionate improvements in
the standards of living of Nigerians compared to the country's strong economic growth — partly as a
result of limited creation of employment opportunities for the country's young population. 3

Emerging markets such as Nigeria are subject to greater risks than more developed markets,
and financial turmoil in any emerging markets could cause the price of securities to decrease.

Generally, investment in emerging markets is only suitable for sophisticated investors who fully
appreciate the significance of the risks involved in, and are familiar with investing in emerging markets.
Investors should also note that emerging markets such as Nigeria are subject to rapid change and that
the information set forth in this Shelf Prospectus may become outdated relatively quickly. Moreover,
financial turmoil in any emerging market country tends to adversely affect prices in capital markets of
all emerging market countries as investors move their money to more stable, developed markets. As
has happened in the past, financial problems or an increase in the perceived risks associated with
investing in emerging economies could dampen foreign investment in Nigeria and adversely affect the
Nigerian economy. In addition, during such times, companies that operate in emerging markets can
face severe liquidity constraints as foreign funding sources are withdrawn. Thus, where the Nigerian
economy remains relatively stable, financial turmoil in the country could adversely affect the Sponsor's
business, as well as result in a decrease in the price of securities.
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3. Risks Relating to the Issuer

The right of Bondholders to receive payments in respect of the Bonds will be limited to
payments actually received by the Issuer under the LAPO Bonds and investors are relying solely
on the creditworthiness of the Bank

The Issuer is a special purpose vehicle ("SPV") with no business other than issuing the Bonds and
purchasing corresponding LAPO Bonds issued by the Bank and has no assets other than such LAPO
Bonds. The Issuer has an obligation under the "Terms and Conditions of the Bonds" (the "Conditions”)
and the Trust Deed to pay such amounts of principal and interest, and additional amounts (if any) as
are due in respect of the Bonds. However, the Issuer's obligation to pay is equal to the amount of
principal, interest and additional amounts (if any) actually received and retained (net of tax) by or for
the account of the Issuer from the Bank pursuant to the corresponding LAPO Bonds. Consequently, if
the Bank fails to meet its payment obligations on the relevant LAPO Bonds in full, this will result in the
Bondholders receiving less than the scheduled amount of principal and/or interest and/or other amounts
(if any) payable on the corresponding Bonds. If a prospective investor purchases the Bonds, it is relying
on the creditworthiness of the Bank and no other person. In addition, an investment in such Bonds
involves the risk that subsequent changes in the actual or perceived creditworthiness of the Bank may
adversely affect the market value of such Bonds.

Change in Law

The Issuer duly incorporated and established under the Nigerian law, which remains in effect as atthe
date of this Shelf prospectus. No assurance can be given as to the impact of any possible judicial
decision or change in Nigerian law or the official application or interpretation of Nigerian law after the
date of this Shelf Prospectus.

Credit Risk

The Issuer uses the proceeds of the Bond to purchase Bonds from LAPO, therefore a default by the
Bank in its obligations to the Issuer on a payment date will translate into a default by the Issuer in its
obligations leading to the non-payment of the coupon, and the principal on the bond on a payment date.

4. Risks Relating to the Sponsor

The following is a description of the risk factors which are material in respect of the financial situation
of LAPO. The sequence in which they are listed is not an indication of their likelihood of occurrence or
the extent of their commercial consequences. The following statements are complete but not
exhaustive, thus prospective investors must consider all of the information provided in this prospectus.

Operational Risks

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with
the Microfinance Bank's processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors
other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements
and generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour. Operational risks arise from all of the
Microfinance Bank's operations and are faced by all business entities.
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Credit Risks

Credit risk is the risk that the Bank may not be able to recover funds and suffer losses because a
customer or counterparty is unable or unwilling to meet contractual obligations to the Bank when due.
It is the mast significant risk of the Bank as it primarily takes on credit risk through lending activities.

Market Risks

The Bank undertakes trading and investment activities in fixed income securities such as bonds,
treasury bills, interbank takings and placements, as well as foreign exchange trading, all of which give
rise to market risk exposure (i.e., the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Bank’s trading
and investment positions or other financial instruments may fluctuate because of changes in market
prices). Market risks can arise from adverse changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity
prices, commodity prices and other relevant factors such as market volatility. ~
= Interest rate risk

The principal risk to which the Bank's non-trading portfolios are exposed is the risk of loss arising

from fluctuations in the future cash flow of fair values of financial instruments and risk assets

because of a change in the market interest rate.

* Foreign exchange risk

The Bank takes on foreign exchange risks through its foreign currency borrowings to finance
on-lending to its customers in Naira. It is therefore exposed to the risk of loss in the event of
adverse movements in currency prices. The Micro Finance bank manages risks associated with
foreign exchange transactions through hedging techniques and preference for local currency
denominated loans.
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EXTRACTS OF THE PROGRAMME TRUST DEED

21

3.1

32

3.3

34

4.

2.1

PURPOSE AND APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS

The proceeds of the Bonds shall be maintained in a designated Payment Account and applied
towards the purchase of the LAPO Bonds as specified in the Master Bond Purchase Agreement.

AMOUNT AND ISSUE OF THE BONDS

The lssuer has been authorised to issue Bonds from time to time in Tranches in an aggregate
amaount not exceeding the Programme Limit at any point in time, by way of public offer, book
building, private placement or any other method selected by the Issuer.

The Bonds will have such maturities as may be determined by the Issuer, the Sponsor and the
Issuing Houses and such other minimum or maximum maturities as may be allowed or required
from time to time by the SEC or the CBN or any Laws or regulations applicable to the Issuer or
the Sponsor.

The lssuer shall be at liberty from time 1o time (but subject always to the provisions of this Deed)
without the consent of the Bondholders to create and issue further Bonds having the same terms
and conditions as any Tranche of the Bonds under the Debt Issuance Programme (oF the same
in all respects save for the amount and date of the first payment of coupon thereon).

The Bonds shall be issued at the |ssue Price and shall be subscribed for in the multiples and in
the manner set forth in the relevant Pricing Supplement.

STATUS OF THE BONDS

The Bonds shall constitute direct, unconditional obligations of the Issuer and shall rank pari
passu and without any preference among themselves (subject to modifications in any Series
Trust Deed). The payment obligations of the lssuer in respect of principal and interest thereon
shall save for such obligations as may be preferred by applicable legislation relating to creditor's
rights, at all times rank at least equally with all other unsecured indebtedness and monetary
obligations of the Issuer, present and future.

CONSTITUTION AND FORM OF THE BONDS
Constitution of the Bonds

Any Tranche of Bonds which is to be created and issued pursuant to this Programme Trust
Deed shall be constituted by, be subject to and have the benefit of a Series Trust Deed amangst
the Issuer, the Sponsor and the Trustee. Each Series Trust Deed shall set out the form and the
terms and conditions of the Tranche of Bonds to be so constituted thereby and shall be
accompanied by such supporting authorisations andfor approvals as may be required by the
Trustee, the Commission and the Law.
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52 Terms

Each Tranche of Bonds shall be governed by the terms specified in the relevant Series Trust
Deed and Pricing Supplement.

5.3 Undertaking
5.3.1 The Sponsor hereby irrevocably and unconditionally undertakes to the Trustee;

i the due and punctual payment in accordance with this Deed of the principal of and
interest on all Bonds and of any other amounts payable by the Issuer under this Deed;
and

ii. the due and punctual performance and observance by the Issuer of each of the othegs.
provigions of this Deed to be performed or cbserved by the |ssuer,

5.3.2 |fthe Issuer fails for any reason whatsoever to punctually pay any such principal, interest
or ather amount, the Sponsaor shall cause each and every such payment to be made as
if the Sponsor instead of the Issuer were expressed to be the primary obligor of the
relevant Bonds to the intent that the Bondholder thereof shall receive the same amounts
in respect of principal, interest or such other amount as would have been receivable had
such payments been made by the Issuer.

5.3.3 If any payment received by the Trustee or any Bondholder pursuant to the provisions of
this Deed in relation to the Bonds shall (whether on the subsequent bankruptcy,
insolvency or corporate reorganisation of the Issuer or, without limitation, on any other
event) be avoided or set aside for any reason, such payment shall not be considered as
discharging or diminishing the liability of the Sponsor and this undertaking shall continue
to apply as if such payment had at all times remained owing by the Issuer, and the
Sponsor shall indemnify the Trustee and the Bondholders in respect thereof,

5.3.4 The Sponsor hereby agrees that its obligations hereunder shall be unconditional and
that the Sponsor shall be fully liable irrespective of the validity, regularity, legality or
enforceability against the Issuer of, or of any defence or counter-claim whatsoevegl”
available to the Issuer in relation to its obligations under this Deed, whether or not any
action has been taken to enforce the same or any judgment obtained against the lssuer,
whether or not any of the other provisions of this Deed have been modified, whether or
not any time, indulgence, waiver, authorisation or consent has been granted to the Issuer
by or on behalf of the Bondholders or the Trustee, whether or not any determination has
been made by the Trustee pursuant to Clause 12, whether or not there have been any
dealings or transactions between the Issuer, any of the Bondholders or the Trustee,
whether or not the Issuer has been dissolved, liguidated, merged, consolidated,
bankrupted or has changed its status, functions, control or ownership, and whether or
not any other circumstances have occurred which might otherwise constitute a legal or
equitable discharge of or defence to the Sponsor arising under this Clause 6.3
Accordingly, the validity of this undertaking shall not be affected by reason of any
invalidity, irregularity, illegality or unenforceability of all or any of the obligations of the
Sponsor under this Deed and this undertaking shall not be discharged nor shall the
liability of the Sponsor under this Deed be affected by any act, thing or omission or
means whatever whereby its liability would not have been discharged if it had been the
principal obligor under the Bonds.
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535

536

53.7

5.3.8

5359

Without prejudice to the provisions of Clause 19, the Trustee may determine from time
to time whether or not it will enforce this undertaking without making any demand of or
taking any proceedings against the Issuer and may from time to time make any
arrangement or compromise with the Sponsor in relation to this undertaking which the
Trustee may consider expedient in the interests of the Bondholders.

The Sponsor hereby covenants that this undertaking shall be a continuing undertaking
until the complete performance of the obligations contained in this Deed in relation to
the Bonds and shall be additional to, and not instead of, any securty or other
undertaking, guarantee or indemnity at any time existing in favour of any person,
whether from the Sponsor or otherwise.

The Sponsor shall indemnify the Trustee with or without demand, from and against any
loss, cost, expense or liability of any kind that may be incurred by the Trustee, or brought
against the Trustee as a result of the Issuer failing to perform its obligations under this
Deed duly and punctually, or as a result of any of the obligations being or becoming
void, voidable, unenforceable or ineffective against the Issuer for any reason
whatsoever, whether known to the Trustee or not.

If any moneys shall become payable by the Sponsor under this undertaking, the Sponsor
shall not, so long as the same remain unpaid, without the prior written consent of the
Trustee:

i. in respect of any amounts paid by it under this undertaking, exercise any rights
of subrogation or contribution or, without limitation, any other right or remedy
which may accrue to it in respect of or as a result of any such payment; or

ii. in respect of any other moneys for the time being due to the Sponsor by the
Issuer, claim payment thereof or exercise any other right or remedy;

(including in either case claiming the benefit of any security or right of set-off or, on the
liquidation of the |ssuer, proving in competition with the Trustee).

If notwithstanding the foregoing, upon the Winding up of the Issuer, any payment or
distribution of assets of the Issuer of any kind or character, whether in cash, property or
cecurities, shall be received by the Sponsor before payment in full of all amounts payable
under this Deed shall have been made to the Bondhaolders, such payment or distribution
shall be received by the Sponsor on trust to pay the same over immediately to the
Trustee for application in or towards the payment of all sums due and unpaid under this
Deed in accordance with Clause 15.

Until all amounts which may be or become payable by the Issuer under this Deed have
been irrevocably paid in full, the Trustee may:

i. refrain from applying or enforcing any other moneys, security or rights held or
received by the Trustee in respect of those amounts, or apply and enforce the
same in such manner and order as it sees fit (whether against those amounts or
otherwise), and the Sponsor shall not be entitled to the benefit of the same; and
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5.3.10

5.3.11

5.3.12

ii. hold in a suspense account any moneys received from the Sponsor or on
account of the Sponsor's liability under this undertaking, without liability to pay
interest on those moneys.

The Sponsor shall pay interest to the Trustee on all sums demanded under this Deed,
fram the date of the Trustee's demand under this Deed or, if earlier, the date on which
the relevant loss, cost or expenses arose in respect of which such demand has been
made, in each case until, but excluding, the date of actual payment (after as well as
before judgment). All such interest shall accrue on a day-to-day basis and be calculated
by the Trustee on the basis of the day count fraction specified in the applicable Fricing
Supplement.

The Sponsor undertakes to the Trustee, that so long as the Issuer has any actual or
cantingent liability to the Trustee or the Bondholders, the Sponsor shall not exercise any
rights which it may at any time have whether by reason of perfarmance by the Sponsor
of its obligations under this undertaking or otherwise:

i. to be indemnified by the Issuer or to claim payment of any money which may be
owing or incurred by the Issuer to the Sponsor on any account whatsoever (save
as it relates to the LAPO Bonds), or exercise any other right, claim or remedy in
respect of such money,

ii. to prove in the Issuer’s winding up or insolvency,

iil. to participate in any security held, or money received, by the Trustee on account
of the payment obligations and the liability of the Sponsor under this Deed shall
not be reduced or discharged by any amount held by the Trustee on account for
the Issuer.

The Sponsor undertakes to the Trustee, that so long as the Issuer has any actual or
contingent liability to the Trustee or the Bondholders, none of the events set out below
shall discharge the liabilities or the obligations of the Sponsor under this Deed or impair
the rights, powers and remedies of the Trustee under this Deed:

i. any amalgamation, consolidation, merger or reconstruction between the Trustee
and any other person or any sale or transfer of the whele or any part of the assels
of the Trustee to any other person (including any rights under this Deed);

ii. the winding-up, dissolution, liquidation, administration, bankruptcy or
reorganisation of the Issuer or any change in its constitution, status, function,
coentrol or ownership;

i, any amendment to, or variation, waiver or release by operation of law of any of
the payment obligations or any other security or guarantee for the payment
obligations;

. the existence of any claim or set-off or other rights which the Sponsor may have
against the Issuer, the Trustee or any other person;
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54

5.5

56

5.7

V. the grant by the Trustee to the lssuer of any waiver or the withdrawal or restriction
by the Trustee of any waiver or the absence of any notice to the Sponsor of any
such granting, withdrawal or restriction:

vi. any failure by the Trustee to realise, or to fully realise, the value of or any
release, discharge, exchange or substitution of, any security (including this
undertaking) taken in respect of the Issuer's obligations;

Wi the existence, whether known to the Trustee or not, of a default under this Deed
or a Series Trust Deed, any time or other indulgence being granted or being
agreed to be granted to the Issuer or any other person, in respect of its
obligations under or pursuant to or under any other security or any arrangement
Oor compromise entered into by the Trustee with the Issuer ar any other person:

vii.  any of the obligations of the Sponsor or any other person under this Deed or
Series Trust Deed, or security taken in respect of any of the obligations of the
Issuer being or becoming illegal, invalid, unenforceable, impaired or ineffective
in any respect; or

ix. any other act, event or omission which might operate to discharge, impair or
otherwise affect any of the obligations of the Sponsor under this Deed or any of
the rights, powers or remedies conferred upon the Trustee by this Deed or by
law.

Form of Bonds
The Bonds of each Tranche shall be in registered form.
Title

6.5.1 The Bonds will be delivered to the Bondholders in dematerialised (uncertificated, book-
entry) form and the Bondholders may deal in the Bonds in accordance with CSCS
procedures and guidelines,

6.5.2 Statements issued by the CSCS as to the aggregate number of such Bonds standing to
the credit of the CSCS account of any persen shall be conclusive and binding for all
purposes save in the case of manifest error and such person shall be treated by the
Issuer, the Trustee and the Registrar as the legal and beneficial owner of such aggregate
number of Bonds for all purposes,

Persons Deemed Owners

Except as may subsequently be agreed between the parties in a Series Trust Deed, the
Bondholder (or his legal representative) shall be deemed and regarded as the legal and
beneficial owner of the Bonds registered in his name for all purposes including but not limited
to the payment of the Principal Amount, premium (if any) and Coupon.

Currency, Medium and Place of Payment

6.7.1 The Principal Amount, premium (if any), and Coupon on the Bonds shall be payable in
Naira or any other currency as may be agreed between the Issuer, Sponsor and the
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5.8

5.9

5.10

Trustee in accordance with the applicable Pricing Supplement, subject to compliance
with all applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

6.7.2 Payment of the Principal Amaunt, premium (if any) and Coupon shall be made through
the offices of the Registrar in the manner specified in the relevant Series Trust Deed.

§.7.3 Any payment made pursuant to (6.7.1) and (6.7.2) above shall be deemed valid and
shall satisfy and discharge the Issuer of any obligation to make payment on such Bonds
to the extent of the amount paid.

Megotiability and Transfer of Bonds

6.8.1 All Bonds issued under the Debt Issuance Programme shall be negotiable, subject to
the provisions for registration of transfers thereof contained in this Deed. Such transfer
shall be regulated by the CSCS procedures and guidelines.

6.8.2 The Issuer shall cause the Register, with respect to each Tranche of Bonds, to be
maintained at the offices of the Registrar and the Registrar shall provide for the
registration of Bonds or their transfer under such reasonable requlations as the Registrar
with the approval of the Issuer and the Trustee may prescribe. The Registrar with respect
to each Tranche of Bonds shall maintain the Register for purposes of registering the
Bonds or the transfer of such Bonds in accordance with the provisions hereof.

Each Tranche of Bonds shall be registered in the applicable Register. Any transfer of Bonds
shall be effective only to the extent that such transfer is registered in the Register, by the
Bondhelder or transferee thereof in person or by his attorney duly authorised in writing, upon
submission of a written instrument of transfer in a form satisfactory to the Registrar duly
executed by or on behalf of the registered Bondholder and the transferee by a duly authorised
attorney. Upon submission of the aforesaid documents to facilitate the registration of transfer of
Bonds, the Registrar shall if the above stated conditions are met, register such transfer.

Statements of Stockholding of CSCS

The Issuer and the Trustee may call for and, except in the case of manifest error, shall be at
liberty to accept and place full reliance on (without liability) as sufficient evidence thereof a
statement issued on behalf of the CSCS or any form of record made by the C5CS or such other
form of evidence and/or information andfor certification as they shall, in their absolute discretion,
think fit to the effect that at any particular time or throughout any particular period any particular
person is, was, or will be, shown in its records as the Bondholder of a particular nominal amount
of Bonds and, if it does so rely, such statement of stockholding, form of record, evidence,
information or certification shall be conclusive and binding on all concerned.

The Bondholders are entitled to the benefit of and are bound by, and are deemed to have notice
of, all the provisions of this Programme Trust Deed and the relevant Series Trust Deed
applicable to them.
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6.2

6.3

6.4
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7.2

PAYMENT OF COUPON

The Issuer shall ensure that the Coupon Amount is payable to the Bondholders on each Coupon
Payment Date. The Coupon Amount shall be payable in the official currency of the Federal
Republic of Nigeria, which at the respective dates of payment thereof, is legal tender for the
payment of public and private debts.

At least 5 (five) Business Days before any Coupon Payment Date, the |ssuer shall ensure that
an amount equal to the Coupon Amount, net of all transaction costs, is transferred to the
Registrar for payment to the Bondholders on the next Coupon Payment Date.

Every such payment made to the Registrar pursuant to Clause 7.2 shall be made in sufficient
time to ensure that the full amount thereof shall be at the effective disposal of the Bondholders
by the relevant Coupon Payment Date. Subject to Clause 1.3, where the Coupon Payment Date
falls on a non-Business Day, the payment shall be due and payable on the immediately following
Business Day.

Any payment made by the Issuer to the Registrar pursuant to Clause 7.2 shall be deemed valid
and shall satisfy and discharge the Issuer from any obligation to make payment on the Bonds
to the extent of the amount paid.

PROVIDED that no such payment made to the Registrar shall be deemed to have been
irrevocably paid (until receipt by the Bondholders) if such payment or credit of such amount is
capable of being avoided or reduced because of any laws on bankruptcy, insolvency, liquidation
or any similar laws.

REDEMPTION

The aggregate Principal Amount of the Bonds and any Coupon (accrued up to but unpaid as of
the Maturity Date) shall be paid by the Issuer on the Maturity Date or on such earlier date as
the Bonds may become due and repayable in accordance with this Deed.

In relation to any Tranche of the Bonds, in the event of a Capital Disqualification Event of the
Sponsor, the Issuer may, at its option, having given not less than 30 nor more than 45 days'
natice (or such other period as may be specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement) to the
Bondholders in accordance with Condition 11 (Notices) (which notice shall be irrevocable and
shall specify the date fixed for redemption), at any time redeem all, or if so provided, some of
the Bonds with interest accrued to but excluding the date of redemption. Prior to the publication
of any notice of redemption pursuant to this Clause 8, the Issuer shall deliver to the Trustee (i)
a copy of the circular, notification, directive or other official policy communique evidencing such
Capital Disqualification Event of the Sponsor (a “CBN Communication”) and (ii) a certificate
signed by two directors of the Sponsor stating that (A) the Sponsor has consulted with the CEN
following the release of the relevant CBN Communication, (B) (if required by the Applicable
Banking Regulations) the CBM has given its approval or the approval of the CBN is not required
and (C) a Capital Disqualification Event of the Sponsor has occurred, and the Trustee shall be
entitled to accept the certificate as sufficient evidence of the satisfaction of the conditions in this
Clause 8, in which case it shall be conclusive and binding on the Bondholders.
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B. REGISTER OF BONDHOLDERS
8.1 A Register of Bondholders shall be kept by the Registrar in respect of each Series.

8.2 The Register shall contain the names and addresses of the Bondholders, the respective number
of Bonds held, the nominal value of the Bonds, the date of allotment or purchase, the CSCS
Account number of the Bondholders, the details of a valid bank account to which payments due
under the Bonds can be credited together with any other information that may be deemed
necessary by the Issuer or the Trustee.

8.3  The Register shall show all subsequent transfers or changes of ownership of any Bonds thereof,
the Registrar shall ensure that the Register is updated on a daily basis so that any transfers of
Bonds effected via the CSCS is reflected in the Register.

8.4  The Registrar shall immediately be notified in writing of any change of name, address CSCS r
Account number, bank account, or any other details on the part of any Bondholder and upon
the Registrar's satisfaction thereof and in compliance with all such formalities as it may require
shall cause the Register to be altered or the change to be registered accordingly.

8.5 The Trustee and the Bondholders or any of them and any person authorised in writing by any
of such persons shall, upon giving the Issuer at least two (2) Business Days prior written notice,
be at liberty at all reasonable times during business hours to inspect the said Register and to
take copies of and extracts from the same or any part thereof.

86  The Register shall be conclusive evidence of the persons entitled to the Bonds and any
payments made to or to the order of such person shall be valid, and, to the extent of the sum or
sums so paid, effective to satisfy and discharge the liability for such monies payable upon any
such Bonds.

B.7 A body corporate may be registered as a Bondholder or one of joint Bondholders,

8.8 In the event of the death of a Bondholder only the legally appointed executors or administrators
of the estate of the deceased Bondholder (not being one of joint Bondholders) or the surviving
Bondholder(s) of joint Bondholders shall be recognized by the Registrar as having any title to 'r-
or interest in the Bonds of the deceased Bondholder.

89  Any person becoming entitied to any Bonds in consequence of the death or bankruptcy or
dissolution or winding-up of a Bondholder shall, once he has provided sufficient evidence of
such entitlement to the Registrar even if actual registration has not yet taken place, be entitied
to receive and may give a discharge for monies payable in respect of the Bonds. However such
person shall not be entitled to all the other rights of a Bondholder until he shall have been
registered in respect of the Bonds.

8.10 The number of Bonds held by a Bondholder shall be registered and recorded by the Registrar
as a book entry.

8.11 The Register may be closed at such time and for such periods as the Registrar may from time
to time determine provided that it shall not be closed for mere than 30 (thirty) days in a year.
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8.3

9.4

9.5

8.6

8.7

9.8

9.9

11.2

11.2.1

APPOINTMENT AND ACCEPTANCE OF TRUST

The Trustee is hereby appointed as the representative of the Bondholders in accordance with
the provisions of this Trust Deed or any Series Trust Deed.

By execution hereof, the Trustee has accepted and agreed to be bound by the powers, duties
and obligations of the Trustee specifically set forth herein and generally provided for in the
CAMA, the Trustees Investment Act, the Investments and Securities Act and by Law.

The Trustee shall have no duty, responsibility or obligation for the issuance of the Bonds or for
the validity or exactness thereof, or of any document relating to such issuance.

The Trustee shall have no duty, responsibility or obligation for the payment of the Bonds except
in accordance with the terms and provisions hereof or any Series Trust Deed or any agreement
to which it is a party, and only to the extent that the Trustee is in receipt of funds from the Issuer,

Prior to an Event of Default and after the curing or waiving of all Events of Default which may
have occurred, the Trustee shall not be liable except for the performance of such duties as
specifically set down herein.

The Trustee shall have no liability for any act or omission to act hereunder, or under any other
instrument or document executed pursuant hereto except for the Trustee's negligence,
misconduct andfor fraud,

The duties and obligations of the Trustee shall be determined solely by the express provisions
hereof, and no implied powers, duties or obligations of the Trustee, save as mandated by the
provisions of the Investments & Securities Act, shall be construed into this Deed.

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the Trustee shall subject to the provisions of this
Deed, exercise such rights and utilise such powers vested in it under this Deed, the Investments
& Securities Act and the Law, and shall use the required degree of care and skill in the exercise
of its duties.

The Trustee shall not be required to expend or risk its own funds or otherwise incur any liability
in the performance of its duties or in the exercise of its rights or powers as Trustee, except such
liability as may result from its negligence and misconduct

Declaration of Event of Default
At any time after the occurrence of an Event of Default and while it is continuing, with any

applicable grace period thereto having expired, the Trustee may, give notice to the Issuer or
Sponsor declaring an Event of Default in respect of that Event of Default.

11.22 An Event of Default will occur when the Trustee gives the Issuer or Sponsor a notice in

1.3

accordance with Clause 12.2 1.
Remedies for Events of Default

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, (of which notice has been given in accordance with
Clause 12.2), with respect to any Bonds at the time outstanding that is continuing, then, in every
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such case the Trustee may, (or shall at the direction of the holders of not less than 20% (twenty
percent) in nominal amount of the Bonds), declare the unpaid Principal Amount of the Bonds
(including any premium, Coupon, fees and other amounts due in respect of the Bonds) to be
due and payable immediately, by notice in writing to the Issuer. Upon any such declaration such
Principal Amount (Coupon, fees and other amounts due hereunder) shall become immediately
due and payable without demand, protest or any other notice of any kind, all of which are hereby
expressly waived by the Issuer.

12. PROCEEDINGS TO ENFORCE REPAYMENT

At any time after the Bonds shall have become payable, the Trustee may at its discretion (and
shall upon the request in writing of the registered holders of at least 10% (ten percent) in
Principal Amount of the Bonds or upon being so directed by a Special Resclution) without further
notice institute such proceedings as it may think fit to enforce payment of the Bonds, the Coupon f
Amount and any other amounts due in respect of the Bonds (subject in each case to being
indemnified, and/or provided with security to its satisfaction).

15. COVENANTS OF THE ISSUER

So long as any of the Bonds remains outstanding, the Issuer at all times during the continuance
of this Deed (except as may otherwise be agreed in writing by the Trustee) covenants with the
Trustee as follows:

151 Reporting Covenants
The Issuer shall provide to the Trustee and the Rating Agency then rating any of the Bonds:

15.1.1 as soon as the same are available (and in any event within 90 days of the end of the
Issuer's financial year), the audited financial accounts of the Issuer for each financial
year, provided that the approval of any regulatory authority for the publication of such
accounts is obtained within the stipulated period; f

15.1.2 as soon as the same are available (and in any event within 30 days of the end of the
first six months of the Issuer's financial year), the unaudited financial accounts of the
Issuer for those six months; and

15.1.3 an annual Directors’ Certificate in or substantially in the form set out in the Third
Schedule certifying as to the absence of any Event of Default or, if there is an Event of
Default, describing the action the Issuer is taking or proposes to take to remedy the
same.

152 Audit Firm

The Issuer shall permit its Auditor to communicate directly with the Trustee or its designee
following the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default.

153 Compliance
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15.4

15.5

156

15.7

15.8

15.9

The Issuer shall comply in all material respects with all applicable laws, rules and regulations
unless the necessity of compliance therewith is being contested in good faith by appropriate
proceedings or failure to perform such obligations or comply with such terms and conditions
would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

Taxes

All payments in respect of the Bonds and Coupons by or on behalf of the Issuer shall be made
without withholding or deduction for, or on account of, any present or future taxes, duties,
assessments or governmental charges of whatever nature (*Taxes”) imposed or levied by or on
behalf of or within Nigeria, unless the withholding or deduction of the Taxes is required by law.

Use of Proceeds

The Issuer shall not use, directly or indirectly, the proceeds of the Bonds for any purpose that
is not permitted in Clause 2 of this Deed.

Merger, Consolidation or Sale of Assets

The Issuer shall not and the Sponsor shall procure that the lssuer does not (i) merge or
consolidate with any other person, or (ii) directly or indirectly transfer to any person all or
substantially all of its properties or assets as an entirety in one or more related transactions
unless such person assumes the Issuer's obligations under the Bonds and:

16.6.1 no Event of Default would occur or be reasonably expected to occur as a result of such
merger or consolidation or transfer of assets, as the case may be; and

15.6.2 a Rating Reaffirmation is obtained in respect of such merger or consolidation or transfer
of assets, as the case may be.

Creation of Security

For so long as any Bond remains outstanding, the Issuer shall not create or permit to subsist
any charge, mortgage, lien, pledge or other security interest upon any of its assets or any other
party or any other indebtedness guaranteed by it without the prior written consent of the Trustee.
Where the Trustee so consents, the Issuer shall at the same time as the creation of such
indebtedness grant to the Trustee (for the benefit of the Bondholders) the same or equivalent
security as is granted in relation to the indebtedness.

Listing

The Issuer shall use all reasonable endeavours to maintain the Listing of the Bonds on the
FMDQ at all times.

Arms-Length Transactions

Any material transaction, or series of material related transactions and agreement between it
and its Affiliates shall be undertaken on commercially reasonable terms that, when considered
as a whole, shall be no less favourable to it than would be obtained in a comparable arms-
length transaction with a person that is not its Affiliate.
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15.10 Diligently perform and observe its covenants and obligations under this Trust Deed and any

16.

16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

Series Trust Deed and conduct its business in a proper and efficient manner and at all times
have sufficient assets to meet its obligations under this Deed.

COVENANTS OF THE SPONSOR

The Sponsor hereby covenants with the Trustee that, so long as any of the Bonds remain
outstanding, it will duly perform and comply with the obligations expressed to be undertaken by
it as set out below.

Reporting Covenants
The Sponsor shall provide to the Trustee and the Rating Agency then rating any of the Bonds:

16.1.1 as soon as the same are available (and in any event within 90 days of the end of the
Sponsor's financial year), the audited consolidated financial accounts of the Sponsor for
each financial year, provided that the approval of the CBN and any other regulatory
authority for the publication of such accounts has been obtained within the stipulated
period;

16.1.2 as soon as the same are available (and in any event within 30 days of the end of the
first six months of the Sponsor's financial year), the unaudited consolidated financial
accounts of the Sponsor for those six months; and

16.1.3 an annual Directors' Certificate in or substantially in the form set out in the Third
Schedule certifying as to the absence of any Event of Default or, if there is an Event of
Default, describing the action the Sponsor is taking or proposes to take to remedy the
same.

Audit Firm

The Sponsor shall permit its Auditor to communicate directly with the Trustee or its designee
following the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default.

Compliance

16.3.1 The Sponsor shall ensure that the Issuer duly performs and complies with the abligations
expressed to be undertaken by it as set out in the Programme Documents and in respect
of the Bonds.

16.3.2 The Sponsor shall comply in all material respects with all applicable laws, rules,
regulations and Licences unless the necessity of compliance therewith is being
contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings or failure to perform such obligations
or comply with such terms and conditions would not reasonably be expected to have a
Material Adverse Effect.

Licences
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16.5

16.6

16.7

TS

171

The Sponsor shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect all Licences unless the
requirement to obtain andfor maintain such Licence is being contested in good faith by the
Sponsor or where failure to maintain such Licences would reasonably be expected to not have
a Material Adverse Effect.

Merger, Consolidation or Sale of Assets

The Sponsor shall not (i) merge or consolidate with any other person, or (ii) directly or indirectly
transfer to any person all or substantially all of its properties or assets as an entirety in one or
more related transactions unless such person assumes the Sponsor's obligations under the
Bonds and:

16.5.1 no Event of Default would occur or be reasonably expected to occur as a result of such
merger or consolidation or transfer of assets, as the case may be; and

16.5.2 a Rating Reaffirmation is obtained in respect of such merger or consolidation or transfer
of assets, as the case may be.

Creation of Security

For so long as any Bond remains outstanding, the Sponsor shall not create or permit to subsist
any charge, mortgage, lien, pledge or other security interest upon any of its assets or any other
party or any other indebtedness guaranteed by it without the prior written consent of the Trustee.
Where the Trustee so consents, the Sponsor shall at the same time as the creation of such
indebtedness grant to the Trustee (for the benefit of the Bondholders) the same or equivalent
security as is granted in relation to the indebtedness.

Insurance

The Sponsor shall insure and keep insured to the satisfaction of the Trustee and to the full
replacement value thereof all such parts of its assets as are of an insurable nature against loss
or damage by fire, explosion, lightning, storm, tempest, flood (where appropriate), aircraft and
things dropped therefrom and such other risks as in accordance with sound commercial practice
are normally insured against by companies carrying on a similar business in one or more
insurance offices of repute and shall produce the policies of such insurance to the Trustee if
required and duly pay or cause to be paid the premiums and other sums of money payable in
respect of all such insurance and if required produce to the Trustee the receipt for the same
within 7 (seven) days of the same becoming due.

POWERS OF THE TRUSTEE

Advisers

The Trustee may act on the opinion or advice of, or a certificate or any information obtained
from, any lawyer, banker, valuer, surveyor, broker, auctioneer, accountant, or other expert
(whom the Trustee reasonably considers to be competent) or any Officers’ Certificate (whether
obtained by the Trustee or the Issuer) and will not be responsible to anyone for any loss
occasioned by so acting. Any such opinion, advice, certificate or information may be sent or
obtained by letter, telex, email, or facsimile transmission and the Trustee will not be liable to
anyone for acting in good faith on any opinion, advice, certificate or information purporting to be
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17.3

17.4

17.5

17.6

conveyed by such means even if it contains or is subsequently found to contain some error or
15 not authentic.

Due Performance

The Trustee need not notify anyone of the execution of this Trust Deed or do anything to
ascertain whether any Event of Default has occurred and, until it has actual knowledge ar
express notice to the contrary, the Trustee may assume that no such event and no event with
the passage of time will be rendered an Event of Default has occurred and that the Issuer is
performing all of its obligations under this Trust Deed, any Series Trust Deed, the other
Programme Documents and the Bonds.

Bondholders Resolution

defect in the constitution of the meeting or the passing of the resolution or that for any reason
the resolution was not valid or binding upon the Bondholders.

Certificate signed by Authorised Officers

The Trustee may call for and may accept as sufficient evidence of any fact or matter or of the
expediency of any act a certificate signed by any two Authorised Officers of the Issuer or the
autherised officers or directors of any other Party (or any person duly authorised on its behalf)
(including a Directars’ Certificate) as to any fact or matter upon which the Trustee may, in the
exercise of any of its functions, require to be satisfied or to have information to the effect that,
in the opinion of the person or persons so certifying, any particular act is expedient or as to any
fact or matter prima facie within the knowledge of the Issuer or such other Party and the Trustee
need not call, in any such case, for further evidence and will not be responsible for any liability
that may be occasioned by acting on any such certificate.

Deposit of Documents

The Trustee may appoint as custodian or nominee, on standard/usual terms, any bank or entity
whose business includes the safe custody of documents or any lawyer or firm of lawyers
believed by it to be of good repute and may deposit this Trust Deed and any other documents
with such custodian and pay all sums due in respect thereof and the Trustee shall not be
respansible for any liability incurred by reason of the misconduct, omission or default on the part
of any person appointed by it hereunder or be bound to supervise the proceedings or acts of
any such person,

Discretion of Trustee

Save as expressly otherwise provided herein, the Trustee will have absolute and uncontrolled
discretion as to the exercise or non-exercise as regards all the trusts, powers, authorities and
discretions vested in it by the Programme Documents or by operation of Law and will not be
responsible for any liability (except for any liability resulting from the negligence, misconduct
andfor fraud of the Trustee) which may result from their exercise ar non-exercise of such
discretion but whenever the Trustee is under the provisions of the Trust Deed bound to act at
the request or direction of the Bondholders, the Trustee shall nevertheless not be so bound
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17.7

17.8

17.9

17.10

unless first indemnified and/or provided with security and/or prefunded to its satisfaction against
all actions, proceedings, claims and demands to which it may render itself liable and all liabilities
which it may incur by so doing (except for any liability resulting from the negligence, misconduct
and/or fraud of the Trustee

Investment by Trustee

17.7.1 The Trustee may, at its discretion, invest any moneys or assets created by this Deed.
Any such moneys or assets which under the trusts created by this Deed ought to or may
be invested by the Trustee in the name or under the control of the Trustee in Permitted
Investments as selected by the Trustee. The Trustee shall select Permitted Investments
in accordance with the provisions of this Trust Deed.

17.7.2 The Trustee may at its discretion, place such moneys created by this Deed in an
interest paying account for such periods as it may consider expedient with power from
time to time at the like discretion to vary such deposits and to accumulate such
deposits and the resulting interest and other income derived therefrom. All interest and
other income deriving from such deposits shall be applied first in payment or
satisfaction of all amounts then due and payable under Clause 22 (Remuneration of
the Trustee) to the Trustee and/or any appointee and otherwise held for the benefit of
and paid to the Bondholders.

17.7.3 Subject to the provisions of Clause 10.6, the Trustee may at any time vary any such
investments for ar into other invesiments or convert any meneys so deposited into any
other currency and shall not be responsible for any loss resulting from any such
investments or deposits, whether due to depreciation in value, fluctuations in
exchange rates or otherwise.

Delegation

The Trustee, after prior notification to the SEC, may in the execution and exercise of all or any
of the trusts, powers, authorities and discretions vested in it by this Trust Deed, act by
responsible officers or a responsible officer for the time being of the Trustee and the Trustee
may also whenever it thinks fit acting reasonably, whether by power of attorney or otherwise,
delegate to any person or persons or fluctuating body of persons all or any of the trusts, powers,
authorities and discretions vested in it by the Trust Deed. Any such delegation may be made
upon such terms and conditions and subject to such regulations as the Trustee may think fit in
the interests of the Bondholders.

Forged Register

The Trustee will not be liable to the Issuer or any Bondholder by reason of having accepted as
valid or not having rejected any entry in the Register later found to be forged or not authentic
except to the extent that the Trustee had actual knowledge or express prior notice that the entry
was forged or not authentic.

Confidentiality

Unless ordered to do so by a court of competent jurisdiction or unless required by any
requirement of Law or any regulatory direction the Trustee shall not be required to disclose to

Shelf Prospectus Page | 79



LAPO MFB SPV PLC — N20 Billion Debt Issuance Programme

17.11

17.12

17.13

17.14

17.15

17.16

any Bondholder or any other Party any confidential financial or other information made available
to the Trustee by the Issuer or the Sponsor.

Currency Conversion

Where it is necessary or desirable for any purpose in connection with the Programme
Documents to convert any sum from one currency to another, it will (unless otherwise provided
hereby or in the other Programme Documents or required by Law) be converted at such rate or
rates, in accordance with such method and as at such date as may be specified by the Trustee,
acting reasonably and having regard to current rates of exchange, if available and having
consulted with the Issuer where such consultation is in the reasonable opinion of the Trustee
practicable and not materially prejudicial to the interests of the Bondholders. Any rate, method
and date so specified will be binding on the Issuer and the Bond holders,

Trustee not responsible for Investigations

The Trustee shall not be responsible for, or for investigating any matter which is the subject of,
any recital, statement, representation, wa rranty or covenant of any person contained in the Trust
Deed, the Bonds or any other agreement or document relating to the transactions herein or
therein contemplated or for the execution, legality, effectiveness, adequacy, genuineness,
validity, enforceability or admissibility in evidence thereof and shall assume the accuracy and
carrectness thereof nor shall the Trustee, by execution of the Trust Deed, be deemed to make
any representation as to the validity, sufficiency or enfo rceability of either the whole or any part
of the Trust Deed.

Bondholders as a Class

Whenever in this Trust Deed the Trustee is required in connection with any exercise of its
powers, trusts, authorities or discretions to have regard to the interests of the Bondholders, it
shall have regard to the interests of the Bondholders as a class. The Trustee shall not be obliged
to have regard to the consequences of such exercise for any individual Bondholder resulting
from his or its being for any purpose domiciled or resident in, or otherwise connected in any way
with, or subject to the jurisdiction of, any particular territory or taxing jurisdiction.

Application of Proceeds

The Trustee shall not be responsible for the receipt or application by the Issuer of the proceeds
of the issue of the Bonds.

Determinations of Material Prejudice

The Trustee shall be entitled to assume, for the purposes of exercising any power, trust,
authority, duty or discretion under or in relation to the Bonds and the Trust Deed that such
exercise will not be materially prejudicial to the interests of the Bondholders.

Obligation to Monitor Performance

The Trustee shall be entitied to monitor and supervise the performance by the Issuer of its

obligations under the Trust Deed or under the Bonds or any other agreement or document
relating to the transactions herein or therein contemplated.
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17.18

17.19

17.20

17.21

18.

18.1

Maintenance of Ratings
The Trustee shall not be responsible for the maintenance of the ratings.

Hlegality

Notwithstanding anything else contained in the Programme Documents, the Trustee may refrain
from doing anything which would or might in its reasonable opinion be contrary to any Law of
any jurisdiction or any directive or regulation of any agency of any state or which would or might
otherwise render it liable to any person and may do anything which is, in its opinion, necessary
to comply with any such Law, directive or regulation.

Expenditure by the Trustee

The Trustee may refrain from taking any action or exercising any right, power, authority or
discretion vested in it under the Programme Documents or any other agreement relating to the
transactions herein or therein contemplated until it has been indemnified andfor secured to its
satisfaction against any and all liabilities which might be brought, made or conferred against or
suffered, incurred or sustained by it as a result (which may include payment on account).
Mothing contained in the Programme Documents shall require the Trustee to expend or risk its
own funds or otherwise incur any financial liability in the performance of its duties or the exercise
of any right, power, authority or discretion hereunder if it has grounds for believing the
repayment of such funds or adequate indemnity against, or security for, such risk or liability is
not reasonably assured to it

Appraisal of Financial Condition

Each Bondholder shall be solely responsible for making its own independent appraisal of, and
investigation into the financial condition, creditworthiness, affairs, status and nature of the Issuer
and the Trustee shall not at any time have any responsibility for any such appraisal or
investigation and no Bondholder shall rely on the Trustee in respect thereof.

Indemnity

Without prejudice to the right of indemnity given to the Trustee by Law, the Trustee and every
attorney, manager, agent or other person appointed by them hereunder shall be entitled to be
indemnified by the Issuer in respect of all liabilities and all reasonable and verifiable expenses
incurred by them in the due execution or purported execution of the powers and trusts hereof
or of any powers, authorities or discretions vested in them or him pursuant to this Deed, and the
Trustee may retain and pay out of any monies in its hands upon the trusts of these presents the
amount of any such liabilities and expenses together with the remuneration of the Trustee.

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE TRUSTEE

The Trustee in its individual capacity and as Trustee represents and warrants as follows:

It is a duly organized and validly existing entity in good standing under the laws of the Federal
Republic of Nigeria. It has full corporate power, authority and legal right to execute, deliver and
perfarm its obligations as Trustee under this Deed.
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20.
20.1

202

20.3

The execution and delivery of this Deed and the consummation of the transactions provided for
herein have been duly authorized by all necessary actions on its part.

The execution and delivery of this Deed, the performance of the transactions contemplated
hereby and the fulfillment of the terms hereof will not conflict with, result in any breach of any of
the material terms and provisions of, or constitute (with or without notice or lapse of time or
both) a default under any indenture, contract, agreement, mortgage, deed of trust, or other
instrument to which the Trustee is a party.

The execution and delivery of this Deed, the performance of the transactions contemplated
hereby and the fulfillment of the terms hereof will not conflict with or violate, in any material
respect, any Law.

All approvals, authorizations, consents, orders or other actions of any person or governmental
authority applicable to the Trustee, required in connection with the execution and delivery of this
Deed, the performance by the Trustee of the transactions contemplated hereby and the
fulfillment by the Trustee of the terms hereof have been obtained.

This Deed constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of the Trustee, enforceable against
the Trustee in accordance with its terms, except as such enforceability may be limited by
applicable insolvency laws or general principles of equity (whether considered in a suit at law
or in equity).

TRUSTEE NOT BOUND TO ENFORCE COVENANTS

The Trustee may but shall not be bound (unless requested to do so in writing by the Bondholders
holding not less than 40 per cent of the nominal value of the Bonds for the time being
outstanding or by a Special Resolution) to enforce or take any step to enforce the covenants in
Clause 16 (Covenants of the Issuer) and/or Clause 17 (Covenants of the Sponsor) and (subject
to any such request as aforesaid) may waive on such terms and conditions as they shall deem
expedient any of the covenants and provisions which the Issuer or the Sponsor is required to
perform or observe.

REMOVAL AND RESIGNATION OF THE TRUSTEE

The Trustee may resign as trustee at any time, by giving not less than 30 (thirty) days prior
written notice to that effect to the Issuer, the Commission and the Bondholders, and such
resignation shall not be effective until a successor(s) to the Trustee is appointed in accordance
with the Law and this Deed PROVIDED that the Trustee shall continue to hold the rights
conferred and perform the obligations imposed on it by this Deed until its resignation has
become effective.

The Bondholders may by a Special Resolution exercise the power to remove the Trustee and
appoint a new trustee as long as the Bonds are outstanding PROVIDED that the Trustee shall
not be changed without obtaining the prior clearance of the Commission.

Where the Trustee gives notice of its resignation as trustee pursuant to Clause 20.1 or in the
event that the Trustee is dissolved or otherwise becomes incapable to act as Trustee or is
removed as Trustee pursuant to Clause 20.2 herein (without an appointment of a new trustee
being made), the Issuer upon obtaining the approval of the Commission shall appoint a
successor Trustee,
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The successor Trustee appointed pursuant to Clause 20.3 or Clause 21.2.3 below shall execute
a Deed of Adherence in accordance with the Fourth Schedule and cause natice of its
appointment to be issued to the Bondholders of all Bonds then outstanding.

Unless otherwise ordered by a court or regulatory body having competent jurisdiction, or unless
required by Law, any successor Trustee appointed by the Commission shall be a company,
authorised to carry on trust business in Nigeria and duly registered with the Commission to
provide corporate trust services.

Every successor Trustee shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to its predecessor and also to
the Issuer an instrument in writing, accepting such appointment hereunder, and thereupon such
successor Trustee, without further action, shall become fully vested with all the rights,
immunities, powers, trusts, duties and obligations of its predecessor, and such predecessor
shall execute and deliver an instrument transferring to such successor Trustee all the rights,
powers and trusts of such predecessor. The predecessor Trustee shall execute any and all
documents necessary or appropriate to convey all interest it may have to the successor Trustee.

The predecessor Trustee shall promptly deliver all records relating to the trust and copies
thereof and communicate all material information it may have obtained concerning the trust to
the successor Trustee and shall duly provide the successor Trustee with a full and updated
statement of affairs and accounts of the trust in respect of the Bonds or any Tranche of the
Bonds.

UNDESIRABLE SITUATIONS AND PRACTICES

For the purpose of this Deed, an undesirable situation or practice is a situation or practice which

may prejudice the interests of the Bondholders. These include:

21.1.1 an order by a Court of competent jurisdiction or a company resolution passed for the
dissolution of or appointment of an administrator for the Trustee (otherwise than in the
course of a reorganisation or restructuring of the Trustee on a solvent basis);

21.1.2 where any person takes any step, and it is not withdrawn or discharged within sixty (60)
days. to appoint a liquidator, manager, receiver, administrator, administrative receiver
or other similar officer in respect of any assets of the Trustee; and

21.1.3 where the Trustee convenes a meeting of its creditors or makes or proposes any
arrangement or compromise with, or any assignment for the benefit of, its creditors.

If in the opinion of the Issuer, an undesirable situation or practice has developed or is

developing regarding the activities of the Trustee, the Issuer may take any steps to correct the

situation or practice, including:

21.2.1 notifying the SEC within five (5) days of such practice coming to the attention of the
Issuer;

with the approval of the Board of Directors of the Issuer and by a majority decision of three-

fourths of the Bondholders present at a meeting duly called for that purpose, suspend the

Trustee and appoint another Trustee to act in place of the suspended Trustee during the period

of suspension;

with the approval of the Board of Directors, and by a majority decision of all the Bondhaolders,
terminate the appointment of the Trustee and immediately appoint a new trustee in accordance
with the provisions of this Trust Deed (PROVIDED that the appointment of the Trustee shall not
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be terminated nor shall the Trustee be changed without obtaining the prior clearance of the
Commission);

giving directions to the Trustee to act in such a manner as will correct or assist in overcoming
the situation or practice; or

taking any other action it considers necessary to assure and safeguard the interests of the
Bondholders.

POWER OF MODIFICATION BY SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST DEED

The Issuer and the Trustee shall be entitled by a supplemental trust deed to consolidate, modify,
alter or add to the provisions of this Deed in such manner and to such extent as they may
consider necessary or expedient having regard to any issues that they may consider relevant
PROVIDED such consolidation, modification, alteration or addition does not prejudice the
interests of the Bondholders and that such consolidation, modification, alteration or addition
does not operate to release the Trustee or Issuer from any responsibility to the Bondholders.
Provided also that the terms of any Series Trust Deed shall supersede the provisions of this
Deed and in the event of a conflict between this Deed and any such Supplemental Trust Deed,
the provisions of the Supplemental Trust Deed shall prevail.

No such consclidation, modification, alteration or addition shall be made without the sanction of
a Special Resolution passed by the Bondholders, subject to the prior review and approval of the
SEC.

No such consolidation, modification, alteration or addition shall impose any further payment on
the Bondholders in respect of the Bonds held by them or any liability in respect thereof.

Notwithstanding the above, the Issuer and the Trustee shall seek the approval of the
Commission for any proposed modification to the Trust Deed by service of notice on the
Commission. Such proposed change shall not be given effect until the proposed change has
been approved by the Commission.

BEMNEFIT OF TRUST DEED

Nathing in this Trust Deed or in the Bonds, express or implied, shall give to any Person, other
than the parties hereto and their successors hereunder and the Bondholders, and, where
specified herein, the beneficial owners of Bonds, any benefit or any legal or equitable right,
remedy or claim under this Trust Deed.
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SECOND SCHEDULE
PROVISIONS FOR MEETINGS OF BONDHOLDERS
Who may Convene Meetings

The Trustee or the Issuer may and the Trustee shall upon the request in writing of the holders
of not less than 10% (Ten per cent) of the Bonds for the time being outstanding convene a
meeting of Bondholders to consider any matter affecting their interest including the sanctioning
by special resolution of a modification of any of the Conditions. The meeting shall be held at
such place as the Trustee shall determine or approve at the cost and expense of the Issuer.

Where Bondholders holding not less than 10% (Ten per cent) of the Bonds for the time being
outstanding request that the Trustee convenes a meeting in accordance with Clause 1.1 above,
and the Trustee should fail, neglect or refuse to do so within 10 Business Days, a meeting may
be convened by Bondholders holding not less than 25% (Twenty Five per cent) in nominal
amount of the Bonds for the time being outstanding. Such meeting shall be at the cost and
expense of the Issuer.

Notice of Meetings

At least fourteen days' notice (exclusive of the day on which the notice is served or deemed to
be served and of the day for which it is given) of every such meeting specifying the place and
day and hour of meeting and stating the resolutions to be proposed shall be given to the
Bondhelders and (in the case of a meeting convened by the Issuer) to the Trustee. The
accidental omission to give any such notice to or the non-receipt of any such notice by any of
the Bondholders shall not invalidate the proceedings at any such meeting. A meeting shall
notwithstanding that it is called by a shorter notice than that specified in this paragraph, be
deemed to have been duly called if it is so agreed by all the Bondholders entitled to attend and
vaote thereat.

Chairman

Any person nominated in writing by the Trustee shall be entitled to take the chair at every
meeting and if no such nomination is made or if at any meeting the person nominated shall not
be present within fifteen minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting the
Bondholders present shall choose one of their number to be Chairman.

Persons Entitled to Attend Meetings

The Trustee and their solicitors and any director or officer of a corporation being Trustee hereof
and any director and the secretary, solicitors and Auditors of the Issuer and any other person
authorized in that behalf by the Trustee or the Issuer (whose attendance at the meeting the
Trustee or the Issuer, acting reasonably, considers necessary for the business to be transacted
at the meeting) may attend any meeting.

Quorum

At any such meeting persons at least two in number holding or representing by proxy at least
50% (Fifty per cent) in value of the Bond for the time being outstanding shall form a quorum for
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1.

the transaction of business and no business shall be transacted at any meeting unless the
requisite guorum be present when the meeting proceeds to business.

Absence of Quorum

If within thirty minutes from the time appointed for any meeting of the Bondholders a quorum is
not present, the meeting shall if convened upon the requisition of the Bondholders be dissolved.
In any other case it shall stand adjourned to such day, time and place being not less than
fourteen days thereafter as may be appointed by the Chairman and at such adjourned meeting
the Bondholders present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote (whatever the value of the
Bonds held by them) shall form a quorum and shall have power to pass any resolution and to
decide upon all matters which could properly have been disposed of at the meeting from which
the adjournment took place.

Notice of Adjournment

At least seven days' notice of any adjourned meeting of Bondholders at which a Special
Resolution is to be submitted shall be given in the same manner (mutatis mutandis) as for an
original meeting but it shall not be necessary to specify in such notice the business to be
transacted at the adjourned meeting and such notice shall state that the Bondholders present
at the adjourned meeting (whatever the amount of Bond held) by them will form a quorum.

Adjournment

The Chairman may subject as aforesaid with the consent of (and shall if directed by) any such
meeting at which a quorum is present adjourn the same from time to time and from place to
place but no business shall be transacted at any adjourned meeting except business which
might lawfully have been transacted at the meeting from which the adjournment took place.

Method of Voting

Every question submitted to a meeting of Bondholders shall be decided on a shew of hands
unless a poll is (before or on the declaration of the result of the show of hands) demanded as
hereinafter mentioned and in case of any equality of votes the Chairman shall vote on a show
of hands and on a poll have a casting vote in addition to the vote or votes (if any) to which he
may be entitled as or on behalf of a Bondholder.

Evidence of Passing of Resolutions

At any meeting of Bondholders, unless a poll is demanded by the Chairman or by a Bondholder
or Bondholders present in person or by proxy and holding or representing in the aggregate not
less than one-tenth of the Bonds then outstanding, a declaration by the Chairman that a
resolution has been carried or carried by any particular majority or lost by any particular majority
shall be conclusive evidence of the fact without proof of the number or proportion of votes
recorded in favour of or against such resolution.

Demand on Poll
If at any such meeting a poll is so demanded it shall be taken in such manner and at such time

(not more than thirty days after the date of the meeting) as the Chairman may direct and the
result of such poll shall be deemed to be the resolution of the meeting at which the poll was
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15.

demanded but any poll demanded at any such meeting on the election of a Chairman or any
question of adjournment shall be taken at the meeting without adjournment. No notice need be
given of a poll not taken immediately and any business other than that upon which a poll is
demanded may be proceeded with pending the taking of the poll.

Proxies

The registered holder of any Bond or in case of joint holders any one of them shall be entitied
to vote in respect thereof either in person or by proxy and in the latter case as if such joint holder
were solely entitied to such Bond. If more than one of such joint holders be present at any
meeting either personally or by proxy that one of the joint holders so present whose name
stands first in the register as one of the holders in respect of such Bond shall alone be entitled
to vote in respect thereof in person or by proxy.

Form of Proxy

aj A Bondholder may appoint any person (who needs not be a Bondholder) as his proxy to
vote for him at any meeting. Every instrument appointing a proxy must be in writing
under the hand of the appointor or his attorney duly authorised in writing or in the case
of a corporation either under its common seal or under the hand of an officer or of an
attorney duly authorized in writing and must be in the usual common form or in such
other form as the Trustee may prescribe or accept. A proxy unless the contrary is stated
thereon will be valid as well for any adjournment of the meeting as for the meeting to
which it relates and need not be witnessed.

b) In every notice calling a meeting of the Bondholders there shall appear with reasonable
prominence a statement that a Bondholder entitled to attend and vote is entitled to
appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of him and that a proxy need not be a
Bondholder.

Deposit of Proxy

The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under
which it is signed or a notarially certified or office copy of such power or authority shall be
deposited at such place as may be specified in the notice convening the meeting or in some
document accompanying the same or if no place is so specified then at the registered office of
the Issuer not less than forty-eight hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or
adjourned meeting (or in case of a poll not less than twenty four hours before the time appointed
for the taking of the poll) at which the person named in such instrument proposes to vote and in
default the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid. No instrument appointing a proxy
shall be valid after the expiration of twelve months from the date named in it as the date of its
execution. An instrument appointing a proxy shall be deemed to confer authority to demand or
to join in a demand for a poll.

Revocation of Proxy

A vote given in accordance with the terms of an instrument appointing a proxy shall be valid
notwithstanding the previous death or insanity of the principal or revocation of the instrument of
proxy or of the authority under which the instrument of proxy was executed unless previous
intimation in writing of such death, insanity or revocation shall have been received by the Issuer
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at its registered office before the commencement of the meeting or the adjourned meeting at
which the proxy is used.

16. Votes

On a show of hands every Bondholder who (being an individual) is present in person or (being
a company) is present by a representative shall have one vote and on a poll every Bondholder
present in person or by proxy shall have one vote for every M1,000 or equivalent in foreign
currency (or part thereof) of the Bond of which he is the holder. On a poll a Bondholder entitied
to more than one vote need not use all his votes or cast all the votes he uses in the same way.

17. Representative of Corporate Bondholders

Any company which is a Bondholder may by writing under the hand of a duly authorised officer
authorise such person as it thinks fit to act as its representative at any meeting of the i
Bondholders and the person so authorised shall be entitled to exercise the same powers on
behalf of the corparation which he represents as that corporation could exercise if it were an
individual Bondholder. !

18. Powers of Bondholders

A meeting of the Bondholders shall in addition to all other powers but subject to the restrictions
hereinafter specified have the following powers exercisable by Special Resolution only namely:-

a) power to sanction any modification or compromise or any arrangement in respect of the
rights of the Bondholders against the Issuer or against its properties howsoever such
rights shall arise;

b) power to assent to any modification of the provisions contained in these presents which
shall be proposed or agreed to by the Issuer and to authorise the Trustee to concur in
and execute any Series Trust Deed embodying any such modifications;

c) power to give any sanction direction or request which under any of the provisions of the
Trust Deed is required to be given by Special Resolution;

f

d) power o authorise and empower the Trustee to concur in and execute and do all such 1
deeds, instruments, acts and things as maybe necessary to carry out and give effect to
any Special Resolution;

e) power to discharge or exonerate the Trustee from all liability in respect of any act of
commission or omission for which it has become responsible under these presents,

fi power to approve any person for appointment as trustee hereof or to remove the Trustee
and appoint a new Trustee.

19.  Resolution Binding
A resolution passed at a meeting of the Bondholders duly convened and held in accordance

with these presents shall be binding upon all the Bondholders whether present or not present
at such meeting and each of the Bondholders shall be bound to give effect thereto accordingly.
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Definition of Special Resolution

The expression "Special Resolution" when used in this Schedule means a resolution passed at
a meeting of the Bondholders duly convened and held in accordance with the provisions herein
contained and carried by a majority consisting of holders of not less than 75% (Seventy Five
per cent) of the value of the Bonds held by the Bondholders present and voting at the meeting.

Resolution in Writing

A resolution in writing signed by or on behalf of Bondholders holding in the aggregate not less
than 90 per cent in nominal value of the Bond then outstanding and who for the time being are
entitled to receive notice of a meeting in accordance with the provisions herein contained shall
for all purposes be as valid and effectual as a Special Resolution passed at a meeting of
Bondholders duly convened and held in accordance with the provisions herein contained. Such
resolution in writing may be contained in one document or in several documents in like form
each signed by or on behalf of one or more of the Bondholders.

Minutes of Meeting

Minutes of all resolutions and proceedings at every such meeting shall be made and duly
entered in books to be provided by the Issuer and any such minute if purporting to be signed by
the Chairman of the meeting at which such resoclutions were passed or proceedings had or by
the Chairman of the next succeeding meeting of the Bondholders shall be conclusive evidence
of the matters therein stated and until the contrary is proved every such meeting in respect of
the proceedings of which minutes have been made shall be deemed to have been duly
convened and held and all resolutions passed or proceedings had thereat to have been duly
passed and had.
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12 April 2017

The Directors

LAPD microlinance Bank Nigeria Limited
18, Dawson Road

Benin City

Edo State

Gentlemen,

ACCOUNTANTS' REFORT CN THE FilkanNCPAL STATEMENKTS OF LAPO MICROFINANCE BANR
NIGERIA LIMITEL FOR THE FIVE YEAHS ENDED 31 DEZCMBER 2016

Report on the Financ.ol Statementis

We have Feviewed the annual Hnancal stalemeats of L APC Micralinance Bank higetia Limibed ahich
comprise the statem.ont 31 tinanchal posititn a5 a1 31 DeCesier 2012 2013, 2014, 2015 ang 2016, ang
the statement of comprenensive NCome Slatement of CRanges in equily and statement of casn Hows for
the years tmen enden, and a summary of sigrificant accounting polices and other explanatary
informalion, Akintola Willlams Delgille were the dwEiiors of the Company 1of Nt 0ard enged 31
December 2012, 2013, 2C14 and /015, The 2016 fmaruia’ Liatements is unaudited

Directors’ Responsibility for the Ferandial Stalemepry

Tne Company's direstars are resporsibie tod the prepa ation angd fair sresentation of Mese fireang ol
statements i adcor dance Wik ine 3pnhTale N odt roforling ramessrk and 108 Such ek cond o
as the direclons determine o m2cessary 10 enabte the ofapardiinn of Lhe Tinanclal sialefenls 1021 a2
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Independent Reviewer s Hesponsibiity

Our responsibility Is te exp: e85 a conclusian o6 the annual fagnn al statements based on ot raview. We
conucted Ju review in accordance witr 'nlerrational 3iandard on Heview Engagements (SR 2400
Engagements (o Review Financial Sterements, 1SRE 240C reguires us to conchude whethe anything has
come to our attention that couses us 13 petieve that the financial siatements, (aven as a vnosle, A fat
prepared in all material respecls in acco, Sance «itl ihe sppicatle tnancial Tepori'ng lramewore. This
Standard aiso requires us to comply with relevant ethical requirements,

A review of Hnancial stateaents o accoraaroe wit: ISRE 2400 consisls Drimaniy of ahasineg g ies ol
managament and otners within the eni'ty rvalsed in tinanzial and accoonting nabiers. apulying
analytical protedures. and evaluating the sulficienc, and agpropridiensss of evifente ootdounl 2
review also requires performance of additiona Sroceduies wher The prachliones pecomes daeware o
maliers that cause the practitboned tc beneve Lhe Tingooial statements a5 a whoie may DE materialy
misstated,

We believe that the evidence we oblamen in out fevipw s sutficient and appropriate 10 provide B pasis
tor gur conclusion
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ACCOUNTANTS REPORT OM THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF LARD MICROFINANCE
BANK NIGERIA LIMITED FOR THE FIVE YEARS ENDED 31 CECEMBER 2616 - Continueo

Independent Reviewer's Responsibliity - Continued

W an an

ol BRDIEss

The proceduwiés perlormed in a review Engagemant are substantially fass than those pedl
audit conducted in accordance with Interrational Standards on Auditing. Accordingly. we do
an audit opinion on these financial statemenss.

The Company s duditors expressed ungualitieg operdon on che financial statements for the years ended
31 December 2012, 2013, 2014 and 201%. The 2016 financial statements is unaudited.

Coniclusion

Bated on our review, nath Fy B14% COome I2 our atlenton thel causes us 1o beheve thar o0 financial
statements o Aot present fairly, in all malerial respects, the financial positisn of LAFD Microfinance
Bank Higeria Lymiled 5 al 31 December 2012 013, 2034, 2015 and 2016, ano s heancial
perforrance and cash fiaws for each o1 the vear then onced, it accordan Cl Wit aLpnCaDs f'rancizl
reporting rrameawork.,

This report s sulely for the use of the Directass of LARD Micosheance Bank niigeria Linuied and otnes
Metevard pariies. Ho part of tnis 1epoit indy Be J-oton of creuiated outsige these parises witrout the
prige wrilten approval of Ernst & vrune

Yours 145 H‘.'L.ihl g
o

Kayade Famutima, FLa
FRC/2012/1CANSOO000000 155
For: Ernst & Young

Lagos, Nigeria
12 April 2617
|
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HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION
LAPO MICROFINANCE BANK NIGERIA LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE FIVE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Unaudited
In thousands of Nigenan Naia Naofes 06 2015 2014 13 2012
Inferesi income 4 26,660,209 16,408 496 16,503,804 10.733.224 8,654,752
Infeias! expanse 5 (2,830,052 (2,052 841) (1,550, 105) (1,100,862) (B73.660)
Met interest income 23,830,157 17,355 655 14,553,699 B 632 362 7.765.002
Fee and commissaon income 158,457 126,711 45,680 41,115 34,704
Fee and commission expense (34.617) (112.375) [54,952) {16.374) {25,878)
Net fee and commission ncome 63,540 14,335 (7.962) 24,741 B.826
Other aperating income -] 147 467 136,226 57 BB1 53,567 60,410
Total income 24 041 454 17,508 217 15.003.618 9,710,670 7,854 328
Met impairmend reversal/(chame) on lans & adhances [ (1,003.109) 174,570 (1.279.525) [273.482) (193.763)
Income after net impairment loss on financial assets 23,038, 355 17 682.787 13,724,092 9437 188 7.740,539
Parsonnel expenses 1 (7.546.022) (6,624,042 {5,181.077) {4,035,909) (3,179,182
Depreciation of property. plant and equipment (648.310) (353.648) (234,668) (178,376) (106, 6B5)
Amorisation of inlangible assels 18 (420, 318) (365,508) (283.635) {24.758) {7.BET)
Other operating sxpenses 8 (7,182,326} (5.472.151)  (3.B65.080) {2 585,600} {1.905.80%)
Total expenses (15,796,973} {12,818,650) [9.575,441) {6,825 681) (5,199,553)
Profit before income tax 7,241,376 4 853137 4 148 852 2611,508 2,540,936
Income fax expanse 10 {2.390 BE1) {1,572 075) (1.340.413) (868.215) (900, 256)
Profit for the year 4 50,485 3.261.061 2.808.238 1,743,283 1.640.730
Other comprehensive income, net of Income 12
Total comprehensive income for the year 4,850,455 3,291,081 2808239 1,743,293 1.540,730
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Microfinance Bank 4 B50 455 3.261.061 2.808.239 1,743,253 1.640.730
Total comprehensive income for the year 4 B50.455 3.201,061 2608.235 1.743.293 1.640.730
Basic and diluted eamings par share (koba) 12 122 83 72 fiZ 61

The accompanying noles ae an infegral parf of these financial staltements
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LAPO MICROFINANCE BANK NIGERIA LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
Unaudited
In thousands of Nierian Naira
3 December 34 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Notes 2016 2015 2014 -3 2012
Assats:
Cash and bank balances 13 6,936 821 5,109 467 357412 2,161,154 2090753
Placement with banks and other financial Insitutions 14 587,710 303,761 167,278 383,573 387414
Financial assets heid to maturity 15 2232 718 1,334 877 1.042 338 783,563 498748
Loans and adwances to customers 16 40,854 024 £2.951.837 32729 085 23.011 gog 16,741 149
Other agsets 17 852 324 718,277 382,690 240743 191,012
Property, plant and equipment 18 1,857 523 1546852 1187628 652,780 504,655
Intangible assats 13 163,559 433822 545 109 332577 189,583
Total assets 62584600 52398080 39626233 2757 106 20,601,315
Depasits fom customers 20 27 642 770 25,705,783 20,360,018 13,853,545 8,793,051
Bomowed funds 21 16,145 969 12825610 7,664,900 5,488 785 4,302 042
Curment income tax liability 10 3,532 563 2,095 435 1,966,163 1,878,573 2077 453
Dedered tax liabilities 11 101,281 10,281 61.220 25632 12770
Other liabilities 22 1.240 985 1.418.715 1,860,328 Gad, 202 532114
Total liabilities 44,654 569 42,145 285 31:?13,12? 21,888,730 16,717,440
Equity:
Share capital 23 1,984 028 1,985,256 1,959 610 1,400,134 1,335,934
Retainad eamings 23 B.409 449 5,356 420 3.456 547 2124 828 1,148 802
Regulatory risk resane 23 - - - 14685 16,723
Statutory resene 23 3,516,644 2810332 2458 945 2147 820 1.278.416
Total equity 13820121 10252008  7.315.108 __SB  3mans
Total liabilities and equity 62584690 52 398 gog 39628233 2757108 20,601,315

The accompanying nofes are an integral part of these financial statements

e
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LAPG MICROFINANCE BANK NIGERIA LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
Uinaisdited
11 December 2016
Statutory Regulatory risk Retained
In thousands af Migenan Naira Share capital reserve L eamings Total equity
Baance at 1 Janwary 3018 1,965,256 2910332 5356 420 10252 008
Profit fof the year - 4 850 495 4,850,205
Todal compreendive income for the year - 4 850,455 4,850,405
Transactions with equity holders recorded directly in equity:
Transher io regulatory risk resane . 2
Transter to statutory resene 608, 312 (506,312}
Drudend 0n account of 2015 acrount 11,1910 155) {1.191,158,
Bonius shares issued during the year . . Y
Shares issued dunng the year 8772 - . 8772
B2 606.312 {1.797 45T) {1182 388
Balance at 11 December 2016 1,954,028 3,516,844 - 8,409,448 13,920,120
The accompanyng notes are aa miegral part of these financial slatemenrs
LAPQ MICROFIMANCE BANK WIGERIA LIMITED:
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR EMDED
I Decernber 2015
Statutory Regulatory risk Ritained
In thowusands of Mganan Mara Share capital it 4 v i 58 P eamings Total equity
Balance at 1 January 2015 1,650,610 2.498,343 - 3,456 547 7,815, 10¢
Proft for the year 3 291,061 3.291 061
Total comprehermsive income for the year - 3,281,061 3281061
Transactions with equity holders recorded directly in equity:
Trangder to requiatory nsk resens - . .
Transier fo stautory resene - 411,383 - (411,383 .
Drudend on account of 2014 account - - - (979, 805) (579 808
Banus shares ssued during the year - - - .
Shares issued during the year 25 645 - - 25 B4
25,645 411 383 {1381, 188) (354 15¢
Balance at M December 2015 1,985, 256 2,910,332 - 5,156,420 10,252, 00
*

The accompatying nofes am an infegral part of these fnancial Satmants
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LAPO MICROFINANCE BANK NIGERIA LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHAMGES N EQUATY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 December 2014
In thousands of Nigenan Naira Statutory Reguiatory risk Retained
Share capital reserve rese re eamings Total equity

Balance at 1 January 2014 1,400,134 2147920 14,685 21468 5,687 367
Pmit for the year - 2808230 2808, 239
Total comnprehansne income for the year - 2,808,239 2808.238
Transactions with equity holders recorded directly in equity:
Transfer (fromi'io reguiatory risk resene - (14,685) 14 685
Transter o statutony resene 351029 - [351,029) -
Dhitend on account of 2013 account . - 500,097 600.097)
Bonus shares ssusd duning the year 539,679 (539 879) B
Shares isswed dunng the year 18,587 - . - 19,547

558 476 35105 {14,585) (1.476,320) {580, 500)
Balance at 31 December 2014 1,858,610 2438 949 3,456,547 7,915,106
The accompanyng noles are an infegral part of thess financial statements
LAFO MICROFIMANCE BAMK MIGERIA LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR EMDED
31 December 2013
in thousands of Magenan Kaira Statutory Regulatory risk Retained

Share capital resere e s rve eamings Total equity

Balance at 1 January 2013 1,329 934 1,278,416 116,723 1,148,802 3883 BTE
Profit for the year 1.743 203 1,743 793
Total comprehensive income for the year 1.743.283 1743 263
Transactions with equity holders reconded directly in equity:
Transler o regulatory risk resene . {102.058) 102 038
Tranaker o statulory mesere . 863,504 . (865, 504) -
Shaves issued duning the year 60,200 . . - 60,200
Total contributions and distributions to owners 60,200 BEA. 504 {102 038y [TET 466) 60,200
Balance at 31 December 2013 1,400,134 Eilﬂ"m 14,685 2,124 628 5,687,387

The accompanying noles & an integral padt of these financial statements
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LAPO MICROFINANCE BANK NIGERIA LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 Decomber 2012
In thousands of Migenan Naira Statutory Regulatory risk Retained

Share capial TeSE Ve FESE Ve eamings Total equity
Balance al 1 January 2012 1,323,034 454 (47 43 938 405176 2227 145
Profil for the year . 1.640.730 1.640.75)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 1.640.730 1,640,730
Transactions with equity holders recorded directly in equity:
Transfer 1o regulatory risk resene : 12735 (72.735)
Transter fo stalutory resene - B4 350 (824,368
Shiares issued ourning the year 16,000 - - . 16.000
Total contributions and distributions to owners 16.000 - . 16.000
Balance ai 31 December 2012 1,339,934 1,278,416 116,723 1,148 802 1,883,875

The accompanying nofes ame an mfagral part of these fmancal sfatements
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LAFO MICROFINANCE BANK MIGERIA LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FIVE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Unaudited
In thousands of Niganan Naira Notes 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activities
Prefit afier incame tax, including discontinued operations
4 850, 405 3,201 081 2808239 1743250 1,640,730

Adustments for
Depreciation of property and equipments 18 £48.310 153,648 234 658 178,376 106,685
Amadisation of intangible assets 149 420,313 359 803 283 B35 24,796 7857
Wet impainment loss on loans and adwances 1,003,109 (102,555} 1,167 453 230,062 70,293
et impairment on other assets 17 29201 72,015 112,072 43430 43 495
Allowance for other asset wiitten off 17 - (152.375) (31,923 - -
Bad debt weitten off g - - . . 48,530
(Profityless on disposal of property and equiprent - 1137 (28) 417 (2.683)
Exchange gain - - - (330) -
Mat infenest ncome (23.830,157)  {17.355.656) (14853 698) (9632362 (7.785.002)
Income tax expense 10 2.380.5881 1.572.076 1,340 413 B6B.215 900.256

(14487 842)  (11.950,840) {9,039.165) (5544, 114) (4.969.917)
Change in lpans and advances 10 cusiomerns (7 B6T 356)  (10.120.216) (10.900.2300  (6.500.595) {3.550.407)
Change in olher assels {124,048} {255 227) {206, B52) (82,161} (4%.058)
Change in deposits from customers 1,036 987 5,345 BT 6,506,470 4 D&D 405 2779599
Company Income 1ax paid 10 (953.814) {1.402 683) (12172350  (1,054.247) -
Change in other liabaitses (244 BET) (512.172) 424 261 112 086 175377

(21.750.941)  (18.895.371) (14,432 595) (10019 524) {7.614.400)
Interest recened 26,660,200 19,408 456 16,503, B4 10,733 224 8,658,752
Interest paid (2, 830.052) (2,052 Ba1) (1,550,105} (1, 100.B62) (873 6&0)
Met cash (used in)provided by operating activities 2.079.216 {1,538.716) 521,104 (387 167y 170,652
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of treasury bills (847 841} (£92.538) {278, T55) (266.834) (154,047}
Met mioWement & place with banks and other financial
insftutions (283 949) (136, 485) 226,297 {6,159) 163,545
Purchase of propeny and equipment 18 [1.058,982) (713,180} (768,.523) (328,139) {279,075)
Proceeds from the sale of property and equipment = 35 38 3353 3,547
Purchase of intangible assets 19 1150.066) 258,522 {496, 1659) {167 790} {186,943)
Net cash used in investing activities {2.350.838) {883.647) {1.318.112) (765,558 (452 929)
Cash flows from financing activities
Increase in bomowed funds 3321088 4,312,252 2.178. 112 1,162,930 1.122.315
Oradend paid {1.191,155) {379, 198) {7.730) . -
Share proceeds 8772 25,646 19,597 £0.200 16.000
et cash provided by financing activities 2,138,976 3.958.700 2.189.979 1.243.130 1,136,315
et incraase in cash and cash equivalenis 1.827.354 1,535 338 1,392 971 @0 405 856078
Cash and cash equnalents at beginning of year 5,109,467 3.574.129 2.181.158 2.080.753 1.2 E75
Effect of exchange rale luctuations on cash held -
Cash and cash aquivalents at end of year 13 £.936. 821 5,109 467 3574129 2,181,158 2.050.753

The accompanying nofes are an infegral parnt of these fnancial sfatements.
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(a)

(k)

(c)

(d}

3.1

LAPD MICROFINANCE BANK MIGERIA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FIVE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Reporting entity

LAFO Microfinance Bank Limiled (LAPO MFB) was incorporated in Migera on 25 April, 2007 under ihe provisions of the
Companies and Allied Matters Act CAP C20 LFN 2004 with Registration Number RC BBSEET. It was licenced to carry on
the business of microfinance banking as a stale microfinance bank on 21 June, 2010 by the Central Bank of Nigera. On
September 2012, an additional approval to operate as a national microfinance bank was granted by the Central Bank of
Migeria. Lift Abowe Poverty Organization (LAPO) NGO Limited by Guarantee is the major shareholdar i the bank witk
over 60% shamholdings

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

These financial statements haws been prepared in accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).
The financial stalements comply with the Companies and Allied Matters Act. Bank and Other Financial Institutitions Act,
Financial Reporting Council Act of Migeria, Supendsory Framewark for Microfinance Banks in Migena issued by the
Central Bank of Nigena and relevant circulars issued by the Central Bank of Nigeria,

Functional and presentation curreney

The financial statements are presented in Migeran Naira, which is the Microfinance Bank’s functional currency Except
as indicated financial information presented in Naira has been rounded lo the nearest thousand, excepl when otherwise
slated.

Basis of measurement
These inancial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis.

Use of estimates and judge ments

The preparation of financial statements requires management (o make judgements, estimates and assumptions thal
affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assels and liabilities, income and expenses, The
eslimales and associated assumptions are based on historical expenence and \anious othear factors that are believed ic
ba reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements aboul camying
walues of assets and liabilities thal are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual fesulls may differ from these
estimates. The estimates and wnderying assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Rewsions to accounting
eslimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised. if the revision aflects only that penod, or in the
period of the revision and future periods, if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies sef out below hawe been censistenily applied to all periods presented in these financial stateman

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign cumency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the Microfinance Bank at exchange rates
prevailing &l the date of the transactions

Foreign exchange gains or losses resulling from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of
maonetary assets and liabilities danominated in foreign cumencies at year end exchange rates, are recognised in the

Mon-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cumencies that are measured at historical cost are translated
using the exchange rate at the transaction date, and those measured at fair value are ranslated at the exchange rate
that the fair valse was determined. Exchange differences on non-monetary ilems am accounted for based on the
classification of the underying items.
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LAPD MICROFINANCE BANK NIGERIA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Significant accounting policies - continued

Interest

Interest income and interest expense for all interest bearing financial instruments, except for those classified at fair value
through profit or loss, are recognised within “interest income’ and ‘interest expense’ in the income slatement using the
efiective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exaclly discounts the estimated fulure cast
payments and receipls through the expecied life of the financial asset or liability {or, where appropriate, a shorer period
to the net camying amount of the financial asset or liability. The effective interest rate is calculated on initial recognitior
of the financial asset and liability and is not revised subsequently.

The calculation of the efliective interest rate includes all fees and points paid or received, transaction costs, anc
discounts or premiums that are an integral part of the eflective interest rate. Transaction costs are incremental costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or liability.

Interest income and interest expense presented in the income statement include interest on financial assets and
liabilities at amortised cost on an efflective interest basis.

Fees and Commission

Fees and commission income and commission expenses that are integral to the efiective interest rate on a financia
assel or liability are included in the measurement of the eflective interest rate. Other fees and commission income
including account senicing fees, placement fees, sales commission and syndication fees, are recognised as the relatec
senices are performed.

When a loan commitment is not expected to result in the draw-down of a loan, loan commitment fees are recognised or
a straighl-line basis over the commitment period.

Other fees and commission expense relates mainly {o transaction and senice fees, which are expensed as the senices
are received,

Income tax expense
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the income statemeny
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on taxable income for the year, using tax rales enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date, and any adjusiment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary difierences between the
camying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes,
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LAPO MICROFINANCE BANK NIGERIA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Significant accounting policies - continued

Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences:

(i) temporary difierences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill;
(i) temporary diffierences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business

combination and that afiects neither accounting nor taxable profit;

(iii) temporary differences relating to imestments in subsidiaries to the extent that they probably will not rewerse in the

foreseeable future; and

(v} temporary differences arising from investment property measured at fair value whose camying amount will be

recovered through use. ’]

Deferred lax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse
based on laws that hawe been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

A defemed lax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be awailable the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.the extent that it is no longer probable tha
the related tax benefit will be realised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include notes, coins in hand and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of less
than three months, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Microfinance
Bank in the management of its short-term commitments. Cash and cash equivalenis are carried at amortised cost in the
statement of financial position.

Financial Instruments

Recognition

All ather financial assets and liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable costs, excepts those
camed at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are recognised immediately in profit or loss. Finar )
instruments are recognised (derecognised) on the dale the Microfinance Bank commits to purchasel{sell) e
instruments (trade date).

Classification

Financial assets:

The Microfinance Bank classifies its financial assets in one of the following categories:
- loan and receivables; and

- held to maturity

Financial liabilities:
The Microfinance Bank classifies its financial liabilities as liabilities measured at amotised cost.

Subsequent Measuramant
Subsequent to initial measurement, financial instruments are measured either at fair value or amortised cost, depending
on their classification:
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LAPO MICROFINANCE BAMK NIGERIA LIMITED
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Significant accounting pelicies - continued

Held-to-mafurity

Held-to-maturity investiments are non-dervative financial assels wilth fixed determinable payments and fixed maturities
that management has both the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity and which weme nol designated as at fain
walue through profit and loss or as awailable for sale.

A sale or reclassificalion of more than an insignificant amount of held-lo-maturily inestments would result in the
reclassification of all held-to-maturity investments as awilablefor-sale, and prevent the Microfnance Bank from
classifying investmen! securities as held-to-maturity for the cument and the financial years. The diffierence betweer
amaortised cost and fair value will be accounted for in equity. However, sales and reclassifications in any of the following
circumstances would nol tngger a reclassification.

~ sales or reclassifications that are so close to maturity that changes in the market rate of inlerst would not havwe =
significant effect on the financial assets fair walue,

- sales or meclassificalions after the Microfinance Bank has collected substantially all of the assets oniginal principal; ano
- sales and reclassification atinbutable to non-recuring isolated events beyond the Microfinance Bank's control thal
could have been reasonably anticipated.

Held-to-maturity imvestments are camied at amortised cost, using the efflective interest method, less any provisions for
irmpairrrant.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-denwative financial assels with fixed or determinable payments that ame not guoted in an
active market, other than those classified by the Microfinance Bank as af fair value through profit or loss or available-for-
sale,

Loans and recenvables are measwed at amoriised cost using the effective inlerest method, iess any impairment losses.
Origination transaction cosls and origination fees received that are integral 1o the effective rale are capitalised to the
value of the loan and amortised through interesl income as par of the efflective interest rate. All of the Microfinance
Bank's loans and advances are included in the loans and receivable category.

Impairment of financial asssts

Assels camed at amortised cos!

The Microfinance Bank assesses al each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial assel o
group of inancial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
ame incurmed if, and only if. there is objective evdence of impairment as a resull of one or mone ewants that occumed afler
the initial recognition of the assels (a loss event’), and thal loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated futue
cash flows of the financial asset or group of inancial assels that can be reliably estimated

The Microfinance Bank considers evidence of impairment al both a specific asset and collective level, All individually
significant assets are assessed for specific impaiment. All signifcant assets found not to be speciically impaired ane
then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incumed but not yel identified by grouping together financial
assels (camed at amortised cost) with similar nisk characteristics. Objective evdence that Bnancial assels (including
equily secunties) are impaired can include:

{a) a breach of contract such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal repayments by a bomower,
(b} restructuring of a loan or advance by the Microfnance Bank on terms thal the Microfnance Bank would not

othersise consider,

{c) indications that a bormower or issuer will enter bankruplcy’;
(d) the disappearance of an active market for a secunty, or othar,
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LAPO MICROFINANCE BANK NIGERIA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Significant accounting policies - continued

Property and equipment

Recognition and measurement

lems of property and equipment are camed at cost less accumulated depreciation and impaimment losses. Cost
includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. When parls of an item of property or
equipment have difierent useful Ines, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of propery and
equipment.

Subsequent cosls

The cost of replacing parl of an item of property or equipment is recognised in the camying amount of the item if it is
probable that the fulure economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Microfinance Bank and its cost can
be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day senvicing of property and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straightdine basis cuer the estimated usehul lives of each part of an item
of property and equipment, Leased assels are deprecialed ower the shorer of the lease term and their useful Fwes.
Depreciation begins when an asset is awilable for use and ceases at the eadier of the date that the asset is
derecognised or classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 MNoncument Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations.

The estimated useful lives for the cument and comparative periods are as follows:

Leasehold land Ower the shorter of the useful life of item or lease period
Flant and equipments 8 years
Computer equipments 3 years
Fumiture and fittings 8 years
Matar whicles 4 years

Capital work in progress is not depreciated. Upon completion it is transferred to the relevant asset category.
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at each reporting date.

De-recognifion

An itern of property and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no flure economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the diflerence between the net
disposal proceeds and the carying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised.

Intangible assets

Software

Software acquired by the Microfinance Bank is stated at cost less accumulated amorisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Expenditure on intemally developed software is recognised as an asset when the Bank is able to demonstrate its
intenticn and ability te complete the development and use the software in a manner that will generate fulure economic
benefils, and can reliably measure the costs 1o complete the development. The capitalised costs of intemally developed
software include all costs directly attributable to deweloping the software, and are amortised ower its useful life. Intemnally
developed software is stated al capitalised cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment.
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LAPO MICROFINANCE BANK NIGERIA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Significant accounting policies - continued

Intangible assets - continued

Subsequent expenditure on software assels is capilalised only when il increases the future economic benefils embedied
in the specific asset 1o which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred Amaortisation is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis cwer the estimated useful life of the software, from the date that it is available for use. The
estimated usefd life of software is three years, This is reassessed annually.

Impairment of nen-financial assets

The camying amounts of the Microfinance Bank's non-Binancial assets other than goodwill and defemrmed tax assels are
rendewed al each reporting date to determine whether there is any indicalion of impairment. If amy such indication exists
then the assel's recoverable amount is estimated.

An impaimment loss is recognised if the camying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unil exceeds its recoverable
amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable assel group that generales cash flows thal largely ane
independent from other assets and groups. Impairment losses are recognised in profil or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating unils are allocated first to reduce the camying amount of ary infangible assel
allocated to the units and then to reduce the camying amount of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata
basis.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating wnit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs
to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate thal reflects cument markel assessments of the fime value of money and the risks specific to the assel.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised i
prior periods are assessed al each reporting dale for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exisis. Ar
impaiment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to delermine the recoverable amount. Ar
impairment loss is reversed only to Ihe extent thal the assel's camying amount does nol exceed the camying amount
that would have been delermined, mel of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
Rewrsals of impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past ewent, the Microfinance Bank has a present legal or constructive
obligation thal can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an cutfow of economic benefils will be required to settle
the obligation. obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected fulure cash flows at a pre-lax rale thal
refiects cument markel assessments of the time value of money and, where apprapriate, the risks specific to the lability,

A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Microfinance Bank has approved a detailed and formal restructuring
plan, and the restructuring either has commenced or has been announced publicly. Future operating costs are nof
provided for.

A provision for onerous conlracts is recognised when the expecled benefits to be derived by the Microfinance Bank from
a confract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the conlract. The provision is measured at
the present walue of the lower of the expected cost of lerminaling the contract and the expected net cost of continuing
with the contracl. Before a provision is established, the Microfinance Bank recognises any impairment loss on the
assels associated with that contracl.
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LAPO MICROFINANCE BANK NIGERIA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Unaudited
In thousands of Nigenan Naira 2016 015 014 k] 2012
Interestincome
Cash and Bank balances 2082 1312 T4E - 754
Placement 40470 6,616 22 T8 .
Treasury bills 197.230 187.234 90,25 0523 f2113
Loans and athancas to customers 6420420 191339 15409535 10654462 B 589.116
26660203 1940843 15503804 107334 868875
Interest expense
Deposit fom customers 108,965 535,766 305 106 207 29 126.119
Bomowed funds 2121087 1517075 1,240 9494 893,563 747 541
2,830,052 2,052,841 1,550,105 1,100,862 873,660
Other operating income
Faresgn exchange gain 1243 4995 k1] -
Gain on disposal of property and equipment g7 i 33 1,683
Bad debls recovered 2353 1.902 5,557 6,752 134
Sale of passbook 12 606 21,563 19210 5.1 1.2
E-business 14370 13,572 -
Commission income %7 2889 . -
Others 116,942 66,430 26,091 34n 30097
147 467 138,226 57,881 53,567 60,410
Net impairment reversaliicharge) on loans & advances
Callective impairment reversall{change) on loans and advances {80.542) 136,361 {32670) (23,133) (16,140
Speciic impairment reversall{charge) on loans and adances (393,366) ST (1134784) 1206,919) (54,153
Specific impairment reversall{charge) on ofher assets (29,201) 72,015 (112.072) [£3.430) (43455
(1,003,109 174570 [1.279.805) (734820 (4431784
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LAPO MICROFINANCE BANK NIGERIA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Significant accounting policies - continued

313 Employee benefits

Defined contrbution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contnbutions into
separate enlity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay futther amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution plans are recognised as personnel expenses in profit or loss in the period during which related sendces are
rendered. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future
payments is available.Contributions that are due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period in which the
employees render the senice are discounted o the present value,

Termination benefils

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the Microfinance Bank is demonstrably committed, without
realistic pessibilily of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to terminate employment before the normal retirement date.
Termination benefits for wiuntary redundancies are recognised if the Microfinance Bank has made an offer encouraging
voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted, and the number of acceptances can be estimated
reliably.

Short-ferm benefits

Shortdem employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the relateg
senice is provided.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under shor-term cash banus or profit-sharing plans if the
Microfinance Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past sendce prowded
by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably,

314 Share capital and reserves
Share issue cosls

Incremental cosls directly altributable to the issue of an equity instrument are deducted from the initial measurement o
the equily insiruments. |

Dividend on ordinary shares
Dividends on the Microfinance Bank's ordinary shares ate recognised in equity in the period in which they are paid or, i
earlier, approved by the Microfinance Bank's shareholders,

315 Earnings per share
The Microfinance Bank presents basic eamings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated
by diding the profit or loss atftributable to ondinary shareholders of the Microfinance Bank by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period,

Diluted EF'S is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to shareholders and the average number of ordinary
shares outstanding for the effect of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which comprise share opfions granted tc
employess,
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LAPD MICROFIMANCE BANK NIGERIA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

B Personnel pxpenses

Unawdited
In thausands of Negensn Naira 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Wages and salaries Tii2an 5264, TOB 4 976 653 3,880 038 3081 T19
Contribaitions to defined cantributin plans 433 651 326 407 200,585 148,131 80129
Othes siafl costs 32 B44 13839 6,842 7344

7,546,022 E,824,047 5,181,077 4,015,509 3,179,182

Thawfumbuufmﬂtm.thMmmm

@) foliows Numbar Humber Number MNumber Mumbear
Managerial 30 25 2% 23 21
Senor stall Th4 540 BT i) 487
Juneor siaft 5 568 521 3,589 2544 2 189

6,382 5,886 4,231 3,184 2,677

) Number of empioyees ciher than Directors, whose dutses were wholly o mainiy dhischanged in Migena, received remuneration {encluding pension. contrbul
other benefisfallowances) in fecenpt of emoluments within the falicwang ranges

Numbar MNurnber Mumber HNumbar Numbar
Below 700,001 ] 236 254 187 a2
700001 - @00.000 2,124 1.120 441 567 643
800001 - 00000 .| 1,084 816 733 BET
800,001 - 1,000,000 435 1,558 1625 880 588
Abis 1,000,000 2.840 1.190 895 a7 507
6,392 5885 421 1184 2617
¥ Other operating e xpenses
Unaudited
In thausands of Nigeran M 2015 2015 2014 2013 12
Insurance presmeum 450 ZRE 154,348 134,295 B9, 196 45,953
Rent and rates 392 654 13 B0 252 Bas 167,201 144, 744
Tl"ilinq 533375 62 687 BET 464 B4 014 258 135
Repairs and maintenance T46 D45 379,345 288 2eg 353 988 184 455
Software & connactiuty TBE. 912 934 671 205,452 . -
Tranetiing 1622 848 1,308 836 831576 582 047 37T 206
Professionad feas 156 859 150.031 138,035 87815 72,145
Foreign exchangs loss 281 544 - . 41234 934
m;mhmﬂmmmm . 1,784 . 800 .
Fines and penalties . 1.200 450 450 2803
Auddors remunecation 15,000 15,000 12,000 12,000 12.000
Directors emoluments 26,088 5,780 15,600 10,815 36,133
EBad debt wilten of - - . . 48,530
Programime meeting expenses 247 265 150,788 128 864 B2621 70,233
AGM gxpenses 1,021 182 145 2 -
Office maintenance & cleansng expenses 265 183 178 107 100088 S0 486 &5 500
Printing and siationenes 430 @52 62 48 208,105 155,634 a7
Telephone and emails 185,178 120116 7583 55.307 44 a4
Adertising and business pramation 176, 324 A7 450 B4 238 13,665 30,793
Secunty sxpanses 205 220 181 506 170,73 127 742 124 875
Bank charges 245 335 282,320 T840 255 788 205178
Schalarship Programme expenses 91,755 9 05 67,822 35 432 25,580
. MF Lewy 78,610 62 524 8B 096 -

General admirisiralig expenses 62239 153,802 51 121 45,153 55.212
Seneral adminstratres expens B S1128 0 45183 ssan

T.182.328 5,471,151 3,866,060 2,586,600 1,905,809
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LAPD MICROFIMANCE BANK NIGERIA LIMITED
WOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
10 Taxation

Recognised in the statement of profit or loss and compre hensive income

I

Unaudited
In thousands of Nigerian Maira 16 W15 W14 013 w12
(a) Current tax expense
Company income fax 2173528 1,381 961 1,177,235 7013 828,566
Testiary education fax 144 902 101,423 86,104 56 2668 58,136
Information technology development lewy 72,451 43631 41456 X072 27904
2,380,881 1532015 1,304 825 B55.353 915,008
(b) Deferred tax expense
Origination of temporary diffierences - 40,061 35,588 12 862 -
Rewersal of lemporary diflerences (14,750
Total income tax expense 2,390,881 1572076 1,340,413 868,215 900,256
Reconciliation of effective tax expense
Profit before income tax 7.241.376 4863137 4 148 652 2611508 2,540 %86
Income tax 2173 528 1455 541 1,244 556 783452 762,206
Mon- deductible expenses 39,795 5502 38,209 f1.970 Mar
Tertiary education fax 144 502 101,423 66,104 56,268 54,136
Inforrmaticn fechnology deselopment lew T2.451 4631 41,486 26072 17904
Pemanent difference (319,795) {B5.821) {69,882} (59,547 16,993
2,390,881 1,572076 1,340,413 BEg 215 900, 256
ic) Current tax liabilities
Batancs, beginning of year 2,085 495 1,965 163 1878573 2077 463 1,162 457
Charge for the year 2,300,891 1532015 1,304 B25 855,353 915,008
Payment during the year (953814) (1402683  (1.217.235) [1.054.243) -
Balance, end of year 1,532 562 2,085,435 1,966,163 1,878,573 2,017 483
11 Deferred tax fabilifies
At 1 January 101,281 fi1.220 25,632 12770 151
Charge for the year - 40,061 35,588 12862 {14.751'
A1 31 December 1M, 281 101,281 1,24 25632 12,170
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LAPD MICROFINANCE BANK MIGERIA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
Eamings per share

Basic eamings per share

The caleulation of basic eamings per share as at 31 December 2016 was based on the profit atinbulabie 1o ordinary shareholders of
4. B50million{2015 © N3.291million) (2014: N2 B08million), (2013:N1,743millien). (2012:N1,640million) and a weighted average number of
ordimary shares outstanding of N3, 988millan (2015 'N3.570million (2014 N3, 918 millan), (2013 N2 B00millon). (2012: M2 679million).

Unaudited

M December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Decembe:
In thousands of Nigenan Naira 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Bank 4 850,405 3.291.062 2,808 238 1,743,203 1.640,730
Total 4,B50, 405 3,291 062 2.808.238 1,743,253 1,640,730
Issued ordinary shares. al begnning of the year 3.970.512 3.919.220 2,600 268 2679868 2.547 868
LAPO NGO- Transker from deposit for shares . - . -
Effect of shares issued during the year 17.544 51,282 1,118,952 120.400 32.000
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding 3.988,055 3.970.512 3.818.220 2 BOD 268 2 670,868
Basic eamings per share (koba) 122 83 T2 52 61

The Microfinance Bank does not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares Therefore. Basic EPS and Diluted EPS for continuing aperatio
for the Micrafnance Bank

Cash and bank balances
Unaudited
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Decembae:
In thousands of Nigerian Naira 2016 2015 014 2013 012
Cash in hand 225,142 B4 B33 272661 30,398 63 165
Balances with banks 6.711.678 5,024 634 3.301.468 2,150,760 2 027 588

6,035,821 5, 108,467 3.574.129 2,181,158 2.080.753

Placement with banks and other financial Insitutions

Money market placements with S0days maturity - - 11,188 G2 544 163.703

Money market placements with more than $0days maturity S47.710 303.761 155,077 330.929 23
587710 3,751 Iﬁ?ﬂ 393,573 387 414

Financial assets held to maturity

Treasury bails 22312718 1,334,877 1.042 338 753,583 496,748

2232718 1,334 877 1,042 338 753.583 496,749

In 2012 the Micro Finance bank's treasury bill was pledged as collateral for bomowed funds. The financial assets are pledged under lerms
that ane usual for such activties.
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LAPO MICROFIMANCE BANK NIGERIA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continuéd

Loans and sdvances o customers
Unaudited
M December 2018
In thousands of Nigenan Specific Collective Total Carrying
Naira Gross amount impainment impairment impairment amount
Microfinance loans 51,977,008 (2177743 (235 B4T) {2,413 550) 45 553 417
S1af loan 354 675 (63.353) (BTS) (54, DES) 200,607
Oither kpans to indiidual -
£ 331 683 {2,241 136) (236 522y [2 477 B58) 45,854 024
Micro Finance loans ane wilth a duration of less than 12months
3 December 2015
I thousands of Nigeran Specific Collective Total Carrying
Naira Gross amount impairment impairment impairment amount
Microfinance loans 44 197 061 (1,284,377) {155 305) (1,438 682) 42 757 37C
Staf loan 258,528 (63 383) (675) (B4, 068) 154 45E
44 455 587 {1.347 770) {158 980) {1.503 750) 47 551 §37
Micro Finance leang e with a duralion of less than 12months
31 December 2014
In thousands of Migeran Specific Collective Total Carrying
Naira Gross amount impairment impairment impairment amount
Micmfinance loans 32 TET 044 {1,250 512 (111 850} {1.362 462) 31424 582
Stafl loan 233971 (B4, BBO) (SB4) (35 464) 138.507
Other Inans o indniduals 1,314 355 (144, 265) {4,0B5) (148 380) 1,165 GTE
34335371 (1,489 6BT) {116.618) {1,606 306) 32,729,068
31 December 2013
In thousands of Miganan Specific Collective Total Carrying
Naira Gross amount impairmeant impairment impairment amount
Microfinance loans 21,381,915 {232 .038) (77.288) (309_328) 21.072 588
Other loans to indeaduals 2,053 225 (107 461) (B,681) (114,122 1,939 102
23,435,140 (36 A58) (B3 949) {423.448) 23.011 89z
M December 2012
I thousands of Nigenan Specific Collective Total Carrying
Naira Gross amount im pairment impairment impairment amouni
Microfinance loans 16,426 857 {115, 084) (59 614) {174 678) 16,252 27¢
Other loans 1o indhiduals 507,588 {17 516) {1.202) [18.718) 488 ATC
16,934 545 {132 580) {80.B18) [153.396) 16,741, 148
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LAFD MICROFINANCE BANK MIGERIA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued
Loans and advances to customers - Continued

Specific allowances for impairment on loans and advances io customers

Unaudited
31 December 3 December 31 December 31 Decembar 31 Decembar
In thousands. of Nigenan Naira 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Al 1 Janugny 1.347, 770 1.489 687 339 400 132.580 78427
Reclassification from other assets (Nole 17 ) . . 15,404 - -
Transder from LIFT MFB = - & - .
Charge(reversal) for the year [Note Tl 93 366 (141917 1,134,784 206,919 54 153
At 31 December 2.241.136 1,347 770 1,460 BT 339,459 132 560
Collective allowances for impairment on loans and advances to cuslome rs
Unaudited
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
In thousands of Nigenian Maira 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Ealance beginning of year 155.980 116,619 B3 fag 60,816 44676
Transter from LAPO NGO - . - . -
Charge for the year (Note 7) 80 542 38,351 32670 23,133 16,140
Balance end of year 236522 155.980 116.619 B3, 545 G0 816
Other assets
Unaudited
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
In thousands of Migerian Naira 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Prepaymants BB0, 182 478 361 276,517 185 857 155,282
Due frem insurance company (Note 17 1) 182,335 190 423 172 407 116,092 73365
Stock of stationenes, . 2675 6,325 . -
Other recenables 163.767 171,688 132,569 69,177 59,318
1,006, 294 843045 587 818 381,126 287 985
Specific allowances for impairment on other
assars (Nole 17,5 {153 969 (124.768) (205 128) (140,383 (96.953)
B52 325 718277 382 650 240, 743 191.012

Thig represents indemnity from mswance Company i respect of loan asset insured agamst death, fre and permanant dizability.

Movernent in specific allowances for impadirment on olher assels

Unaudited

31 December 31 December 31 Decembar 31 Decamber 31 December
In thousands of Nigenan Maira 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Al 1 Januaey 124 TEE 205128 140, 383 06,953 53,457
Reclassification to loan {note 16} - - (15, 404) - -
Wite off duning the year - {152 375) (31.923) - -
Charge for the year 28,20 72015 112,072 3 430 43 456
At 31 December 153 869 124.768 205128 140,383 95 953
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LAPO MICROFIMNANCE BANEK MIGERIA LIMITED
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued

18 Property, plant and squipment

Unaudited
As at 31 December 2018
Plant
in theusands of e
i, Bt Nigesian Nairs Leasshold Motor Computer equipme Furniture
Land vehicles o o L | e nt  and fitings Total
At 1 January 2016 478 367 227 a67T 671,123 828, 380 703 568 2.708 814
Addebicans 174, 186 dzd 278,332 272 &70 333170 1. 058 a2
At 31 Docember 2016 652 553 227,791 D48 455  ©01,260 1,036,738 3 767 797
| AL 1 January 2015 458 514 146 848 44T BOD 438 605 504, 308 1,996 261
| Aoditions 16,853 80521 223 402 1846 785 199,619 713,180
Dhs pospis 2 = L R N | . . ___1827)
Al 31 Decermibser 2015 ATH, 36T 227 IGT 671,123 G528 250 T3, 568 2, 708 B15
: Al 1 Janusry 2014 137,582 110,661 Add 485 272 768 362 003 1,327 886
Agdclitions 320,832 36, 185 o4 212 165, B840 142 355 TES 523
Dz posais - = [k =0] = {51} {B45)
Al 31 Decembser 2014 = A58, 514 146, Bdi A47 8498 438 605 S0 38T 1,908 281
Al 1 January 2013 132,500 68,022 248 G5B 174,324 291,588 913,103
Additions 5,082 55 G40 @7 610 a5, 186 TO620 328130
Dhsposals - {11,001} {1,783) (7458} (116) {13,655)
At 31 December 2013 137 582 110,661 344 485 272 78S B2 OB 1,227 536
At 1 Janumry 2012 3,500 57,202 215,002 138,802 245,086 680, Ta2
Agcditing 126,000 33 685 X4 GRE 35 202 46,503 270,076
Disposais o - i24.058) (1,020) (780 = 26, 755)
At 31 December 2012 i 132 500 66, 022 248 668 174,324 291,589 213,103
Aceumuiated depreciation
Unauwdited
AL 1 January 2016 - 132 401 483 P66 231 245 313,051 1161, 563
Chusrgpe for the year B 63,404 A58 610 75 T32 150, 564 a0
At 31 December 2018 = 195 805 Ba1 BTG 308 977 453 615 1,810,273
At 1 January 2015 . 80036 340,005 156 655 231,838 B08 B35
Charge for (he year . 52,385 143, 380 76590 A1 313 353 _B4B
Disposal - - (118) = 201} {320
At 31 Decembar 2015 = 132 401 463,266 233 745 313.051 1,161 863
Al 1 Jdanuany 2014 - A7 518 252 774 103,135 171,379 574 BOT
Charge for the year - 32,521 BB 028 53.516 60,802 234 GER
Ll Drsposal : - gem - @y qaay
Al 31 December 2014 - B0.0E6 340, 005 156 655 231 939 808 635
At 1 danuary 2013 = 28913 183 836 65 500 127,958 406, 306
| Charge fof tha year - 26147 70,641 38,006 43 492 178,376
Dusposal - 7, 545} i1, Fa3) (467} 71 (8. 87T6)
Al 31 December 2013 - 47,515 _ 252 TT4 103 138 171,378 574_806
Al 1 Januany 2012 Ta &4 420 140, 505 48 932 83,177 327 603
Charge for the year 2,063 8, 640 43,951 17.041 34,781 1006 BES
Cisposal — - (24.356) - i25Ba)
Al 31 December 2012 2,142 28,813 12F 958 _AQE 448
Carrying amounis:
Al 31 December 2016 (unaicited) B52 553 X1 GRS 107 579 502 283 573,123 1857 523
At 31 Decembar 2015 ATH,MET d_GEE 187 B57 385, 145 390, 517 1,546 B52
| At 31 Decamibar 2014 A58 514 66_810 107 Bog 281 950 272 458 1. 187 826
A1 31 December 2013 137,582 63 146 81,711 160 627 180, 715 652 TAO

| Al 311 Decembesr 2012 130, 358 A7, 100 G4, 742 108 B15 163 631 S04 G55

(m) Them ware no capitalised Dormowing coste related to the Boquisiton of property and equiprment during the yoar
(b) The Microfnance Bank had no capilal cemmitments as ot the ond of the reporting pencd
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LAPO MICROFINANCE BANK NIGERIA LIMITED

HNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continuaed

19 Intangible assets

Unaudited

As at 31 December 2016 Computer Work in

In thousands of Migeran Naira Software Progress Total
Cost

Unaudited

Balance at 1 January 2016 1,145,539 1,145 53
Additions 150, 66 150,08
Balance at 31 Decembear 2016 1,295 805 - 1,285 60
Balance at 1 January 2015 B&T 017 a7 .01
Additions 258,522 = 258.58
Balance at 31 December 2015 1,145 538 - 1,145,
Balance at 1 January 2014 102,584 288 254 350,68
Additions 49 094 447 0TS 45946, 18
Transter to computer software 735,329 (735,329)

Balance at 31 December 2014 BB7.017 - a8a87.0
Balance at 1 January 2013 36,110 186 948 223,09
Additions 56, 484 101,305 167,74
_Balance al 31 December 2013 102,554 288,254 380.8
Balance at 1 January 2012 36,110 ” 36.11
Additions - 186, 849 186594
Balance at 31 December 2012 36.110 185, 949 223,058
Amortization and impairment losses

Unaudited

Balance at 1 January 2016 T11.717 - 711,71
Amorisation for the year 420,319 - 420,318
Balance at 31 December 2016 1,132,036 = 1,132,036
Balance at 1 January 2015 341,908 - 341,908
Amortisation for the year 3G9 B09 - 265,809
Balance a1 31 Decembear 2015 711.717 - 711,717
Balance at 1 January 2014 58,272 58,272
Amaortisation for the year 283,636 283 636
Balance at 31 Decamber 2014 341,908 341,908
Balance at 1 January 2013 33,476 33, 478}
Amorisation for the year 24 786 24,796
Balance at 31 December 2013 58,272 58,272
Balance at 1 January 2012 25,608 - 25,609
Amorisation for the year 7,867 - 7. BET
Balance at 31 Decembear 2012 33,476 o 33,476
Carrying amounits

Balance at 31 December 2016 (unaudited) 163 568 - 163, 5659
Ealance al 31 December 2015 433 B22 433 822
Balance at 31 December 2014 545,108 - 545, 108
Balance at 31 December 2013 44 322 288 254 332 57T
Balance at 31 December 2012 2,634 186 949 189,583
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LAPO MICROFINANCE BANK MIGERIA LIMITED
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: Continued

Deposits from customers Unaudited

M Decamber 31 Dacember 34 December 31 Docamber 31 Decembar
In thousands of Migenan Maita 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Smirgs deposits 5 BES 258 24 723812 0,321 406 13,822 867 0,762 29
Term deposits 1,777 511 ST 38610 30 589 30,752

—_— e SIS
27 642 770 25,705, TB3 20,360 018 13 853 G456 8753051

Custent 27 642 T 25.705. 783 20,350 016 13 B53 545 8 7931 051
ﬁ———_—____

Borrawings

Shao tem bodTowangs 202 245 854 004 35,613 304,961 1.233,179
Long term barmwings 15,854, 725 11,541 516 TEEIET 5 1m 825 3068861
15, 145 962 12 B25 610 T 654,500 5 485 TRs 4,302 D42
Short erm borrowings
In thousands of Nigenan i
First City Monument Bank Pic (see nobe 1) bestowy - 65,254 35 633 53 466 -
swm“nnmmmmq-pm . EAFEE] 251 455 LALE: T
Access Bank (see nols (xi belows 297 245 502 827 - - 53 993
Linited Bank tor Afica Plc - - . 187 146
Mezio Credil Entempnises . - . . 31,052
202 245 884 095 35 613 304 961 1,233,179
Long term barrowings
In thougands of w Pura
swcmmmmuummm 211,818 8O3,z 396 8T5 .
Lotus Capital (508 nobe i) below) Z8B 186 183 327 83510 50,195 .
EPPmuhwmimmmhhm GED 240 541 490 S35 496 SAZ AT BT 360
Planis/ Global MicroSnance Fund (588 noto (W bedow 2,224 &3y 1,831 545 B3 519 BET 845 BO2 650
Symbiotics Assel Managemaent (see nale (e 1,504 074 1.7 232 2,171,758 1,564 414 78 508
Fanners for Dievelopment (ses noss (ui) ot 154 437 157 173 156, 587 176 698 145 Baz
Intemational Finsnce Comporation LIFC) {see note (wE) beiow) 2,100, T 2 295 482 501,146 T10.8458 -
Althiion (see nate (i) sl 62071 B2, 085 62,081 63,440 4518
Blue Orchaed (soe nole () boerlowss I 768 555 2,102 350 BAS 830 - -
Agence Francaise D Dewsloppment {see note (=i} baphowy 407 GBS 345 945 344 202
FMOD (sem note (s beiow) 1,837 336 1,544 398 751,226
C-ﬂmﬂtiﬂm-:[mmu[ﬂi}hm 1,606,174 302 453 100,510 ! .
Deutsche Bank (ses nols (x beeborah . - 205 915 206 537
Fnrmmmwmmmm - . 123 851
Ammmmmmpm 1,617 5ar . ; . 5
mumglmmﬂlm 1,002 177 - - - -
18,854,728 11,541 615 7.629,267 5,181,825 1088863
—— B el e
First City Monument Bank Ple

Mih%ﬂm“ﬂﬂ;wﬂﬂmlhﬁm.!ﬂﬁ N ihe sum of N0 ralicn e faour of LAPD HFHm-mn{wnwwra
wmmw.ﬂmm The interes? rade was o 16% pa with pmcessing and managemend fee of 1% Bal pev lengr The
hcﬂfmlmhhlllﬂﬂlmMSIhwtFNWlphumnﬂmﬂ:ﬂ'ﬂmMmrEMmh {MCE} Though, the MCE loan has
bisen fully repaid

Standard Chartered Bank Migeris Limited

omrum.zouwau.-_ 2015. Standand Chartered Bank Limded csbursed M50 milbon and NASD malion spectely to LAPD MFE o of the
term loan and cverdralt of M1 5 billion approwsd

Lotus Capitsd grarited crodi faciltios of N100, 000,000 and M200.000,000 1o LAPO MFB Limiled on § Seplember, 2014 and 3 Augiest 2015 respecinmly ar ar
interest rafe of 19%  The hcildies we for 18 ankhs each. Prncipal is payable in soc equal insiniments. whilg intecast i pind on & mordhily bagis

CPP Incofin CVE0
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LAPO MICROFINANCE BAMK NIGERIA LIMITED
ROTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued
Bonrowings - Contimued

Planis/Responsability Global Microfinance Fund

Crecld Susse Mersfinance Fund Mansgemens Company (o0 behall of Resporsiity') ofersd 10 LAPD Microfinance Bare Limited 1he sum of $1 50 million
and $500 000 (ndewed to Naera) & promissony notes for @ penod of 3 years from 19 Nowember. 2013, a8 &0 mecedd rade of 15.60% p & neecest M payable 10
Ihe Hote Holder sem-annually n arears on May 15 and Nowmbed 10 of esch year beginmeng on 15 May 2014 The bass o the USDNGN exchange mee
for fiwirg the proncspal amount & found on the Reuters Page NIFEXDT The issuer is nof entdled bo woluntanly repay, in full of n pan

Coeclil Sussse Microfinance Fund Managemend Company ofersd LAPD MFE the sum of $250 000 ang $750,000 for a penod of 3 years fom 18 Seplember
2013 to 16 Seplember 2016 a1 an mienest rale of 20 T5% p a Inevesi & payable on Semanoudl badd in acnsars on 16 March and 16 Septembar of sach
yeae IR s indenced al the Mgeian Nars equnalent with the LISIVNGN exchange rale lund on Reuters page NIFEXDH as of two wodkng days precedng
Iy wplsy clale

Fiea partAbddy SICAV (Lux) offeded LAPD MFB the sum of 52 mdlion and addiienal 31 millon on beha® of Creat Swsse Microbnance Fund Management
Company for o peviod of 3 yeas from 20 September 2013 1o 20 Seplember 2015 ot an mlemest e of 20 T5% pa nlefed! & phyable on Semi-armal
b o arears. on 20 Mach and 20 September of sach yadr 1hes was nceed @ (e Megenan Naims squnabent wih the LIS DYNGHN axchangs rale found on
Fsutars page NIFEXNDT as of two worcng Says preceding 1he waiue dale Payment shall be made n buled al the matunty of 1hi an

Responsabity SECAWY (Lux) ofiered LAPD MFB the sum of $3milton for a penad of 3 years, fraom 08 Apsl. 10 08 Apeil 2017 a1 &0 indenast rate of 20 50%

p & Feeres! o payable on Seme-annul Basis o areas on 08 Apnl and 08 Ociobar of each year Thes was indexed al The Migerian Naira squaaient with the
USDINGH sxchangs rale found on Reubors page NIFEXDY as of two working days precedeg the alus date Payment shall ba made in bullisl 8 The mBatuhty
of 1R kaan

ResporsAbidsy SICAY (Lux) ofersd LAPD MFE the sum of 50 5 mdlion and addfional 315 millan on behaf of Responsabildy SICAV (Lux) oflered LAPO
MFB ihe sum of 3 0 5 mlkon and addbbonal §7 5 malion on Bebal of ai an indorest rabe of 13 0% pa Inferes! & Py e on S e -ancul hases 0 aTeans on
23 May and 23 Nowsmber of gach year this was moexed at the Ngenan Masa egunalent with the LIS DINGHN eochangs rate found on the Reulers page
NIFEXDY B8 of Twe wiek o cy 8 Pracedendg 1 el o Prncipal paymant shall be mace in bulet at the matunty of the ban

Symbiotics Asset Management

Symbsolics Assel Maragement has approved @ tofal term loan of §11 5 mdlion for LAPO WMFE. Thes wad gsbursed fofiows

- 3 millian herm loan was dsbursed on 27 Saplember 2003 0 two irarchas of 51 5 milion aach o the rate of 17 25% sach The loan ioan was comerted fo
Higenan nava of Ehe USO/NGH sxchangs rale previhng o The dabursement dide leces! o payable sem-annualy March and Seplémbar of ewry year n
aTpars Prncipad repayment shail e mace n Dulist ol the maturiy of ihe oan n 27 Seplamber 20156

31 millson term foan was dsbursed 14 March 2014 for o penod of 1w years & the rate of 20% . Tha iodn wiid corransd 1o Mepinan Mors o1 1he LISDINGN
et g it e praling on e dsbursemant dale IMees! o Doy abis semi-arnually March and Seplembar gy yoar mn amears Poncpal repayment shal
b Priche i it al ihe matunty of the loan in ach X016

- "33 milion berm loan was debursed July 25 201 kal an nberesi rale of 18% for 3 years The loan was coneried io Negenan rara al the US DVNGH
exghangg rats provdng al 1he dsbursement dabe Inberes! s payable semi-annually Jaruesy and July of every year n amears Prncipal repayment shall be
msde i bublet a1 The maturty of the ban

Ancither $3 millon 1erm loan was dobused 13 November 2013 for @ penod of thiee years of the rate of 18 5% The loan was comeded 10 Maganan N al
the LISOVMGN &xehands /e prevming on 1 dabusemant dale inbees! & payabie seme-annualy My @nd Nowmber gwery yeal in areas. Prncpal
repayment shall be made n Bule? af (he matuwily of (he iban

Alto 31 5 million berm loan was dsburssd Od Aphl 2014 for & penod of IVes years o ihe mie of 20 25%  The loan wis conemed (o Megonan Nara at the
USDFNGH &xchings rabh piaidang on Ihe distuisamant dats Interest i5 payable semi-annually Apeil and Dctober guesry year in amsars. Principal repayment
shail be made in Bullet af the matundy of the ican

Partners for Development (PFD)
PFD grarted LAPD MFE the sum of M155 millat 80 60 indeneal rate of 18% payable on quadiedy Dase On madurty the Gan was miled o on i
requesi of the Lender The matunty has been set for 5 March 2006

Frubas Hanal Fi C

Irterraiongl France Coparaton graanied LAPD M9 Limced 8 1280 of N800 mikan The frst ranche of N300 milkon was disbursed 8 March 2013 The
balance NS00 milhon was disbursed on the 2nd of August, 20731 R has an ntecest rabe of 18 5% and fingl matunty & 15 June 2017 The misted) & phid
ety whshe the prncipal & pand Ral-ready Sher a sor monihs moratonium

Anoihar tacdity of N Bidlign was dsbursed by Infematipnal Finance Comporaton 1o LAPO ME Lamned on 24 Nowember. 2015 | has a0 mterest rale of
1R TR man fnad mahmbs s 15 hne W7 the rtamal @ aaushls rostety whlds fonersl i 0 R nme @eene 5o mneih
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Other liabilities
Unaudited

o 3 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
in thousands of Nigenan Naira 2018 2015 2014 2013 2012
Lisbéity for defined cantribusion obligations (Note 22 1) 2.1 31,841 8638 51,578 EREY
Micronsurance payable (Note 22 2) 5048 57,087 138 158 23,908 42 559
Clients” unclasmied funds (Note 22 3| B4 57E B4 593 BE 370 88 584 86 620
Accruals it 307 244 70,323 567,275 342,589 308 240
Statutory deductions (PAYE. NHF, WHT) 219,439 161.208 102221 27679 20075
Benefils dus 1o clents (Note 22 4) 154,058 100250 8335 &7 235 31441
Dragend payable (Nole 22 5) . . 532,357 : ;
Account payatie 336,527 282 024 142 470 44,171 25,838

1,240,985 1418716 1,660,828 44,202 532114

Liability for dafined conribution abligations

mwwhumnuunm in comipliance wilh the statutory confribubony pension scheme The balance in this accoul was
accrued br in December

Micraingurance payahle
Balance represents outstanding premuim fo Goldiink Insurance Pic, Premum o Goldink represents 0 5% of toial inan Ssburs emant

Clients’ unclaimed funds
This represents clients’ balances on closedidormant acoourts. They hane remained Un-claimed as 3 dale
Benefits due to clients
Balance represents insurance claims in respect of deceased customers from Galdink mswrance
Dividend Payable Unaudited
M December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
In thousands of Nigenan Nava 2016 2015 2014 23 012
Al T Jamany - 532,357 -
Addihons during the year 1.981.154 g7ogas &00.057
Payment dunng ihe yaar (1,181,151} {1,512 102} (877409 . .
At 31 December - £32 357 . 5
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LAPO MICROFINANCE BANK MIGERIA LIMITED

HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued

Capital and reservies Unaudited
31 December 31 December 3% December 31 December 31 De
I thousands of Niganan Nara 2016 2015 2014 2013
Share capital
Share capial compnses
Auvuthorised -
4.000,000,000 Ordinary shares of S50& each 2,000,000 2000000 2.000.000 2.1000. 000 2.000.0
lssred and fully paid -
2,800,268 000 (2012-2. 679 BES 000) (2011- 2,647 BES 000)
ordinary shares al 50k each 1,504 028 1,985 256 1418, 731 1,400 134 1,338 50
Bonus shares issued
1,079, 758 800 ordinany Shawes of S0k each & - E3BATS
The ordinary shaneholders are entitled to recese divdends as declaned from lime o 1me and ace entiled 10 vole 8 mestngs of the
Bank. Al ordinary shafes rank pan-passu with the same nghts and benefits of the Bank
The mavement on the issued and fully paid-up share capital account during the year was as lollows:
Uraudited

3 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Decembs
In thousands of Negerian Nada 2018 2015 2014 2013 Pt
Balance beginning of year/penod 1,985,256 1,858 610 1,400,134 1,338 534 1,338, 53
Transfer from LAPO NGO & LIFT MFB (note mij . . - - .
Shares lggued and fully paid 8772 25,845 19,587 60,200 60,200
Bonus share i55ued - - 5%5 BT - .
Balance end of year 1,984 028 1,885, 256 1,858,610 1,400,134 1,400,13

At the board meeting of 13th December 2015, 1l wad agreed that 51.201.357 unis of shares of S0k be allcited 1o some shareholders
This has been regesiered with the Comporate Aftairs Commissen

Retaingd earnings
Retaned eamings 15 1he camed forwand recogrised income nel of expanses plus csfren] penod peafil aftnbad able 1o Shameholgers

Regulatory reserves
The reguiatony resene includes mowements m the fallowing

Statutory reserve

Migenan banking regulateong requirg the Mectofinance Bank fo make an annual appropnatson 1o a statutory resene Transfer 1o SLaUTORY Mesine 15
made at the rate of 50% of the profit afler 1ax in line with the reguirements of the Regulatory and Supenisory famework for Microfinance Banks in
Megenia isued by the Central Bank of Mgena

Regulatory risk resarve

The regulatony nsk reseres warehouses the difference betwien the impairment on Balance on loang and acances under thie Nigena GAAP ("Predous

GAAP") and based on Cenfral Bank of hegena’s Regulatory and Supenssory framewark for MicroSnance Banks in Migena compared wih (he ioss
1y it Aadlad e ad A A alks dEhies TRE AR st kplane s indar IERT
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LAPO MICROFINANCE BANK NIGERIA LIMITED
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued

4 Contigencies
Litigation and claims
There are deﬂm wmm- & 31 December 2018 amounting to NGS5 875,230 (2015 NG5 3192300, (2014 Nil). (2073 hal), (2012 M)
These Migations amse in the normal course of the business and are being contesied by the Bank The Direclons haung sought aduce of professional
counsel, are of the opinkn thal no signiicant addtional liability will crystalise from these claims ciher than as recogrised in these fnancial
statements.

25 Related Party transactions

Parlies are considensd o be related if one party has the abiity to control (he other pary or exercise inflsance over the other party in making fnancial
and operational decisions, or one other party controls bath. The definition includes associates. joint ventures and the bank’s pansion schemes as well
a5 key management personnel.

Unaudited

Nature of 3 Docembaer 31 December 31 December 31 December
Fielated Entity retationshep 20186 2018 2014 2013
Lapo institude Sister Company 32.573.509 221252780 334625036 15011377
Crange Publishing Sister Company 165,595, 200 136187 417 140261348 71,424 00E
Crange nsuance Brokers Sister Company 151,809,577 53 813,786 33,985 650 66,851,994

Principal
Lapa NGO s hareholder 163,463 002 119,442 B85 117,318,086 95.241.55(

Key managemant personnel and thesr immediate relatnes engaged in the following transactions with the Bank, dunng the year

Uinaudsd
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
In ihausands of Migesan Naira 2018 15 2014 2013 2012
Loans and athances
« Managing Director 47,169 54 808 E1.631 99,306 103 642
- Oihers 10,345 18,361 28 802 -
57514 73167 61 4331 59, 308 103,642
Ky ranagemant personnel compansation for the year compngses
Short-lerm amployes banefits 322794 309 456 242223 167,811 165,938
Post-employment benefits 33,862 13.243 7818 5506 5,485
356,656 222 708 250,141 173,507 171.423
Directors remuneration
Chasrman 1.500 1.500 1.200 aon BO%
Oiher directors 26,0688 B 260 14 400 2.800 2.333
27.5648 5.760 15,600 3,600 3133
Executive compensation 53.740 85.030 48,311 33.000 33.000
121.308 98,730 64.511 35,600 36,133
Mumbses Murmiber Mumbes Hurnber Mumbeer
Managing Dinscior 1 1 1 1 1
Executive Direcior 2 2 2 2 2
Mon- Executnve Direclod 5 ] 5 5 5
B 8 E a B
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LAPO MICROFINANCE BANK NIGERIA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued

28 Statement of Prudential Adjustments

Unaudied

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
i thousands of Nigerian Naira 2016 2015 014 2013 2012
Leans and adances to cuslomers 2241 136 1.347 710 1,489 687 339,499 132 580
Specihe allowance for impairment 236 522 155.580 116,619 B3.54% 60816
Callectne allowance for impairment 2477 656 1,503,750 1,606,306 473,445 193,396
Other financial assels:
Specific allowance for impasment on Other assels 27387 153 462 205,128 140,383 96,953
Total impairment allowances by the Microfinance Bank fa) 2,635,045 1,657 212 1811834 1.811,434 363.631
Total provisions based an Prudential Guidelings (b) 2,035,285 1479559 1,056,738 578,516 407,072
Closing | required balance in regulatory risk reserve c=b.a 14,685 116,723
Opening balance in regulatory risk rese v {d] 14,685 116,723 43,083
Transters during the year ! period fe=c-dj {14 685) (102.038) 72,735

The difference has been adjusted under the Statement of Changes in Equity through the Regulatory risk reserve.
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EXTRACTS OF ISSUER/SPONSOR'S RATING
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& The miings of LAPO Mih Micmifinance Bank 1.imived (1 A PO MR
or “the bank ™) reflect s wirong competitive posiian o de morkes
lemder e MNigeria micnsfinance hanking subsoc by sire, LAY
Mk is one of cight microfinence banks (“MID™) loensed 1o opemie
nagional v in Migona presontlv. Furthemmion, (ke prohile o1 the bank 's
maniagerment toam | m wrme of evpenence) & comssdered satisfacion

= LAPO Mib'e capimlisation B considersd aronp,  with 1o
shargholders” funds amounting w Ni1iohn m FY 16, troms kring W
ower 6 Ex the stututony. minirmum regquine men) for i Boense calegon,
wnl 8 capitn] mbeguacy mito of e (compared  with the 1082
stabusory  moguircareit). The bank jegeirod a sbong  comypound
onnuml growth rote (CUCAGR™Y of 26.8% in wial capital n the four
weour period Lo FY 16 on pocount steah intomal capitnl genemtion
and sucoess il capiml raiing nitistives

* LAPC MM asset gualiey tin terms of loans and advances pordolio
wcinrme under pressuane in FY 1, wih ihe mimspuer forming loan NP
il rising o6 s having e frvam 1lse l'-_l“-t_!r_;l bagh ol & W0y
i FYI4 o 4™ in Y12 However, the provisioning kvel is
comsbdered adequate. while capial profection  appears
considering the low not N PLcapiial miio of 5 8% at FY 16

* The bank has deplsod sabsiacton bgued ity metncs acrons the Troe
vaar review penod o FY b, with hgued and trading assete wtal shar
term funding rstio of 277 wm FY 6 compared with the J0%s
sttmary henchimrk

® LAPO M reconded aesdy ingaaesiiem 0 oy o de Pue
yeur review period e Y16 Performance in FY 16 was iy
revenue driven, os an increase in carning neeets delivered o srong
IT. 7% rise i mAcrest revenue W N23 %W Despie o signilican
J0.1% gucakdtion n operaling expaset (driven by aall relned snd
veling costs ) and sddiional pressure from impairment charge rise.
the hank ended with a presias profol Na T, representing & 58 1%,
inprovernent over FY 1S Owverall, the hank schicved sinonger Biral
and ROsA of 38 1% and 79% in FY 16, up from 16 and 7 2% n
FY 13 respectvely. An unaudited pre-tax profit of %N3dbn was
reporied for the first hall of FY 17, ransioting o annualised 70, 1% ol
the full vear adget

Factors thal could irigger o raling action mey inclode

TN,

Nageria fark And e | Pl Crodd Hamy

Fositive change: A sdgnificnt improvemen in the bank s market share,
el Qualby and liguidine position could irigger o passitive ruting n don.

Negative change: A nopative rating sction may follbw a decline in the
bank s M'l!‘:l.nl\llllly. oy well ms pressure on assct quabity ond |sguadie
i calors,
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Corporate summary

LAPOY MIb was initially founded a5 a3 mon-
governmontal  ongonimtion (NGO} in 1987,
registersd with the Comomte ATEIs Commission in
19935, and sobsequently incorporatesd as 8 private
limited Bability company in  April 2007, The
cmpany  ihercafter obtained CBN  approval (o
operate as o microfinance bank in June 2000, LAPO
Mib wis re-licenaed as a National MPB in Septembxr
2012 in line with the new microtinance banking model
intreduced in the country by CRN i 2001

Orvomer shigs structure

While the local regulations permit individuals, groups
of individuale, community development aeociations,
private corporste entities, and Rreign invesuors o
cstablish MFUBs, a single investor 15 not permitied o
own a controlling interesi in mone than one MR
without the prior approval of CEN. LAPO Mib s
mare o less an owner-run institution, with the shares
largely owned by twe key investors (the Managing
Director and an institutional investor, LI Above
Poverty Organisation (“LAPOCI, ench having 30.1%
and 67.1% shorcholding respectively ot FY16. The
remninder {2.8%) is owned by other direclors in the
CUNTERATYY .

Serstegy and oporations

LAM) Mi's microfimance banking activities are
rategically targeted at micro, anell and medinm
cocuises (“MEMES™), panicularly post wonen
micro enterprises owners, who are served on a group
basie. Specifically, memberhip of a LAPO Mib
Group (Union') is a mandmory requirement for
acoessing the hank’s financing.

Opemtionally, the bank is structured imo seven
business  units  (Kisk  Management, Legal &
Compliance, Corporate Plnning & Stratepy, Finanoe
& Accounts, Corpomte Services, Operations & [T,
and  Infernal  Awdit'Contmol).  The head of cach
business it (wwe for that of the legal &
Comgdiance, and Internal Audit) reparts directly e
the Managing Director. The heads of Legal &
Compliance and  Intermal  AsdivConwal  report
directly 1o the board ol directons 1 bord ™) However,
responsibility Tor mobilisstion and coordination of
LAPO Mib Groups & vested in the Clients Support
Oificers ("C3O) at the braxhes. The C350
interfaces directly with the clients and reports 0 the
branch manager. who in Wwms reports 1o the ara
manager, The primary functions of the C50 includc:
{i} creating awwsreness aboant AP Mib's activities
to prospective clienrs, (1) guiding the prospective
clients on formution of LAPO Mb Groups, (i)
n-lli:rnlh'rn nf'e“gihl:- membsers {51.-'] nlg;nniiina pere-

® i st CRE O O ODSE el SECE LS LSO W § D e
B B e S

loan training for the Group, (v) ensuning the approval
of the Group by the branch manager and (vi) loan
RO O FiTE.

Figure | illustrawes the reporting lines of LAPO
BAb" & ket Excing team,

Figure 1: Martot facing toam’ s reporting line
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LAFG Mib offers a wide range of customised
micmfinance banking products 1o its clientele. The
bank”s lean products inclede Regular Losns, Festival
Loains, Asset Loand, Entemrise Levelopment Loans
Scheme, Special Loans, snd Medoghama Loans, each
having unique chamcteristics with regards W epel
customer, amount, purpose, tenor and applicable
interest rates. On the liability cide, the bank has
mandavory wnd volunury savings products §Festival
Savings, Ordinary Voluntary Savings. and My Pikin
En\-'ir\u.. each [possees 'l'lg dizstmet rmims].

LAPCO Mib has 438 business offices across 30 staies
of the cowntry as ot end-June 2017, with a totnl staff
of over 6,004, The branches are in three ciepories
(Super, Mega, and Regular) hased on their permitted
activity level, For sdministmtive convenience, the
branches are clustersd into area offices, while the
area offices swe lurther deswsgregated into  #wnal
ullices, Supervisoey Dusctions are tiered in that order,
with the zonal offices reporting to the head office.
LAPO MIb's operation wre suppoded by Orbit-R, a
rodriast  incrofimance banking  sofiware  package,
developed by Neptune Software Ple. An offsie data
backup focility is in place to aid dsta recovery in case
ol dissister.
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STATUTORY AND GENERAL INFORMATION

1. Authorization of the Programme

At the meeting held on 26 September 2016, the Shareholders and Directors of LAPO MFB SPV Plc
passed a resolution respectively authorizing the establishment of a N20 Billion Debt lssuance
Programme and the issuance of debt securities thereunder during the subsistence of the Programme.

2. Incorporation and Share Capital History of the Sponsor

LAPO Microfinance Bank Limited was incorporated as a private limited lia bility company on 25th April,
2007 under the provisions of the Companies and Allied Matters Act CAP C20 LFN 2004 with registration
number 688867. On 21st June 2010, it obtained the approval of the Central Bank of Nigeria to operate
as State Microfinance Bank under the Nigerian Microfinance Policy, Regulatory and Supervisory
Guidelines of 2005 as amended in 2011, On September 10, 2012 the Microfinance Bank received an
approval from the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) to operate as a National Microfinance Bank.

The principal activity of the Bank remained provision of microfinance services to micra-enterprises and
low-income persons specifically to support Small and Medium Scale Enterprises (SMEs) operators and
low-income households in Nigeria.

The following changes have taken place in the Bank's authorised and issued share capital since its
incorporation:

Authorized (N) Issued (N) Consideration
Increase Cumulative Increase Cumulative

2007 200,000,000 200,000,000 200,000,000 200,000,000 Cash
2010 200,000,000 200,000,000 200,000,000 200,000,000 Cash
2011 1,800,000,000 2,000,000,000 1,800,000,000 1,323,934,000 Cash
2012 - - 16,000,000  1,339,934,000 Cash
2013 S e 60,200,000 1,400,134,000 Cash
2014 - - 539879400  1,940,013,400 Bonus
2014 = - 19,597,320  1,958,610,720 Cash
2015 - - 25645679  1,985256,399 Cash
2016 - - 10,720,788  1,995977.187 Cash
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3.  Shareholding Structure

As at 31 December 2015, the significant shareholders of above 5% of the 3.870.512 000 erdinary
shares of 50 kobo each in the issued ordinary share capital of the Bank are as follows:

Shareholders Number of Shares Shareholding (%)
LAPO NGO 2,680,095,600 67.50
Godwin Ehigiamusoe 1,201,689 368 30.27

4, Directors Beneficial Interests

The beneficial interests of Directors in the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December
2015 are as follows:

Directors Number of Shares Shareholding (%)
Osarenren Emokpae 23,994 640 0.60
Godwin Ehigiamusoe 1,201,689,368 30.27
Osaretin Demuren 23,994 640 0.60
Ede Osayande 21,798,660 0.55
Andrew Ejoh 12,000,000 0.30
Rene Azokly 8,698,057 022

5. Subsidiaries and Associated Companies

As at 31 December 2016, the Sponsor's effective interest in subsidiaries is as shown below:

Shareholders Number of Shares Shareholding (%)
LAPC MFE SPV Pic 890,000,000 99.00
Godwin Ehigiamusoe 10,000,000 1.00

6.  Statement of Indebtedness

Details of all indebtedness of the Issuer at the time of issuance of any Bonds under the
Programme will be disclosed in the Supplementary Prospectus rela ting to the series of Bonds to
be issued
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7.  Claims and Litigations

The Bank is, in its ordinary course of business, involved in fourteen (14) cases. Of the fourteen (14)
cases, the Company instituted two (2) cases while twelve (12) cases were instituted against the Bank.

The total monetary claims in the twelve (12) cases instituted against the Bank is approximately
ME5,875,230.00 (Sixty Five Million, Eight Hundred and Seventy Five Thousand, Two Hundred and
Thirty Naira), excluding interest and costs, which may be awarded by the courts in which those cases
have been instituted or following appellate court reviews; after conclusion of same.

The Solicitors to the Transaction are of the opinion that the contingent liability to which the Bank may
likely be exposed in respect of the cases instituted against it is approximately M2, 792 000.00 (Two
Million, Seven Hundred and Ninety Two Thousand Naira), excluding interests and costs, which may be
awarded by the relevant courts, after the conclusion of the cases. The Solicitors are also of the opinion
that the claims against the Bank should not have any material adverse effect on the Transaction

The Directors of the Bank are of the opinion that none of the aforementioned cases is likely to have any
material adverse effect on the Bank or the Transaction, and are not aware of any other pending and/for
threatened claim or litigation.

8. Off Balance Sheet Items

As at 31 December, 2016, the Sponsor had no Off Balance Sheet items other than in the ordinary
course of business.

9. Declarations
Except as otherwise disclosed in this Shelf Prospectus:

1. Mo share of the Bank is under option or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be put under
option;

2. No commissions, brokerages or other special terms have been granted by the Bank to any
person in connection with the Debt Issuance Programme or sale of any share of the Bank;

3. Save as disclosed herein, the directors of the Bank have not been informed of any holding
representing 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Bank;

4. There are no founders’, management or deferred shares or any options outstanding in the Bank;

5. There are no material service agreements between the Bank or any of its Directors and
employees other than in the ordinary course of business;

6. There are no long-term service agreements between the Bank or any of its Directors and
employees other than in the ordinary course of business;

7. Mo Director of the Bank has had any interest, direct or indirect, in any property purchased or
proposed to be purchased by the Bank in the five years prior to the date of this Shelf Prospectus;
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8. No prosecution has commenced against the Bank or any of its subsidiaries in respect of any
breach of any securities or banking laws or Companies and Allied Matters Act, Cap C20, LFN,
2004; and

8. Mo shareholder, Director or key management personnel has been involved in any of the
following (in or outside Migeria) to the best of the Director's knowledge as at December 31,
2015

a) MNone of the shareholders/key management staff is under any bankruptcy or insolvency
proceedings in any court of law,

b} MNone of the shareholders/key management staff has been convicted in any criminal
proceeding,

¢} MNone of the shareholders/key management staff is subject of any order, judgment or ruling
of any court of competent jurisdiction or regulatory body relating to fraud or dishonesty.

10. Cost and Expenses

The cost, charges and expenses of and incidental to the Issue, including fees payable to regulatory
bodies and professional parties’ fees, brokerage commission, printing and distribution expenses will be
determined at each issuance. These costs shall be payable by the Issuer or the Sponsor and shall be
disclosed in the applicable Pricing Supplement relating to the Bonds being issued.

11. Material Contracts
The following agreements have been entered inte and are considered material to this Programme:

a) A Programme Trust Deed dated 16 August 2017 among LAPO MFB SPV PLC, LAPO
Microfinance Bank Limited and FBN Trustees Limited in connection with the Programme. The
extracts of the Programme Trust Deed are set out in pages 68 to 92 of this Shelf Prospectus;

b) A Master Bond Purchase Agreement dated 16 August 2017 among LAPO MFB SPV PLC,
LAPO Microfinance Bank Limited and FBN Trustees Limited

c) Deed of Covenant dated 16 August 2017 by LAPO Microfinance Bank Limited, and

d) A Vending Agreement dated 20 December 2017 between LAPO MFB SPV PLC, (as the Issuer)
and the Issuing Houses under which the Issuing Houses have agreed to offer on behalf of the
Bank, N20 Billion Debt Issuance Programme established by the Issuer.

Other material contracts in respect of any issuance of Bonds under the Programme will be disclosed in
the applicable Pricing Supplement issued in respect of that Series of Bonds.

12. Relationship between the Sponsor, Issuing Houses and Other Advisers

There are no known relationship other than the professional ones established pursuant to this
Programme in the ordinary course of its business.
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13. Mergers and Takeovers

As at the date of this Shelf Prospectus, the Directors are not aware of the following during the preceding
financial year or current financial year:

= A merger or takeover offer by third parties in respect of the Sponsor's securities; and
= A merger or takeover by the Sponsor in respect of another company’s securities.
14. Consents

The following have given and not withdrawn their written consents to the issue of this Shelf Prospectus
with their names and reports (where applicable) included in the form and context in which they appear:

.' Directors of the Issuer Godwin Eseiwi Ehigiamusoe
Josephine Nwachukwu

Faith Osazuwa Ojo

Company Secretary Cynthia Ikponmwosa

Directors of the Sponsor Osarenren P. Emokpae Ph.D.
Godwin Eseiwi Ehigiamusoe
Josephine Nwachukwu
Faith Osazuwa Ojo
Andrew Edozie Ejoh
Osayande Ede
Rene Azokly
Osaretin Demuren (Mrs. )

Hannatu Yaro

Issuing Houses FCMB Capital Markets Limited
United Capital Plc

Solicitor to the Issue Banwo & Ighodalo

Solicitor to the Issuer Tokunbo Qrimobi LP

Solicitor to the Trustees Aluko & Oyebode

Trustee FBN Trustees Nigeria Limited
Registrars CardinalStone Registrars Limited
Reporting Accountant Ernst & Young

Shelf Prospectus Page | 125




LAPO MFB SPV PLC - N20 Billion Debt Issuance Programme

Issuer's Auditor
Sponsor’'s Auditor
Rating Agency

Receiving Banks

Akintola Williams Deloitte
Akintola Williams Deloitte
Global Credit Ratings Co.

First City Monument Bank Limited
First Bank of Nigeria Limited
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15. Documents Available for Inspection

Copies of the following documents may be inspected at the Issuing Houses' offices as listed on page
Error! Bookmark not defined. between 8.00a m. and 5.00 p.m. on any Business Day throughout the
validity of this Programme:

Certificate of Incorporation of the Issuer, duly certified by the CAC;
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer, duly certified by the CAC;

Reporting Accountants’ Report on the audited accounts of the Sponsor for the five years ended
31 December 2015;

Shareholders' Resolution of the Issuer dated 26 September 2016 authorising the Debt Issuance
Programme;

Board of Director's Resolution of the Issuer dated 26 September 2016, authorising the Debt
Issuance Programme;

Board of Director's Resolution of the Sponsor dated 24 August 20186, authorizing the Sponsar
to support the establishment of the Debt Issuance Frogramme through the Issuer:

Letter from the Securities & Exchange Commission dated 16 August 2017 approving the
registration of the Shelf Prospectus:

Audited Financial Statement of the Sponsor for the years ended 31 December 2012 to 2015;
Management Accounts of the Sponsor for the year ended 31 December 2015,

Audited Statement of Affairs of the Issuer as at 31 December 2016:

Shelf Prospectus issued with respect to the Debt Issuance Programme;

Supplementary Shelf Prospectus/Pricing Supplement:

Consents of Parties referred to on page 125,

Material contracts referred to on page 124:

List of claims and ligations referred to on page 123 and the Solicitors to the Programme's
opinion thereon;

Letter of No Objection from the Central Bank of Nigeria dated 15 December 2016 and

The Rating Reports issued by Global Credit Ratings Co for in respect of the Issuer and the
Bond.
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FORM OF PRICING SUPPLEMENT

Sef out balow is the form of Pricing Supplement wiich will be prepared by the issuer for pach Senes of Bonds issued unger the Programme

Pricing Supplement
To the Shelf Prospectus dated 16 August 2017

~
W e serk

{The Speonsor)

LAPO MFB SPV PLC
Offer for Subscription o
of

[=]
Series [#]: [¢]-Year [¢]%

Fixed Rate Subordinated Unsecured Bonds due 2021
Under a N20,000,000,000 Debt Issuance Programme
Issue Price: [¢] per unit
Payable in full on Application

Application List Opens [s]
Application List Closes: [«]

This Pricing Supplement is prepared for the purpose of Rule 2T9(3) of tne Rules and Regulaton of the Secuntes & Exchange Commission (“the
Commission” or SEC] in connection with the M20, 000,000,000 Debl Issuance Programme established by LAPO MFB 5PV PLC (“the lssusr)

This Prnang Supplement is supplemental to, and should be read in conjuncton with, the Shell Prospectus dated [+] 2017 and any other
suppiemaents to the Shelf Prospectus to be issued by the Issuer Terms defined in the Shelf Prospectus have the same meaning when used in
this Pricing Supplemesnt

To the exdent that there & any confiict o inconsistancy between the contents of this Pricing Supplement and the Shell Prospectus, the provisions
of this Pncing Supplement shall preval, This Pricing Supplement may be used to offer and sell the Bonds only if accompanied by the Shed
Prospectus. Copées of the Shelf Prospectus can be obtained from any of the Issuing Houses

The registration of the Shelf Prospectus and this Pricing Supplement shali no! be taken to indicate that the Commission endorses of recommends.
the Secunties or assumes responsibiity for the coreciness of any statements made or OPEIons OF repons expressed in the Shelf Prospectus or
this Pricing Supplement. No Secunties will be allotted or msued on the basis of the Shell Praspectus read iogether with this Pricing Supplement
later than two years after the date of the ssue of the Shell Prospectus

This Prizing Supplement contains particulars in compliance with the requirements. of the Commission for the purpose of grang information with
regard fo the Securilies baing issued hersunder (the *Seres 1 Bonds™ or “Bonds’) Applcaton has been made to the Council of the Exchange
for the admission of the Bonds o the Daily Offical List of the Exchange The Bonds now beng issued will upon admission to the Draily Official
List quaify as a secunty in which Trustes may invest under the Trusies Investments Act (Cap T22) Laws of the Federation of Migeria. 2004

The lssuer accepts full responsibility for the accuracy of the infarmation comained in this Prcing Supplement The lssuer declares that having
taken reasonable care 10 ensure that such is the case the miformation contai ned in this Pncing Supplemant s 1o the best of is knowiedge, in
accordance with the facts and does not omit anything ikely to affect the smpart of such information and that save as dsclosed harein na ather
significant new factor, matenial mistake or inaccuracy relating to the informatan included in the Shell Prospectus has arisen of has been noled

as the case may be. since the publication of the Shelf Prospectus. Further. the matenal facts contaned herein are true and accurate in all material
respecis and the lssuer confirms that, hawving made all reasonable engquines. 1o the best of its knowledge and belie!, there are no maienal facts

the cmission of which would make any statemant contained heren misieading of untrue
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Final Terms of the Series [+] Bonds

1. Issuer LAPO MFB SPV PLC
2 Series Number: [#]
3. Aggregate Principal Amount of Bonds: [*]
i Issue Price: o]
MNet Proceeds:

5.  Denomination(s): [*]
A Issue Date: [o]
Interest Commence Date (if different from Issue Date)

7. Maturity Date: [*]
8. Principal Moratorium: [»]
9.  Interest Basis: [«]
10  Redemplion/Payment Basis: (o]
11. Status: [o]
12.  Security: [#]
13. Listing(s): [=]
14. Method of Distribution: [=]
15. Offer Period o]

Provisions Relating To Interest (If Any) Payable

16. Fixed Rate Mote Provisions

Interest Rate: [*]
- Coupon Payment Date(s) /Payment Dates: [#]
- Interest Amount(s): [*]

[Following Business Day Convention/
- Business Day Convention; Preceding Business Day Convention/
Modified Business Day)

- Business Day: Modified Business Day

- Other terms relating to method of calculating o]
interest for Fixed Rate Bonds:
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17

Floating Rate Note Provisions

Coupon Payment Date(s):
Reference Banks:

Spread (if applicable):

Party responsible for calculating interest rate and
interest amount(s)

Relevant Time (if applicable):

]

- Screen Rate Determination:
«  Benchmark:
+  Coupon Determination Dates(s):
* Relevant Screen Page:

- Day Count Fraction

Provisions Relating To Redemption

18.

18.

Optional Early Redemption (Call Option):
Optional Early Redemption (Put Option):
Scheduled Redemption/Amortization:
Redemption Amount(s).

Scheduled Redemption Dates:

Final Redemption Amount:

General Provisions Applicable to the Bonds

27.

Form of Bonds:
Form of Dematenalized Bonds:
Reqgistrar:

Trustee(s):
Record Date:

Other terms or special conditions:

Distribution, Clearing and Settlement Provisions

[#] (if not delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

[+
[*]
[*]
[*]
[+]

Actualidctual: Actuall360

[+]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]
[*]
[+]
[+

Dematerialized Bonds
[Registered/Certificate/Dematerialized]
[+]

[#]

[*]

[#]

28. Underwritten/Book-building: [#]
29, If Underwritten, names of Underwriters [e]
30. Clearing System: Central Securities Clearing System Plc
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31. Rating: A-
32, Taxation: [#]
33. Gowverning Law Migeria

Appendices

34, Appendices: [List and Attach Appendices if applicable]

Use of Proceeds

[Insert details of use of proceeds)

Material Adverse Change Statement

Except as disclosed in this document and in the Shelf Prospectus dated 16 August 2017, there has
been no significant change in the financial or trading position of the Issuer since [insert date of last
audited accounts or interim accounts (if later)] and no material adverse change in the financial
position or prospects of the Issuer since [insert date of last published annual accounts].

Responsibility

The Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in this Pricing Supplement which,
when read together with the Shelf Prospectus referred to above, contains all information that is
material in the context of the issue of the Bonds.

Signed on behalf of the Issuer:
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